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Honorable Mayor, Members of the
City Council and Citizens of Rapid City
Rapid City, SD 67701

The enclosed Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Rapid City
for the year ended December 31, 2011 was prepared by the City Finance Office.
Responsibility for the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and
faimess of the presentation, inciuding all disclosures, rests with the City. We believe the
data, as presented, is accurate in all material aspects; that it is presented in a manner
designed to fairly set forth the financial activity of the various funds; and that all
disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the maximum understanding of the
City’s financial affairs have been included.

The annual financial report has been prepared to substantially conform to the
high standards for financial reporting promulgated by the Government Finance Officers
Association for the United States and Canada.

Format:

The report has four sections -- Introductory, Financial, Single Audit and
Statistical.
1. The Introductory Section includes a description of the form of government, the

names of the elected officials and principal officers of the City, the organization
chart, and this letter of transmittal.

2. The Financial Section includes the general purpose financial statements
accompanied by our independent auditor's opinion. It also includes required and
other supplementary statements.

3. The Statistical Section includes tables of unaudited data depicting the financial
history of the government for the past ten (10) years, information on overiapping
governments, demographics, and other miscellaneous information.

4, The Single Audit Section includes the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards. Also included are various auditor reports in regards to compliance and
internal controls.

This Financial Report includes all funds of the City. The City provides a full range
of services, including police and fire protection, highways and streets, sanitation, health
and social services, culture and recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning,



and general administrative services. The City also operates water and wastewater
treatment facilities and other enterprises. The City Council exercises oversight authority
over an Airport Board, a Civic Center Board and a Library Board; therefore, these
activities are included in the report.

Annual audits of the books of account, financial records, and transactions of the
administrative departments of the City are conducted by the State of South Dakota
Department of Legislative Audit or by independent certified public accountants selected
by the City Council, which for 2011 was Ketel, Thorstenson, LLP. The independent
certified public accountants’ unqualified opinion has been included with this report.

The timely preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without
the efficient and dedicated services of the entire staff of the Finance Office. | would like
to express my appreciation to all members of the Office for the contributions to its
preparation.

| also want to thank the Mayor and City Council for their interest and support in

planning and conducting the financial operations of the City in a responsible and
progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,

Pauline Sumption
Finance Officer



CITY OF RAPID CITY

ELECTED OFFICIALS AND PRINCIPAL OFFICERS

DECEMBER 31, 2011

"The City of Rapid City is under the aldermanic form of government, consisting of a full-time mayor

and ten council members. Fach is elected for a two-

year term. Two council members are elected

from each of the five wards, with terms expiring in alternate years. The officials and officers as of

December 31, 2011 wese as follows:
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vii
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July 2014
July 2012
July 2014
July 2013



CITY OF RAPID CITY
ORGANIZATIONAL CHART
DECEMBER 31, 2011

CITIZENS ELECTORATE OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKQTA
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MAYOR
Sam Kooiker
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Sandra McNeely, Chairperson Eddie Rypketa, Chairman
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Greta Chapman Brian Maliske
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John Brewer, Chairman Dick McConnell, President
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Director Airport Managet
Brett Limbaugh Cameron Humphres
Community Parks and Public
Attorney Finance Resources Recreation Works Police Fire
J. Landeen P.Sumption  J. Batbier . Cole T Wolterstotff  S. Allender M. Maltaverne
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INDEPENDENT AUDITQR’S REPORT

Sam Kooiker, Mayor

and Common Council
City of Rapid City
Rapid City, South Dakota

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the gover_nménial activities, the business-type activities,
the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and.the aggregate remaining fund information
of CITY OF RAPID CITY (the City), South Dekota, as of and for thesyear ended December 31, 2011, which
collectively comptise the City’s basic financial statements :as fisted in the'table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of City’s management. Qur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements based on our audit. Eiis

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in thé_{U_nited States of America

and the standards applicable to financial audits contained’in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are f ‘oe-of material misstatement.‘An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the:amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, An audit
also includes assessing the accounting princigles sed and. the signiﬁcé'r;’_tf‘__es_timates made by management, as well as

evaluating the overall financial staterment presentation. We believe that our: é{_g_d}t provides a reasonable basis for our
opinions, i T

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective

financial position of the governmental: activities, the, businessitype activities, the aggregate discretely presented

component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remainting fund inforiation of the City of Rapid City as of

December 31, 2011, and the respective changes in financial:position, and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

a1ice Vern tin; is;:we_have.also issued our report dated ____, 2012, on our
consideration-of the City’s internal control over financial Teporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provistons of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and notto-provide an opinion:on internaj conirof over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in. ordance with Governmen! Auditing Standards and should be considered in
assessing the results:of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted:in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysts, the required supp_l_emﬁr_i_taryfbudgetary comparison schedules, and the Schedule of Funding Progress for
Retiree Health Insurance Coverage on pages 3 through 10, pages 60 through 63, and page 66 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statoments. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential patt of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to all of the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements, We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
litnited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.



The Honorable Mayor and Common Ceouncil
Page Two

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City’s financial statements as a whole. The introductory section, combining nonmajor fund financial statements,
budgetary comparison schedules and statistical section on pages i through viii, pages 67 through 87, pages 88
through 131, and pages 132 through 152, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part
of the financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards on page 1537 is presented
for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the financial statements.
The combining nonmajor fund financial statements, budgetary comparison schedules and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial Ustatements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly‘to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statemenits themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally:aecepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the information is fairly stated in al] material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. The
introductosy and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedires applied in the audit of the
basic financial staternents and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any ‘assurance on them.

" KBTEL THORSTENSON, LLP
Certified Public Accountants
, 2012 ey T




CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Rapid City, we offer readers of the City of Rapid City’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Rapid City for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2011. We encourage readers to consider it in conjunction with the additional information
presented in the basic financial statements and the notes to the financial statements.

The City of Rapid City provides many municipal services including public safety, streets, parks, general
administration and public utilities. For financial reporting purposes, all funds, agencies, boards, commissions,
trusts and authorities involved in the provision of these services are included if the City is financially
accountable. Financial accountability is determined by several different factors including fiscal dependence,
ability to impose will upon the entity’s governing body, provision of specific financial burdens or benefits, and
separate legal entity status.

Financial Highlights

» The assets of the City of Rapid City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year
by $600,115,879.14 (Net agsets). Of this amount, $86,770,776.86 (unrestricted net assets) may be used

to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors in accordance with the City’s
fund designations and fiscal policies.

% The City’s total net assets increased by $37,201,952.50 during 2011,

$  As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Rapid City’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $56,501,249.76.

% At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $15,469,352.79
or about thirty-seven percent (37%) of total general fund expenditures.

» The City of Rapid City’s total debt decreased by $14,267,325.23 during the current fiscal vear after
taking into account the other post-employment benefit liability. $10,980,853.00 of the decrease is due
to the payment of government activity revenue bonds, and a decrease of $740,998.29 due to the
payment of business activity revenue bonds. The remainder of the decrease is primarily due to the
payment of tax increment district financing.

Overview of the Financial Statemenls

The discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Rapid City’s basic financial
statements. The City of Rapid City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report
also contains both required and other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements
themselves,

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the City of Rapid City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector
business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City of Rapid City’s assets and Habilities, with
the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may SeIve
as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Rapid City is improving or deteriorating.



The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g. uncollected taxes and
earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Rapid City that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions
that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-
type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Rapid City include general government, public
safety, public works, health & welfare, conservation and development, and culture and recreation. The
business-type activities of the City of Rapid City include water, water reclamation, airport, solid waste, civie
center, golf, cemetery, parking, ambulance, energy plant and transportation terminal.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 11-12 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Rapid City, like other state
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the City of Rapid City can be divided into three categories: governmental
funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financial requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it
is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may befter
understand the long-term impact of the City’s near term financial decisions. Both the governmental fund
balance sheet and governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Rapid City maintains four individual major governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund staterent of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund and three special revenue funds, all of which
are considered to be major funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in
the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City of Rapid City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general and special revenue funds. A
budgetary comparison statement has been provided for those funds to demonstrate compliance with this
budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 13-17 of this report.



Proprietary Funds. The City of Rapid City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the governmenti-wide
financial statements. The City of Rapid City uses enterprise funds to account for its water, water reclamation,
airport, solid waste, civic center, golf, cemetery, parking, ambulance, energy plant and transportation terminal
operations. Internal service funds are accounting devices used to accumulate and allocate costs internally
among the City of Rapid City’s various functions. The City of Rapid City uses internal service funds to
account for its worker’s compensation, health, dental and liability insurance and unemployment compensation
management, These services benefit al] functions and they have been allocated to each based on the ratio of the
individual function’s payroll to the total payroli of the City in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in
more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the water, water
reclamation, airport, waste recycling and civic center which are considered to be major funds of the City of
Rapid City. Data from the other nine enterprise funds are combined into a single aggregated presentation.
Individual fund data for each of these non-major enterprise funds is provided in the form of combining
statements elsewhere in this report. Conversely, internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 18-25 of this report.

Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the
resources of those funds are not available to support the City of Rapid City’s own programs. The accounting
used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on page 26 of this report.

Notes to Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full

understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements can be found on pages 27-59 of this report.

Required Supplementary Information. The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required
supplementary information. This section includes a Budgetary Comparison Schedule, and related notes, for
the General Fund and for each major special revenue fund that has a legally adopted annual budget. It also
includes Schedules of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions for Retiree Health Insurance Coverage.
The required supplementary information can be found on pages 60-66.

Other Information. The supplementary combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major
governmental and proprietary funds and internal service funds and its budgetary comparison schedules are
presented immediately following the required supplementary information can be found on pages 67-131 of this
report.




Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In
the case of the City of Rapid City, assets exceeded liabilities by $600,115,879.14 at the close of the most
recent fiscal year.

By far the largest portion of the City of Rapid City’s total assets (82.5%) reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery and equipment) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is
still outstanding. The City of Rapid City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City of Rapid City’s investment in its capital
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Following is a comparison between the current and prior year’s assets, liabilities and changes in net assets.
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A portion of the City of Rapid City’s net assets represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on
how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets ($86,770,776.86) may be used to meet
the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Rapid City is able to report positive balances in all three
categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and
business-type activities.
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s funds.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City of Rapid City’s governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
City of Rapid City’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as useful
measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Rapid City’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $56,501,249.76. Approximately 17% of this total amount ($9,823,970.36) constitutes
unassigned fund balance. The remainder of the fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for
new spending because it has already been committed as 1) nonspendable (for inventories, notes receivable,
advances to other funds, and perpetual care cemetery endowment of $8,518,110.67), 2) restricted (for debt
service, perpetual care cemetery, library, business improvement districts and grants of $8,996,122.91), 3)
Committed (for capital replacements, Vision Fund, consolidated construction and erosion and sediment conirol
funds of $28,638,883.82), 4) Assigned (for next year’s appropriations for $524,162.00).

The General Fund balance increased by $5,147,332.74 in 2011, which was primarily due to an increase in
property and sales taxes ($1,774,601.61), and licenses and permits (1,613,597.65), as well as the inclusion of
Repair and Demolition, Drainage and Education Loan funds due to the changes in fund balance reporting
incorporating GASB 54, The 2012 Sales Tax Fund balance decreased $8,489,500.60 due to an increase in
capital project costs paid from the fund ($6,207,092.98) and transfers to other funds ($3,364,850.00). The
Consolidated Construction Fund balance decreased $2,494,935.28 due to payment for projects as approved in
the Construction Improvement plan. The Utility Facilities Fund balance decreased $1,503,104.00 due to
additional transfers (1,500,000.00) for road repair.

GOVERNMENTAL MAJOR FUND BALANCES
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Proprietary Funds. The City of Rapid City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

The unrestricted net assets in the respective proprietary funds are water - $2,487,263.83, wastewater -
$8,552,501.70, airport - $5,025,964.16, waste recycling - $7,591,388.60, civic center - $371,381.65, waste
collection — $1,974,591.03, waste disposal - $5,008,906.30, executive golf ($68,720.11), cemetery -
§71,134.35, golf ~ ($107,790.93), parking lot ~ $614,602.19, energy plant — ($252,074.64) ambulance -
$2,421,833.01 and transportation terminal - $134,562.46, Eleven funds had increases in net assets in 2011 and
those increases are as follows: water - $4,824,200.36, wastewater - $5,328,938.79, airport - $10,903,424.11,
waste recycling — $1,678,078.90, waste collection — $417,570.54, waste disposal - $438,043.82 cemetery ~
$21,038.34, golf course - $607,645.01, parking - $4,861.56, energy plant - $83,539.49 and ambulance
$576,190.81. Three funds had decreases in net assets. These decreases are as follows: civic center —
($1,315,072.56), executive golf - ($79,160.68), and transportation terminal ($23,990.33).



MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUND NET ASSET BALANCES
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Budgetary Highlights

General Fund. Supplemental appropriations primarily involved grant funds or “windfalls.” It is not legally
required to officially supplement the budget. It is the practice of the City of Rapid City to do so to provide full
public disclosure. In 2011 the City of Rapid City spent $287,793.05 less than the budgeted amount in the
General Fund Police and $135,758.43 less than the budgeted amount in the Genera} Fund Other Protection Re-
entry Program. This is due primarily to not being fully staffed and not purchasing as many supplies and
equipment as was anticipated. Also in 2011 the City of Rapid City spent $696,675.94 less than the budgeted
amount in General Fund Highways and Streets, $275,121.97 less than budgeted in the General Fund Public
Works Administration and $370,037.55 less than budgeted in the General Fund Transportation Planning. This

is primarily due to not completing as many projects as was originally anticipated.
Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. The City of Rapid City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type
activities as of December 31, 2011 amounts to $495,236,833.22 (net of accumulated depreciation and related
debt). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, infrastructure, machinery and equipment.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: Main Street Square; Jackson
Springs Water Treatment Plant which will be completed in 2012; Airport main terminal expansion and
Taxiway A relocation, which will be completed in 2012; infrastructure improvements; replacement of multipie
vehicles and large pieces of equipment.

City of Rapid City's Capital Assets

{Net of Depreciation)
(In Thousands)
Governmental Business-fype
Activities Activities Taotal
2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011
Land and land improvements $ 41,984 3 41977 § 15,812 5 15780 % 57,796 § 57,757
Buildings 66,516 66,417 136,915 141,303 203,431 207,721
Improvements 244,062 262,645 241,130 262,404 485,192 525,049
Machinery and equipment 26,108 26,572 24,607 24,729 50,715 51,301
Construction in Progress 10,551 14,027 29,144 47,586 39,695 61,613
Total 389,221 411,637 447,608 491,803 836,829 903,441
Less aceunuiated depreciation (131,904) (146,377) (144,165} (152,067) (276,069} (298,445)
Total capital assets § 257317 § 265260 § 03443 § 339,736 § 560,760 % 604,996



Long-term debt.

Government activities: $ 59,926,172.11
Business-type activities 90.618,858.88
$150,545,030.99
Current portion $ 16,103,603.69
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The City of Rapid City maintains an AAA to Baa2 rating from Moody’s on all of its revenue debt.

State statute limits the amount of general obligation debt a South Dakota city may issue to assessed value of
taxable property. The current debt limitation for the City of Rapid City is $1.046,119,884. $66,675,116 of the
City’s outstanding debt is counted within the statutory timitation although the debt is wholly or partially
financed by revenues other than a general tax levy.

Additional information on the City of Rapid City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 4 to the Financial
Statements.

Known fact, decisions or conditions.
There are no known facts, decisions or conditions that are expected to have a significant effect on financial

position or results of operations.

Regquests for Information. This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of
Rapid City’s finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances, Questions concerning any of
the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to
the City of Rapid City, Finance Officer, 300 Sixth Street, Rapid City, SD 57701. Component unit financial
statements may be obtained by contacting the Museum Alliance of Rapid City, Inc. at 222 New York St,
Rapid City SD 57701,
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ASSETS:
Cash & Cash Equivalents
{nvestmerts
Accounts Receivable, Net
Internal Balances (see Note 3)
Other Assets
Deferred Charges
Restricted Assets:
Cash with Fiscal Agent
Restricted Cash
Capital Assets:
Land and Censtruction
in Progress (sce Note 2)
Other Capital Assets,
Net of Depreciation (see Nete 2)
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable
Other Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Due Within One Year
Due in More Than One Year
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS:
Invested in Capital Assets Net of Related Debt
Restricted for:
Debt Service
Cemetery Trust Fund - Expendabie
Cemetery Trust Fund - Nonexpendable
Other Purposes - TID Debt Service
Other Purposes - Dwntn Business Impr District
Other Purposes - Business Impr District
Other Purposes - RSVP
Other Purposes - Component Unit
Other Purposes - Library
Other Purposes - Grant (1.oan Rehab)
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABYLITIES AND NET ASSETS

The notes to the financial statements are an integra

STATEMENT OF NET ASSET 5
PECEMBER 31,2011

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL UNIT
$ 25521,708.40 % 18,039,903.60 43,561,612.00 8§ 37,912.00
29,094,684.53 13,343,294.77 42,437,979.30 -
10,726,784.32 10,246,502.74 20,973,287.06 33,096.00
{1,247,844.88) 1,247,844.88 - -
770,626.00 400,862.20 1,171,488.20 162,590.00
226,462.00 822,162.23 1,048,624.25 3,353.00
7,484,451.00 43,502,226.60 50,986,677.60 -
- 1,381,056.11 1,381,056.11 132,492.00
56,003,493.85 63,366,573.34 119,370,069.19 -
209,256,413.06 276,369,666.91 485,626,079.97 113,159.00
$ 337,836,780.28 8 428,720,093.40 766,356,873.68 % 482,602.00
5 7.288,477.92 § 5,827,346.88 13,115,824.80 % 17,650.00
1,020,779.36 1,759,359.3% 2,780,138.73 19,019.00
12,954,723.035 3,164,887.14 16,119,612.19 -
46,971,447.06 87,453,971.74 134,425,418.80 -
68,235,429.39 98,205,565.15 166,440,994.54 36,669.00
208,837,368.14 286,399,463.08 495,236,833.22 113,159.00
7,484,451.00 9,062,146.15 16,546,597.15 .
7,742.33 - 7,742.33 -
50,000.00 - 50,000.00 -
1,346,475.64 - 1,346,473.64 -
1,573.46 - 1,573.46 -
13,727.44 - 13,727.44 -
3,863.41 - 3,863.41 -
- - - 132,492.00
65,417.38 - 65,417.38 -
72,872.25 . 72,872.25 -
51,717,859.84 35,052,917.02 §6,770,776.86 200,282.00
269,601,350.8% 330,514,528.25 600,115,879.14 445.933.00
$ 337,836,780.28 8 428,720,093.40 % 766,556,873.68 8 482,602.00

| part of this statement.
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Functions/frograms
Prirary Govemment
Governmental Activities:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Health and Welfare
Cubture, Recreation

Conservation and Development

Interest on Long Term Debt
Miscellaneous Expenditures
Total Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities:
‘Water
Water Reciamation
Adrport
Solid Waste Disposal
Solid Waste MRF/Compost
Civic Center
Solid Waste Collestion
Execmive Golf Course
Cemetery
Golf Cowrse
Parking Lot & Area
Hnergy Plant
Ambulance
Transportation Terminal
Total Business-type Activities

Total Primary Governiment

‘The City does not have interest expense related to the functions presented above, This amount includes

CITY OF RAPID CITY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011

--------- Progeam Revenues------- -~

Net (Expense) Revenue and

~~~~~~~~ Changes in Met Assets

Charges Operating Grants Capital Grants Governmental Business-Type Component
Expenses for Services and Contributions _and Contributions Activities Activities Total Unit
3 297986937 § 144893496 $ B £ - $ {1,480,934.41) § - $  {1,480,934.41) § -
20,831,125.22 1,105,582.31 404,463.59 - (19,321,079.32) - {19,321,079.32) -
18,456,437.86 391,789.40 999,068.57 4,316,690.7¢ {14,748,889.19) - {14,748,889.19) -
2,961,340.39 389,372.55 592,108.75 - (1,979,858.09) - (1,979,858.09) -
9,761,625.33 1,684,725.7% 48,696.56 - {8,028,203.02) - {8,028,203.02) {64,142.00}
3,477,994.67 1,661,635.38 1,060,621.9¢ - (755,137.39) - (755,737.39) .
3,724,651.6% - - - (5,721,651.69) - (5,721 631.69} -
1,483,064.35 82.126.89 - - (1,400,937.46} - (1,400,937.46) -
£5,623.108.88 6,764,167 24 3,104,960.37 2.316,690.70 (53,457,290.5T) - (53,437.290.57) {64.142.00)
10,258,187.20 12,457,402.06 - 161,760.60 - 3,360,914 86 3,360,914.86 -
7,168,432.25 9,990,865.24 - 1,379,910.00 - 4,202,342.99 4,202,342.99 -
£,951,193.21 5,348,491.02 - 9,148,241 .87 - 7,545,539.68 7,545,539.68 -
2,635,304.65 2,826,063.16 - - - 190,758.51 190,758.51 -
2,938,357.91 3,590,764 32 - - - 652,406.41 652,406.41 -
9,79%,187.48 5,403,014,51 - - - (4,395,172,97} (4,395,172.97) -
1,926,102.87 2,330,246.3¢ » - - 404,143.43 404,143.43 -
213,817.69 134,729.47 - - - (79,088.22} {79,088.22) -
255,160.82 155,041.10 - - - £106,119.72) (100,119.72) -
1,320071.18 £,212,133.37 - - - {107,937.81) {107,931 81) -
680,578.13 685,134.60 - - - 4,556.47 4,556.47 -
394,442.08 248,206.75 - - - (46,235.33) (46,235,33} -
2,927,571.28 3,301,028.57 - - - 573,458.29 573,458.29 »
146,886.42 29,257.41 - - - {117,629.01) (117,629.01) -
47,314,29317 48,712,378.88 - 10,689,851.87 - 12,087,937 58 12,087,937.58 -
g 11293740205 § 5547654612 8 3,10496037 8 1300634257 3 {53,437,290.57) 8 __12.087,937.58 $  {41,349.352,99) § (64,142.00}
General Reventes:
Taxes!
Property Taxes 21,643,115.75 - 21,643,115.75 -
Sales Taxes 45,950.060.77 3,263,328.20 49,253,388.97 -
Other Taxes 2,053,576.46 177,135.97 2,23G,712.43 -
State Shared Revenue 1,260,175.63 - §,260,175.63 -
County Shared Revenue 205,849.05 - 295,849.05 B
Unrestricted Investment Eamings 2,218,353.04 1,505,645 79 3,723,998.83 -
Miscelianecus Revenue 168,552.28 937,473 .46 1,106,025.74 -
Loss on disposal of Capital Assels (82,565.20) {879, 795.1) (961,960.913 -
Transfers (6,479,194 49} 6,479,194.49 - -
Total General Revenue, Loss and Transfers 67,068,323.28 13,482,982 20 78,551,305 49 "
Change in Net Assets 13,633,032.72 23,570,919.78 37,201,952.50 (64,142.00}
251.460,015.64 306,943,608 47 558,403,624.11 510,075.00

Net Assets, Beginning

Prior Period Adjustments
Correction of Prior Year Due from Other Governments
Adjustment for prior year Highway Safety program grants

Net Assets, Ending

The notes 1o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,

(396,141,6C)
4,906,444.13

£396,141.60)
4.506,444.13

S 26960135080 & 33051452825 % 60011587914 S 445 913 00

indirect intercst expense on general long-term debt,



ASSETS:
10} Cash and Cash Equivatents
102 Restricted Cash
106 Cash with Fiscal Agent, Restricted
151 Investmenis
110 Property Taxes Regeivable--Detinquent
110 Sales Tax Receivable
115 Accounts Receivable
121 Special Assessents Receivable-Current
122 Special Assessments Regeivable--Delinquent
123 Special Agsessments Receivable--Deferred
128 Notes Receivable
131 Due from Other Funds (see Note 5}
133 Advance to Other Funds (see Note 5)
132 Due from Other Governments (see Note 6}
135 Interest Receivabie
144 Inventory

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:
201 Claims Payable
216 Wages Payable
208 Due to Other Funds (see Note 5)
209 Advance from Other Funds (see Note 5)
224 Deferred Revenue
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:

263 Nonspendabie
263.01 Inventory
263.04 Advances
263.05 Notes Recsivables
263,51 Perpetual Care Cemetery

264 Restricted
264.0% Debt Service
264.03 Cemetery Perpetual Care
264.05 Library
264.09 Business improvement District
264,97 Grant

265 Committed
265.02 Capitat Replacements
26%.04 2012 Sales Tax (Vision Fund}
26%.04 Consclidated Construction Sales Tax
165.99 Erosion/Sediment Controt

266 Assigned
266.01 Assigned for Next Year's Appropriation

267 Unassigned

Totat Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF RAPID CITY

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDER PECEMBER 31, 2011
2012 Consolidated 1itility Other Total
General Sales Tax Construction Facilitics Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fungd Fund Fumnds Funds

§ 642392560

$ 731,288.45

§  4,549,355.99

% 2,477,307.80

$ 1,610,384.92

§ 15,792,262.76

- 295,861.2% “ - 155,160.50 451,021.79

- 4,652,397.95 200,033.78 2,632,019.27 - 7,484,451.00
7,987,226.61 §,083,809.05 6,650,795.41 4,927,894.81 48,2216 27,697,955.04
365,367.32 - - - 305,988.75 671,356.07
2,624,567.59 1,312,283.80 1,312,283.80 456,446,53 - 5,705,581.72
123,357.71 - " - 66,130.35 189,488,006
6,433.65 - - - 1,344,00 1,777.65
60,588.80 - - - - 60,589.80
163,103.35 - - - 15,501.00 178,604,335

- - 2,418,975.97 - - 2,418,975.97
90,514.45 26,602.84 68,925.66 381,874.04 - 567,916.99
1,100,974.36 28,190.01 313,454.06 3,835,881.27 - 5,278,508,70
569,691.97 - 98,088.97 - 13,468.29 681,249.23
74,082,653 8.895.78 163,022.57 12,058.34 1,686.37 25974571
770,626.00 - - 770,626.00

T 20.360,461,06

$ 15,139,338 17

$ 15,774,936,21

$ 14,723,482.06

$ 2,217,893.34

§ 68216,110.84

1.326,690.74 1222,308.63 1,761,308.29 1,455.63 304,414.99 4616,188,28
742,832.12 - . - 13.406.47 756,238,59

. - . - 551,784.44 551,784.44

. - , . 5,315,127 5,315,112.74

425 $23.05 . - - 4971401 475,537.06
2,405 ,345.91 17322,308 63 1 761.308.28 146563 6,234432.62 11.714.861.08
770,626.00 . . . - 770,626.00
1,160,974.36 28,199.01 313,454.06 3,835,881.27 . 5.278,508.70
- - 2,418,975.97 . . 241897597

. . N . 50,000.00 50,000,00

- 465239793 200,033.78 2,632,619.27 134647564 8,830,926.64

. - - . 7,142.33 774233

. - - - 65417.38 65.417.38

- - . - 15,300.90 15,300.9C

. - - . 76,735.66 76,735.65

- . - 8.254,115.89 - 8,254,115.89

- 9.236,432.58 - . - 9.336,432.58

- - 11,081,164.11 - . 11,081,164.11

. . - §7,171.24 67,171.24
524,162.00 - . - . 524,162.00
15.469,352.79 - - - (5,645,382.43) 9.823.970.36
17.865.115.15 13.917.028.54 14,013,627.92 7201643 (4,016,539.28) 56,501249.76

$ 20,360,461.06

$ 15,139,338.17

$ 1577493621

$ 14,723,482.06

§ 2,217,893.34

$ 68,216,110.84
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2011

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $  56,501,249.76

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 265,259,908.91

Long term liabilities, including bonds payable are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore not reported in the
funds. (59,926,172.11)

Accrued interest on long-term debt is not due and payable in the current period
and therefore is not reported in the funds. (260,329.23)

Debt issuance costs are recorded as expenditures in the funds but are deferred
and amortized over the term of the related debt in the statement of net assets. 226,462.00

Property Taxes (delinquent) and special assessments (current, delinquent and
deferred) are not available to pay for current period expenditures and
therefore are deferred revenue in the funds. 475,537.06

Internal service funds are used by management (o charge the

costs of activities, such as insurance, to individual funds.

The assets and liabilities of internal service funds are included

in the governmental activities in the statement of net assets. 7,324,694.50

Total Net Assets - Governmental Activities $ 269,601,350.89

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Revenues:
310 Taxes:
311 General Property Taxes
313 General Safes and Use Taxes
314 Gross Receipts Business Taxes
320 Licenses and Pertnits
330 intergovernmental Revenue:
331 Federal Granis
334 State Grants
335 State Shared Revenue:
335.01 Bank Franchise Tax
335,03 Liguor Tax Reversion
335,04 Motor Vehicle Licenses (5%)
335.06 Fire Insurance Reversion
135.08 Local Government Highway
and Bridge Fund
338 County Shared Revenus:
338.01 County Road Tax {23%)
340 Charges for Goods and Services:
341 General Government
342 Public Safety
343 Public Works
345 Health & Welfare
146 Culture and Recreation
348 Cemetery
349 Conservation & Development
350 Fines and Forfeits:
351 Court Fines and Costs
354 Library
360 Miscellancous Revenue:
361 Interest Earnings
362 Renlals
363 Special Assessments
167 Contributions and Donations
369 Other
Total Revenue

Expenditures:
410 General Government:
412 Executive-Mayor & Council
414 Financial - Community Resources
414 Financial - Finance
414 Financial - Attorney
419 Other - Government Buildings
420 Public Safety:
421 Police
422 Fire
429 Qther Protection-Corrections
429 Other Protection-Code Enforcement
429 Other Projection-ACE
429 Other Protection-Re-entry Program

CYTY OF RAPID CITY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011
2012 Consolidated Qther Total
General Sales Tax Construction Facilities Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
41334448321 § " - - $  8,712,800.37 $ 22.057,283.58
21,155,428.006 10,577,713.96 10,577,713.96 3,679,204 .85 - 45,990,060,77
646,703.97 - - - 1,283,355.15 1,930,059.12
2,891,641.15 - - - - 2,891,641.15
1,701,580.98 - 164,372.83 - 782,098.03 2,678,051.84
2842500 - 398,483.53 - . 426,908.53
100,138.73 - - - - 100,138.73
376,901.49 - - - - 376,801.49
51,549.24 - - - 51,549.24
183,060.26 - - - - 183,060.26
548,525.91 - - - - 548,525.91]
295,849.05 - - - - 295,849.05
356,402.68 - 14,598.01 - - 371,000.6%
1,039,130.49 - - - - 1,039,130.49
253,302.27 - 18,206.76 . - 291,509.03
382,797.55 - - - - 382,797.55
1,569,496.10 - - - - 1,569,496.10
- - - 3,127.88 3,127.88
- - - - 82,126.89 82,126.89
18,107.81 - - - 18,107.81
- - - - 115,229.65 115,229.65
613,119.99 611,365.64 455,598.74 505,462.42 32,806.25 2,218,353.04
128,023.98 - - - - 128,023.98
50,671.94 - - - 160,064.00 210,735.94
3,784.01 - 20,000.00 - 38,847.47 62,631.48
27,207.16 - 13,321.14 - - 40,528.30
45,766,330.97 11,189,079.60 11,712,294.97 4,184,667.27 11.210,455.69 84,062,828.50
440,602.22 - - - - 440,602.22
340,058.94 - $8.628.84 - - 428,687.78
729,640.25 - - - - 729,640.25
11,019.96 - - - - 11,019.96
792,218.57 - 38,468.08 - - 830,686.65
11,793,617.42 - - . - 11,793,617.42
7,923,108.89 - - - 7,923,108.89
4779713 - - - - 4779713
198,186.69 - - - - 168,186.69
21,197.45 - - - . 21,197.45
42,130.49 - - - v 42,130.4%
£6,451.0C - - 86,451.00

429 Other Protection-Emergency Mgt
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430 Public Works:
431 Highways and Streets
43x Administration
440 Health and Wetfare:
441 Health
444 Humane Society
449 Other - Public Transit
449 Other - Air Quality
450 Culture and Recreation:
451 Recreation
451 Swimming Pools
451 Ice Arena
452 Parks
455 Libraries
457 Historical Preservation

459 Other - Parks & Rec Administration

459 Other - Retired Senior (RSVP)
459 Other - Cemetery
456 Other - Subsidies

460 Conservation and Development:
465 FEeonomic Development
465 Community Development
465 Transportation Planning
465 GIS Information System

470 Debt Service

485 Capital Outiay

490 Miscellaneous:
492 Other Expenditures

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue Over {Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
391.01 Transfers [n (see Note 5)
511  Transfers Out (ses Note 5)
391.02 Long-term debt issued
391.03 Sale of Munieipal Property

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - Beginning (Note 8}

Prior Pericd Adiustment (Note 8)

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

CITY OF RAPID CITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

2012 Consolidated Utility Other Total
General Sales Tax Construction Facilities Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
5,016,095.11 (220,492.58) - . 4,795,602.53
271,847.55 - 1,868,348.99 - “ 2,140,196.54
420,773.83 - - . 420,773.85
278,318.00 - - - . 278,318.00
1,772,009.12 - - - 1,772,009.12
64,327.84 - - - - 64,327 84
358,995.26 13,383.35 - - - 372,378.61
1,528,208.44 - - - - 1,528,208.44
624,057.30 - - “ - 624,057.3¢
2,051,649.80 - - . - 2,051,649.80
2,960,966.24 - - . 120,253.83 3,081,220.07
§,128.11 - - - - $,128.11
182,151.52 19,269.15 09,724 83 . - 301,145.50
- - . - 98,618.46 98,618.46
- - B - 236.00 236.00
200,000.00 - - - 200,000.00
458,000.60 320,126.16 - - - 787,126,106
1,479,597.93 - - - §20,548.35 2,300,146,28
324,842.62 - “ 324,842.62
85,583.86 - - - - 85,583.86
121,551.68 6,723,075.00 3,486,428.57 1,637,937.89 8.883,484.12 20,852,477.26
1,033,507.43 6,170,473.35 9,295,283.92 - 960,766.23 20,400,030.93
7.773.24 8,895.77 4,499.53 3,063.38 1,458,832.43 1,483,064.35
41,674.413.91 16,043,730.20 14,881,382.76 1,641,001.27 12,282,739.42 86,523,267.56
4.091,917.06 (4,854,650.60) (3,169,087.79) 2.543,666.00 (1,072,283.73) (2,460,439.06)
662,803.00 - 1,500,000.00 - 208,856.00 2.371,659.00
(343,386.00) (3,634,850.00) (825,847.49) {4,046,770.00) - (8,850,853.49)
- - - 2.054,563.57 2,054,563.57
4.323.00 - - - - 4,323.00
323,740.00 (3,634,850.00% 674,152.51 (4,046,770.00) 2,263,419.57 (4,420,307.92)
4,415,657.06 (8,489,500.60) {2,494,935.28) (1,503,104.00) 1,191,135.84 {6,880,746.98)
13,449,458.09 22,406,530.14 11,798,260.67 16,225,120.43 (5,007,675.12) 58,871,694.21
. - 4,716,302.53 - (200,600.00) 4,510,302.53

$17,865,115.15

$ 13,917,029.54

$ 14,013,627.92

$14,722,016.43

§ (4,016,539.28)

$ 56,501,249.76

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Net change in fund balances - total government funds $  (6,880,746.98)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Government funds report capital cutlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of

activities the cost of those assets is aliocated over their estimated lives and reported as

depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation

in the current period. 5,782,193.11

Assets Contributed by Development. 2,254,059.22

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long term liabilities in the statement of net assets (net of premium). 15,156,402.22

Debt proceeds, including premiums are a revenue in the governmental funds but the proceeds
increase long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. (2,054,563.57)

Debt issuance costs are deferred in the government-wide statements and amortized over the
term of the related debt. (105,403.00)

Accrued interest on long-term debt is not due and payable in the current period and
therefore is not reported in the funds. The amount represents the change in accrued
interest during the current period. 79,826.35

In the Statement of Activities, the gains and losses on disposal of capita] assets are
reported, whereas in the governmental funds, the proceeds from the disposal of capital
assets are reflected, regardless of whether a gain or loss is realized. (93,738.20)

Other post employment benefit obligations are expenditures in the governmental
funds when they are incurred and they are recorded as a labilify in the statement of net
assets. (224,882.78)

Governsmental funds report property taxes, special assessments and grants as
revenue when funds become available, but the statement of activities includes
the property tax, special assessments and grants as revenue when sarned. (501,386.43)

Governmental funds recognize expenditures for amounts of compensated absences

actually paid to employees with current financial resources during the fiscal year.

Amounts of compensated absences earned by employees are not recognized in the funds.

In the statement of activities, expenses for these benefits are recognized when the

employees earn leave credits. 64,527.37

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of

certain activities, such as insurance to individual funds. The net revenue

(expense) of the internal service funds has been prorated to governmental

activities and business-type activities based on the proportionate share of wages. 154,745.42

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $  13,631,032.73

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

ASSETS:
Current Assets:
101 Cash and Cash Equivalents
106 Cash with Fiscal Agent, Restricted
107 Restricted Cash {Note 16}
151 Investments
115 Accounts Receivable

116 Estimated Uncollectable Accounts Receivable

117 Unbilled Accouats Receivable
110 Sales Tax Receivable
131 Due frem Other Funds
132 Due from Other Government {see Note 8)
135 Inlerest Receivable
142 Inventory of Stores Purchased for Resale
155 Prepaid Expenses
Total Current Assels

Noncurrent Assets:
133 Advance to Other Funds
Capital Assets:
160 land
162 Buildings
164 Improvements Other than Bldg
164 Fumniture & Equipment
166 Wachinery and Equipment
168 Construction Work in Progress
Less; Accumulated Depreciation
“Total Noncurrent Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
Cutrent Liabilities:
202 Accounts Payable
208 Due to Other Funds {see Note 5)
215 Agcrued Interest Payable
220 Customer Deposits
2xx Wages Payable
226 QPEB Cusrent Obligations
226 Bonds Payable Current:
226 Capital Lease Payable Current (see Note 4)
230 Compensaled Absences Payabte - Current
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:

200 Advance from Other Funds (sce Mote 5)

23] OPEB Long-Term Obligations

231 Bonds Payable

231 Capital Lease Payable

233 Accrued Leave Payable (see Note 4)

915 Accrued Landfill Closure and Postelosure
Total Noncurrent Liabilitics

NET ASSETS:

253.10 Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

253.20 Restricted Net Assets, Restricted for:
25322 Revenue Bond Retirement
253 90 tnrestricted Net Assets
Totai Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND} NET ASSETS

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

DECEMBER 31,2011
Water Wastewater Airport
Fund Fund Fund
1,841,354.15 529195731 %  2,193,929.68
31,918,060.7¢ 1,136,569.99 8,811,440.86
2,046,084.44 3,973,689.15 -
590,363.37 780,213.98 836,925.43
(25,986.15} (30,000.00) {4,104.56)
525,488 44 - -
142,006.89 859.16 -
- - 3,900,453.22
227,154.25 10,993.61 6,023.55
33,847.00 13,965.91 -
286,107 51 127,245.00 251,342 .50
37,584,480.61 11,305.494.11 15,996,620.68
663,204.46 - -
5,769,617.19 671,711.14 1,084,000.31
11,730,52741 24,814,545.27 21,920,553.02
114,871,333.98 69,179,057.13 58,679,938.49
$89,270.88 625,096.09 753,377.81
810,391.56 1,675,417.62 5,707,195.58
21,895,597.66 6,739,213.71 18,816,805.31
(42,737,511.55) (28,677,643.09) (39,447,323.42}
110,552,431.5% 74,927,397 87 67,514,545.10

148,176,912.20

$ §6,232,891.98

3 83,510,565.78

2,197,767.03 08571580 $  1,760,418.19
- 60,000.00 .
287,357.69 86,760.07 92,241.78
715,346.74 - -
97,541.51 70,035.22 70,150.38
45.432.00 35,755.72 39.937.63
72.293.50 §76,566.30 535,009.00
15,000.00 5,000.00 6,500.00
343093847 5119,833.11 3 504,248.03
270,000.00 243,000.00 .
63,166.54 49,713.08 55,527.51
46,359,234.75 12,931,411.70 15,668,583.38
150,549.02 80.442.53 133,834.12
46.842,950.31 13,304,567,31 15.857,645.01

90,711,378.01

4.704,381.58
2,487,263.83

61,119,419 87

1,136,569.99
8,552,501.70

58,537,363.04

1,585,045.54
5.025,964.16

97,503,023,42

70,808,491.56

65,148,372.74

S 148,176,91220

$ 86,232,891.98

$ 831510,565.78

¢his statement,
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Enterprise Funds

Solid Waste Civic Center Nonmajor
MRF/Compost Enterprise Enterprise Internal
Fund Fund Funds Totals Service Funds
3 4,592,893.93 3 153,225.54 & 3,966,542.99 § 18,039,903.60 § 9,278,423.85
761,090.72 596,323.50 278,734.82 43,502,226.60 -
- - 1,381,056.11 1,381,056.11 -
2,807,626,18 102,157.35 4,413737.65 13,343,294.77 1,396,729.49
483,196.04 91,828.05 5,883,087.55 8,665,618.42 546,340.05
(10,600.00) - (3,161,975.88) (3,232,066.59) -
- - - 525,488.44 -
11,474.81 348,700.84 - 360,175.65 -
- 188,709.10 55,750.33 387,325.48 -
- - 26,833.60 3,927,286.82 -
5,539.48 1,000.86 6,592.65 257,304.40 7.075.71
- 95,744.89 - 143,557.80 -
26,321.07 91.828.03 39,318.14 822,162.25 -
8,678,142.23 1,669,518.16 12,889,677.96 §8,123,333.75 11,228,569.10
- - - 663,204.46 -

542,868.12

1,091,682.05

6,620,227.85

15,780,106.66

12,968,827.18 61,134,223.11 8,734,599.24 141,303,275.23 -
4,268971.62 8,613,085.05 9.491,670.8] 262,404,057.08 -
191,553.86 3,408,734.43 2,156,194.27 7,724,227 36 -
1,258,545.79 405,496.05 7,248,146.90 17,005,193.50 -
. - 134,850.00 47,586,466.68 -
(6,712,183.61) (24,229,069.09) {10,263,354.10) (152,067,086.26) -
12,518,583.56 50,724,151.62 24,122,334.97 340,399,444.71 -
$ 21,196,725.79 % 52.393.669.78  § 37,012,012.93 § 428,522,778.46 &% 11,228,569.10
3 188,739.22  § 295,073.96  § 390632.68 §  5,827,346.88 $  2,672,289.64
C - - 343,458.03 403,458.03 -
3,870.60 1,247.74 13,185.24 484,863.12 -
“ - - 715,346.74 -
48,630.79 163,594.66 109,196.97 $59,149.53 4,211.54
22,161.61 47,747 .88 83,110.27 274,145.16
§53,800.00 205,000.00 85,000.00 2,327,659.80 -
- 87,633.75 436,948.43 524,582.18 -
5,000.00 - 7,000.00 38,560.00 -
§22,202.22 $00.297.99 1.477,531.62 11,155,051 .44 2,676,501.18
- - 113,600.45 626,600.45 -
30,812.48 66,386.43 115,552.6% 381,158.69
1,448.306.05 4,705,793.91 2,184,925.23 $3,298,257.02 -
- 146,480.08 1,479,876.54 1,626,356.62 -
26,4482} 127,762.34 248,107.08 767,143.30 -
- - 1,381,056.11 1,381,056.11 -
1,505,566.74 5,046,424.76 5,523,118.06 88,080,572.19 -
10,516,477.51 45,579,241 88 19,935,584.77 286,399,465.08 -
761,090.72 596,323.50 278,734.82 9,062,146.15 "
7,591,388.60 371,381.63 9,797.043.66 33.825,543.60 8,552,067.92
18,868,956.83 46,546,947.03 30,011,363.25 326,287,154.83 8,552,667.92
8 21.106,725.79  § 52,393,660.78 $ 37,012,01293 § 42852277846 $ 11,228.569.10
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
RECONCILIATION OF THE PROPRIETARY FUNDS NET ASSETS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2011

Total Net Assets - Enterprise Funds $ 329,287,154.83

Amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement
of net assets are different hecause:

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the

costs of activities, such as insurance, to individual funds.

Certain amounts reported for business-type activities in the Statement of Net
Assets are different because of the Enterprise Funds' participation

in the activities conducted in the internal service fund 1,227,373.42

Total Net Assets - Business-type Activities $ 330,514,528.25

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

QOperating Revenue:

380 Charges for Goods and Services

381 Revenues used as Security for Revenue Bonds
Total Operating Revenues

QOperating Expenses:
410 Personal Services
420 Other Current Expense
426.2 Materials (Cost of Goods Sold)
457 Depreciation (see Note 2)
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (l.oss)

Nonoperating Revenue (Expense):
361 Investment Earnings
470 Interest Expense and Fiscal Charges
366 Gain (Loss) on Disposition of Capital Assets
369.01 Other Taxes
369.01 Sales Tax
369.01 Other
Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expense)

Income (Loss) Before Capital Grants and Transfers
330  Capital Grants
391.7 Contributions (to) from Developers/Others
391.1 Transfers In (see Note 5)
511 Transfers Out (see Note 5)
Net Capital Grants, Contributions and Transfers
Change in Net Assefs
Net Assets - Beginning

NET ASSETS - ENDING

Water Wastewater Airport
Fund Fund Fund
$ 10,695,581.77 - 3,763,034.92
2,761,820.29 9,990,865.24 1,585,456.10
13,457,402.06 9,990,865.24 5,348,491.02
2,102,566.35 1,624,232.88 1,996,125.20
3,241,515.64 3,335,865.19 2,093,491.32
2,525,346.60 1,778,189.59 1,949,852.48
7,869,428.59 6,738,287.66 6,039,469.00
5,587,973.47 3,252,577.58 (690,977.98)
489,802.57 316,176.35 131,847.95
(2,398,821.49) (438,064.24) (920,570.14)
(72,147.98) (277.811.19) {442,734.16)
- - 177,135.97
6,608.08 - 480.60
(1,974,498.82 (399,699.08) {1,053,839.78)
3,613,474.65 2,852,878.50 (1,744,817.76)
- $21,310.00 9,148,241.87
161,700.00 558,600.00 -
1,296,360.71 1,250,409.29 3,500,000.00
(247,335.00) (154,259.00) -
1,210,725.71 2,476,060.29 12,648,241 .87
4,824,200.36 5,328,938.79 10,903,424.11

93,078,823.06

$ 97,903,023.42

65,479,552.77

$ 70,808,491.56

54,244,948.63

$ 65,148,372.74

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Enterprise Funds

Solid Waste
MRF/Compost
Fund

Civic Center
Enterprise
Fund

Nonmajor
Proprietary
Funds

Totals

Internal
Service Funds

$  3,590,764.32

$  5,403,014.51

$ 10,236,707.13
685,134.60

$  33,689,102.65
15,023,276.23

$ 7,383,88341

3,590,764 .32 5,403,014.51 10,921,841.73 48,712,378.88 7,383,883.41
1,019,694.10 3,665,690.54 4,432,268.60 14,840,577.67 86,991.67
1,251,555.58 3,216,519.59 4,174,304.52 17,313,251.84 7,318,073.88

- 761,945.73 140,905.34 902,851.07 -
525,494.33 1,910,263.94 1,234,133.86 9,923,280.80 -

2,796,744.01 9,554,419.80 9,081,612.32 42.979,961.38 7,405,065.55
794,020.31 (4,151,405.29) 040,229.41 5,732,417.50 (21,182.14)
212,911.34 21,622.57 333,285.01 1,505,645.79 236,539.17
{146,497.63) (254,347.35) (236,642.56) (4,394,943 .41) -
14,867.97 (44,404.69) {57,565.66) (879,795.71) -

- - - 177,135.97 -

- 3,263,328.20 - 3,263,328.20 -
856,874.86 - 73,449.92 937,473.46 -
938,156.54 2,986,198.73 112,526.71 608,844.30 236,539.17

1,732,176,85 (1,165,206.56) 1,052,756.12 6,341,261.80 215,357.03

- - - 9,969,551.87 -

- - - 720,300.00 -

- - 1,108,283.39 7,155,053.39 -
(54,097.95) (149,866.00) (70,300.95) (675,858.90) -
(54,097.95) {149,866.00) 1,037,982.44 17,169,046.36 -

1,678,078.90 (1,315,072.56) 2,090,738.56 23,510,308.16 215,357.03
17,190,877.93 27,920,624.69 305,776,846.67 8,336,710.89

$ 18,868,956.83

47,862,019.59

$ 46,546,947.03

$ 30,011,363.25

§ 329,287,154.83

$ 8§,552,067.92
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
RECONCILIATION OF THE PROPRIETARY FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES
EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Net change in nel assets - Enterprise funds $ 23,510,308.16
Amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement of activities
are different because:

Internal service funds are used by management 10 charge the cost of

certain activities, such as insurance (o individual funds. Certain amounts reported

for business-type activities in the Statement of Activities are different because of Enterprise

Funds' participation in the activities conducted in the internal service fund 60,611.62

Change in Net Assets of Business-type Activities $ 23,570,619.78

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTYVITIES:
Receipt from Customers
Receipt from Interfund Services Provided
Payments to Supptiers
Payments to Employees
Internal Activity - Payment 1o Other Funds

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
Adrport Property Tax and Gross Receipts Tax (Civie Center)
Transfers In
Transfer Out

Net Cash Provided {Used) by Operating Subsidies and Transfers

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL
Proceeds from Capital Debt
Capital Gramts
Purchase of Capital Assets
Principal Paic on Capital Debt
Interest Paid on Capital Debt
Other Receipts (Payments}

Net Cash (Used) by capital and related finaneing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
interest Barnings

Net Cash Provided {Used) by Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivaients

Batances - Bepinning

Balances- Ending

CITY OF RAPID CiTY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Enterprise Funds

AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TONET
CASH PROVIDED (HSED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconciie Opesating Income to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation Expense
Landfili Closure & Postelosure Costs
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Receivables
Inventories
Prepaid Bxpenses
Customer Deposits
Due toffrom Other Funds
Accounts and Other Payables
Accrued Wages Payable
Acerued Other Post Employment Benefits
Accrued Leave Payable

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Aetivities

Noncash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities:
1,085 on Disposal of Capital Assets Not Affecting
Cperating Income
Contribution of Assets from Others

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

10t Cash and Cash Equivalents
106 Cash with Fiscal Agent, Restricted
107 Restricted Cash {Note 16)

Solid Waste Civic Center
Water Wastewater Adrport MER/Compost Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Funi Fund
§ 13,234,13596 % 9,927,797.26 $ 5,487,933.58 $ 3,502,31270 & 561 884393
(6,599.88) 671,474.44 - (188,709.10)
(1,597,885.39} (3,087,603.28) (1,732,358,70) (1,152,057.35) (4,000,234.60)
(2,088,550,13) (1,653,540,63) (1,042,871.33) (1,001,028.47) {3,648,150.55)
181,593.94 £60,000.00) - B .
9,722,684 50 5,798,121.79 1,812,703,55 1,349,226.88 (2,218,250.32)
ACTIVITIES:
- - 171,435.97 - 3,291,321.09
1,296,360,71 1,250,409.29 3,500,000,00 - -
{247,333.00) {154,259.00) - (34,057.95) {149,866.00)
1,045,025 71 |.096,150.29 3,677,133.97 {54,097.95) 3,141,455.09
260,915.00 11,968,511.00 11,675,000.00 - -
- 821,310.00 6,609,669.50 - -
(20,154,814 .04} {6,910,529.51) (16,398,333 46} (73,446.59) (1,403,273.49)
- (5,843,232.72)  (13,999,399.12) (523.926.51) (296,379.32)
(2,386,485.01) (445,316.76) (842,266.88) {149,292.03} (754,423.12}
£,668.08 - 480.60 84540085 -
(22.273,715.97) (4,409,251.9%) {12,855.049.36) 98,734 .52 (1,954,075.93)
527.097.24 146,693 84 129,641 75 93.682.76 17,818.98
527,097.24 146,693 84 128,641.75 95,682.76 1781898
(10,974,858.52) 2,631.713.93 {7,335,568,09} 1,489,546.21 (1.013,052,18)
44,734,313.3% 3,796,813.37 18,340,944 .53 3,864,438.44 1,762,601.22
§ 3375941486 § 6 42852730 § 1100537654 $ 535398465 3 749.549.04
3 5,587,973.47 % 3,252 571.58 & (690,977.98) § 70402031 $  (4.151.40529)
2,525,346.60 1,778,185.59 1,549,852.48 525,494.33 1,910,263.94
(269,584.18) {63,067.98) 139,442.56 (88,451.62) 215,820.42
(8,164.86) 334775 - “ {16,624.67)
10,218.13 (127,245 00 (207,137.50) 4,38683 4,833,05
46,318.08 - - . -
+74,594,06 614,474.44 - - (188,709.10)
1,641,57698 372,159.16 568,270.12 95,111.38 {9,977.66)
605.12 ($,269.71) (1,913.64) 5,983.76 (2,979.85)
12,222.03 12,413.98 15,971.84 8,93628 19.942.56
{3,810.93) (32,452,02) 39,189.67 3,745.59 577.28
§ 072269450 § 579812779 $ 1,512,703.35 % 1,349,22688 £ (2218 250,32}
8 {72,147.98) & (277181119 8 (442,734.16) 3 1486797 & (44,404.69)
161,700.00 558,600.00 - - -
$ 1,841,354.15 $ 529195731 $ 2,193929.68 3 4,592,89393 § 153,225.54
31,918,060.71 1,136,569.99 8,811 44686 76168072 506,323 .50
$ 3375941486 % $.428,527.30 & 1100537654 § 535398465 $ 749,549.04

The notes 1o the Tinancial stateinents are &n integral part of this statement.
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Nonmajor
Proprictary
Funds

Totals

Intermal
Service Funds

§ 1037724166 %

48,148,265.00 %

21,195,01 497,364.47 7,381,328.22
(4.278,565.04)  (15,848,704.36) (7.331 816.57)
(4375653513 (14,709,794.62) (86,935.86)

(76,299.58) 45.294,36 -
1.667.922.54 18,132,424.04 (37,424.21)

- 3,468,457 06 -
1,108,283,39 7,155,053 39 -

{70,300,95) (675,858.50) -
1,037.982.44 9,947,651.55 -

. 23,904,426.00 -
. 7,430,979.50 -
(LA36,263.47)  {46,376,860.96) .
(500,526.12)  (25,163,463,79) -
(241,738.69) (4,319,521 .59) -

73,449.92 925,998.65 -
{2,105,077.76) _ (43,598,442.49) .

151.579.49 1,068,914.06 461,361 07

151,979.49 1,068.914.06 461,361.07

752,806.71 (14.449.451.94) 423,936,586
4,873,527.21 71.372,638.25 8,854,486.99

§ 562633392 § 6292318631 9,278,423 85
§ 94022941 $  5732417.50 § (21,182, 14)
1.234,133.86 £,923,280.80 -

46,702.38 46,702.38 -

(544,600.07} {610,431.87) (2,355.19)

- (21,441.78) -

2,069.38 {312,875.09} .

. 46,318.08 .

(110,850.90) 486,008.50 .
43,623.39 2,710,763 37 (13,742.69)
641055 1,163,177 55.81

36883.53 111,376.22 -

13.321.01 20,570.50 -

S 166792254 $  18,13242494 8 (3742421}
$ (57.565.66) & (879,795.71) § -

. 720,300.00 -
§ 396654289 § 18039,903.60 $ 9,278,423 85

278,734.82 43,502,226.60 .

1.381,056.) 1 1,381.056.11

§ 562633352

62,923,18631 %

9,278,423.85




CITY OF RAPID CITY
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2011

Agency
Funds
ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 647,22991
Investments 313,251.53
TOTAIL ASSETS $  960,481.44
LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable $  96,586.34
Due to Other Organizations 863,895.10
Total Liabilities $ 960,48144

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. REPORTING ENTITY

The City of Rapid City (the City) has a Mayor-Council form of government. The vOters of Rapid City at
large elect the Mayor for two years on a full-time basis. The City is divided into five wards. Voters of
each ward elect two City Council members for two years on 2 part-time basis. Executive power is
vested in the Mayor; legislative power is vested in the Council. The Mayor has veto power, which the
Council may supersede by a vote of seven members.

The funds included in this report are controlled by or dependent upon the City’s governing board. The
accounting policies of the City conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, as applicable to governments.

The City’s financial reporting entity is comprised of the foliowing:
Primary Government: City of Rapid City
Discretely Presented Component Units: Museum Alliance of Rapid City

In determining the financial reporting entity, the City complies with the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 14, «The Financial Reporting Entity” and inciudes the
component unit of which the City appointed a voting majority of the unit’s board and the City is either
able to impose its will on the anit or a financial benefit or burden relationship exists.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Discretely presented component units are separate legal entities that meet the component unit criteria
described above but do not meet the criteria for blending. Accordingly, it is presented in a separate,
discrete column in the financial statements.

The Museum Alliance of Rapid City, Inc. (MARC), a separate non-profit corporation, was formed as a
special agent of the City for the design and construction of a new museum, and to operate and maintain
the museum upon completion of the construction. The MARC is reported as a component unit on the
City’s Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities as the MARC is financially dependent on
the City. A complete financial statement can be obtained at the MARC Administrative Office, located
at 222 New York St., Rapid City SD 57701,

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
Government-Wide F inancial Statements.

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities display information about the primary
government, They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds (agency funds).
Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of interna! activities, The statements
distinguish between governmental and business-type activities and discretely presented component
units. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and
other non-e¢xchange revenues. Business-type activities rely to a significant extent on fees charged to
external parties for goods or services. Discretely presented component units are legally separate
organizations that meet certain criteria, as described in note 1.A, above, and may be classified ag either
governmental or business-type activities. See the discussion of individual component units in Note

1.A., above.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program reveinues for
each segment of the business-type activities of the  City and for each function of the City’s
governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program Of
function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function, Program revenues include (a)
charges paid by recipients of goods or services offered by the program, and (b) grants and contributions
that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues
that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, ar¢ presented as general revenues.
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CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: {Continued)
B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued)
Fund Financial Statements:

The fund financial statements provide information about the City’s funds, including fiduciary funds,
each of which is considered to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing
a separate set of self-balancing accounts that constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and
expendituresfexpenses. Separate statements for each fund category — governmental, proprietary and
fiduciary - are presented.

An emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental and proprietary categories, each
displayed in a separate column. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the
- City or meets the following criteria:

1. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual
governmental or enterprise funds are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for
all funds of that category or type, and

2. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditure/expenses of the individual
governmental fund or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total
for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below:

Governmental Funds

(Feneral Fund

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City and is always classified as a major fund. It
is used to account for all activities except those legaily or administratively required to be accounted for
in other funds.

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legaily
restricted to expenditures for certain purposes.

Debt Service Funds

Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of,
general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs in relation to the various tax increment
districts that have been established.

Permanent Fund

The Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund accounts for assets held by the City pursuant to a trust agreement.

The principal portion of this fund type must remain intact, but the earnings may be used to achieve the
objectives of the fund.
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CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)
B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued)
Proprietary Funds
Enterprise Funds

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in @ manner
similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that the costs
(expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on 2 contineing
basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has
decided that periodic determination of revenues carned, expenses incurred, andfor net income is
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other

purposes.
Internal Service Funds

Internal Service Funds are used fo account for financing of goods or services provided by one
department or agency o other departments or agencies on a cost reimbursement basis, The City
maintains five internal service funds: Medical Insurance, Liability Insurance, Unemployment Insurance,
Dental Insurance and Workers’ Compensation Insurance. These funds are utilized to account for the
corresponding insurances. Internat Service Funds are never considered to be major funds.

Fidueiary Funds (Not included in government-wide statements)

Agency Funds

Agency funds account for assets held by the City in a purely custodial capacity. The reporting entity
includes three agency funds. Since agency funds are custodial in nature (i.e. assets equal liabilities),

they do not involve the measurement of resulis of operations. Agency funds are never considered to be
major funds. The agency funds are as follows:

Fund Brief Description
Payroll Withholding Fund To account for amounts withheld from payroll for various

purposes including pension withholdings, savings bond
purchases and insurance.

Section 125 Fund To account for pre-tax withholdings from employees,
directed for medical or childcare,

Deposits held for Others To account for deposits held for various individuals and
organizations.
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CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued)

Majer Funds:

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

Fund
General

Special Revenue Funds:
Vision 2012 Fund

Consolidated Construction Fund

Utility Facilities Fund

Brief Description
The General Fund is used to account for all activities

except those legally or administratively required to be
accounted for in other funds.

Established by Rapid City Municipal Ordinance Chapter
3.16.060 to account for sales tax revenues received to
finance debt service and capital construction relating to
Economic Development (25%), Civic Improvements
(25%) and Municipal Infrastructure (50%).

Established by Rapid City Municipal Ordinance Chapter
3.16.060 to account for sales tax revenues received to
finance debt service and capital construction related fo the
City’s long-term infrastructure plans.

Established by Rapid City Municipal Ordinance Chapter
3.16.060 to account for sales tax revenue received to
finance debt service and capital construction related to the
City’s long-term water and sewer plans.

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

Water Fund

Wastewater Fund

Airport Fund

Solid Waste MRF/Compost Fund

Civic Center

Financed primarily by user charges, this fund accounts for
the construction and operation of the municipal
waterworks system and related facilities. (SDCL 9-47-1)

Financed primarily by user charges, this fund accounts for
fhe construction and operation of the municipal sewer
system and related facilities. (SDCL 9-48-2)

Financed primarily by user charges and grants, this fund
accounts for revenues and expenditures of the municipal
airport and current grant activities.

Financed primarily by user charges, this fund accounts for
the construction and operation of the municipal recycling
and composting.

Financed primarity by user fees and third penny sales tax

(SDCL 10-52), this fund accounts for the operation of the
municipal civic center.,
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CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued)
Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus is a term used to describe “how” transactions are recorded within the various
statements. Basis of accounting refers to “when” revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized
in the accounts and reported in the financial statements, regardless of the measurement focus.

1. The government-wide Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities, as well as the
proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements arc reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting, Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the Hability
is incurred regardiess of when the related cash flow takes place. Revenues, expenses, gains,
losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like fransactions are
recognized when the exchange takes place.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly
receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, inciude property taxes, grants, entitlements and
donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for
which the taxes are levied. Revenues from grants, entitlements and donations are recogized
in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Internal service funds are used by management t0 charge the costs of certain activities, such as
insurance, to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are
included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets.

2. In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the modified accrual
basis of accouniing. Under this modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized
when “measurable and availabie.” Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably
estimate the amount. Available means coliectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay current labilities. The City considers significant revenues in the
governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within 60 days of year-end.

Expenditures (inciuding capital outlay) are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred,
except for general long-term debt principal and interest and compensated absences which are
reported when due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. Proceeds of general Jong-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases
are reported as other funding sources.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the City funds certain programs by a combination of
specific cost reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus, when
program expenses aré incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets available to
finance the program. It is the City’s policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to
such programs, followed by categotical block grants where applicable, then by general

revenues.

Proprictary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonocperating revenues, such as subsidies and
investment earnings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.
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CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)
B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued)

All governmental funds utilize a “current financial resources” measurement focus. Only current
financial assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their operating statemenis
present sources and uses of available spendable financial resources during a given peried. These funds
use fund balance as their measure of available spendable financial resources at the end of the period.

The City follows the pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB),
which is the nationally accepted standard setting body for establishing accounting principals generally
accepted in the United States of America, for governmental entities. For the government-wide and
proprietary fund statements, the City follows alt applicable GASB pronouncements. The City does not
follow Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and interpretations issued after
November 30, 1989,

C. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS CREDIT RISK, CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK
AND INTEREST RATE RISK

The City foliows the practice of aggregating the cash assets of various funds to maximize cash
management efficiency and returns. Various restrictions on deposits and investments are imposed by
statutes. These restrictions are summarized below:

Deposits - The City’s deposits are made in qualified public depositories as defined by SDCL 4-6A-1, 9-
22-6, 9-22-6.1 and 9-22-6.2. Qualified depositories are required by SDCL 4-6A-3 to maintain at ali
times, segregated from their other assets, eligible collateral having a value equal to at least 100 percent
of the public deposit accounts which exceed deposit insurance such as the FDIC and NCUA. In lieu of
pledging eligible securities, a qualified public depository may furnish irrevocable standby letters of
credit issued by federal home Joan banks accompanied by written evidence of that bank’s public debt
rating which may not be less than “AA” or a qualified public depository may furnish a corporate surety
bond of a corporation authorized to do business in South Dakota.

Investments — In general, SDCL 4-5-6 permits municipalities’ funds to be invested only in (a) securities
of the United States and securities guaranteed by the United States Government gither directly or
indirectly; or (b) repurchase agreements fully collateralized by securities described in (a) above; or in
shares of an open-end, no-load fund administered by an investment company whose investments are in
securities described in (a) above and repurchase agreements described in (b) above. Also, SDCL 4-5-9
requires investments to be in the physical custedy of the political subdivision or may be deposited ina
safekeeping account with any bank or trust company designated by the political subdivision as its fiscal
agent.

Investments are reported at fair value. Accordingly, changes in the market value of investments at year
end are reflected as a component of earnings on investments.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - For the purpose of the proprietary funds’ Statements of Cash Flows, the

City considers all highly liquid investments and deposits, including restricted assets, with a term to
maturity of three months or less at the date of acquisition, to be cash equivalents,
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CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)
C. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents, continued -

equivalents” includes ail demand, savings accounts and cash management pools of the C
“cash and cash equivalents” includes all demand and

of the proprietary fund Statement of Cash Flows,

For the purpose of the Statement of Net Assets, “cash and cash
ity. For the purposes

savings accounts and cash management pools that have the general characteristics of demand deposit
accounts in that the governmental enterprise may deposit additional cash at any time and also effectively may
withdraw cash at any time without prior notice or penaity. All investments are excluded. All components of

investment income are included in interest income, including gains and losses.

Cash with Fiscal Agent — As of December 31, 2011, the City had the following in the cash with fiscal agent

accounts;
Investment Credit Total ! ess than 1-5 Years 5-10 Years
1 Year

Money Market N/A 7,059,144.01 7,059,144 .01
Certificates of Deposit N/A 2,919,000.00 2.919,000.00
Repurchase Agreement N/A 31,447,952.86 27,805,477.86 3,642,475.00
1S Treasury Note AAA 3,881,532.76 3,881,532.76
U8 Government Sponsored Enterprises:

Freddie Mac Bonds AAA 4259,814.77 4,259,814.77

Fannie Mae AAA 1,419,233.20 1,419,233.20
Total 50,986,677.60 47,344,202.60 3.642,475.00 -
Investments - As of December 31, 2011, the City had the following investments:

Investment Credit Total Less than 1-5 Yeats 5-10 Years 10 Years or
1 Year More

US Treasury Bonds N/A 224,231.31 224,231.31
US Treasury Notes N/A 8,727.950.78] 104,107.69 3,871,901.12 | 2,404,33 1.86 | 2,347,610.11
Tennessee Valiey Authority AAA 127,651.10 127,651.10
US Federal Agency Obligations:

GNMA (Ginnic Mae) Pool AAA, 496,410.33 19,792.37 26,129.88 450,488.08

USDA AAA 1,146,318.34 158,716.64 987.601.70
US Government Sponsored Enterprises:

FNMA (Fannie Mae) Pool AAA 9,858,400.66] 470,463.89 3,716,785.73 | 459,013.18 5,212,137.86

FNMA Notes AAA 3,853,876.61 1.710,988.34 | 142.888.27

FNMA Bond AAA 524.875.00 524,875.00

FHLMC (Freddic Mac) Pool AAA 1 10,016,297.2511,225,367.59 2.445,832,53 | 611,987.56 5,733,109.66

FHLMC Debentures AAA 694,023 .45 694,023.45

FHLMC Notes AAA 5235.009.84] 250,517.50 4,340,539.84 | 643,952.50

FFCB Bonds AAA 209,390.00 209,390.00

FHLE Bonds AAA 1,636,796.16 1,351,206.00 | 285,590.16
Tota} 42,751,230.83] 2,050,456.58 70.885,334.38] 4.732,610.03 15,082,829.82

Presented in thes
Statement of Net Assets
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

42,437,979.30
313,251.53
42,751,230.83
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CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)
C. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (Continued)

All investments with original maturities greater than 18 months at the time of purchase are redeemable
at the City’s option, assuming the investments are marketable.

Interest Rate Risk — Pursuant to the City’s investment policy, portfolio duration must always remain
within 1 to 5 years with individual securities required to have a maturity between 30 day Treasury Bills
and final maturity of 30 years as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from
increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk — State law limits eligible investments for the City, as discussed above. The City has no
investment policy that would further limit its investment choices.

Concentration of Credit Risk — The City limits the maximum holding per issue to 10%. More than 5
percent of the City’s investments are in repurchase agreements which comprise 29% of the investments.

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments - The City’s investment policy does not restrict the maximum
holding per custodial account.  All investments are held in the City's name with Merril} Lynch, RBC,
Edward Jones, Wells Fargo and MidFirst Bank serving as custodians,

Assignment of Investment Income —~ State law allows income from deposits and investments to be
credited to either the General Fund or the fund making the investment. The City’s policy is to credit all
income from investments fo the fund making the investment, except for interest generated by the
Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund, which must be credited to the General Fund, and used only for
maintenance of the municipal cemetery, as required by SDCL 9-32-18.

INTERFUND ELIMINATIONS AND RECLASSIFICATIONS
In the process of aggregating data for the government-wide financial statements, some of the amounts
reported as interfund activities have been eliminated or reclassified as follows:

a. In order to minimize the grossing-up effect on assets and liabilities within the government and
business-type activities columns of the primary government, amounts reported as interfund
receivables and payables have been eliminated in the governmental and business-type

activities columns, except for the net, residual amounts due between govemmental and
business-type activities, which are presented as internal balances.

b. In order to minimize the doubling-up effect on the internal services fund activity, certain
“centratized expenses” including administrative overhead component, are charged as direct
expenses to the funds or programs in order to show all expenses that are associated with a
service, program, department, or fund. When expenses are charged in this manner, expense
reduction occurs in the General Fund, so that expenses are only reported in the function to
which they relate.

Fund Finaneial Statements

During the course of operations, numerous sransactions oceur between individual funds that may result
in amounts owed between funds. Those related to goods and service type transactions are classified as
“due to and from other funds.” Long-term interfund loans (noncurrent portion) are reported as
«advances from and to other funds” and are equally offset by a fund balance reserve account, which
indicates they are not a component of current assets, and do not constitute “available spendable
resources.” Interfund receivables and payables between funds within governmental activities and within
the business-type activities are eliminated in the Statement of Net Assets, See Note 5 for details of
interfund transactions, including receivables and payables at year-end.
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CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)
C. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY, (Continued)

RECEIVABLES

Receivables are not aggregated in these financial statements. The City expects all receivables o be
collected within one year; except for the Infrastructure Development Parinership Fund Notes
Receivables totaling $2,418,975.97 at December 31, 2011 that have a maximum repayment term of 10
years. Appropriate atlowances for estimated uncollectible accounts have been established based on the
City’s knowledge of current environmental conditions and historical losses.

Business-Type Activities: Business Type Activities receivables are comprised of amounts owed to the
City by City residents for services rendered such as water and sewer and interest income receivable.

Governmental Activities: Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 of
each year. Taxes are Jevied on or before October 1 and payable in two installments on or before April
30 and October 31 of the following year. The county bills and collects the City’s taxes and remits them
to the City.

The City is permitted by state statute to Jevy the following amounts of taxes per $1,000 of taxable
vatuation of the property in the City:

General Fund $27
Bond Redemption Funds Amounts Reguired by Bond Agreements
Judgment Fund (Upon J udgment Being Made) $10

State statute allows the tax rates to be raised by special election of the voters.

RESTRICTED ASSETS

Certain assets are classified as resiricted on the Statement of Net Assels. These restrictions include
those imposed by debt indenture covenants, tax increment financing district developer agreements,
federal grant agreements, State law regarding use of cemetery perpetual care funds and landfili
closure/post closure funds.

CAPITAL ASSETS

The City’s policy is to capitalize furniture, equipment and machinery with an initial cost greater than
$5,000 and a life expectancy exceeding one year and buildings and improvements with an initial cost
greater than $15,000.

Capital assets include fand, buildings, improvements other than buildings, machinery and equipment,
infrastructure, and ail other tangible or intangible assets that are used in operations and that have initial
useful lives extending beyond a single reporting period. Infrastructure assets, inciuding roads and
bridges are long-lived capital assets that normally are stationary in nature and normally can be
preserved for a significantly greater number of years than most capital assets.

The accounting treatment for property, plant and equipment (fixed assets) depends on whether the
assets are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are
reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements.

Government-Wide Statements

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual cost is unavailable,
except for donated capital assets that are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation
and capital assets donated by developers, which are recorded at estimated cost. Historical cost was used
to value the majority of the assets.

Infrastructure assets used in general government operations acquired prior to January 1, 1980, were not

required to be capitalized by the City. Infrastructure assets acquired since January 1, 1980 have been
valued at historical cost and are classified as Improvements.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)
C. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY, (Continued)

Government-Wide Statements (Continued)

For governmental activities, capital asset interest cOstS incutred during construction of capitai assets are
not capitalized along with other capital asset costs in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States. For business-type activities, capital asset interest costs incurred during
construction of capital assets are capitalized along with other capital assets costs in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles in the United States.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of

Activities, with the net capital assets reflected in the Statement of Net Assets. Accumu

depreciation is reported on the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and on each proprietary
fund’s Statement of Net Assets/Balance Sheet. Depreciation is provided over the assets’ estimated
useful lives using the straight-line method of depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives by type

of asset and the capitalization threshold is as follows:

Buildings 25-50 years $ 15,000
Improvements 10-50 years $ 15,000
Machinery and Equipment 3-20 years $ 5,000
Utility System 25-50 years $ 15,000
Infrastructure 25-50 years $ 15,000

Land is an inexhaustible asset and is not depreciated. Construction in Progress is not depreciated.

Fund Financial Statements

Ins the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for

as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition.

Fixed assets used in proprietary fund operations are accounted for on the accrual basis, the same 2

the government-wide statements.

INVENTORIES

Inventories in ali funds are stated at the lower of cost or market, using the first-in, first-out method.
Inventories consist of sand, salt and chemicals for snow removal, service connection repair materials
and concession items. Inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed, rather than when

purchased.

Material supply inventories are off-set by a fund balance reserve which indicates they do not constitute

“available spendable resources” even though they are a component of net current assels.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay
benefits. All vacation time and estimated retirement severance are accrued when incurred in
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements and recorded as an expenditure in the

governmental fund statements when the employees use the benefits.

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The accounting treatment of long-term liabilities depends on whether the assets are used in
governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the

government-wide or fund financial statements.

All long-term liabilities to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources are reported as
liabilities in the government-wide statements. The long-term Habilities consist primarily of bonds

payable, other post-employment benefits liability and compensated absences.

36
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)

C. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY, {Continued)

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

Long-term Habilities for governmental funds are not reported as Habitities in the fund financial
statements. The debt proceeds are reported as revenue and payment of principal and interest is reported
as expenditures when they become due. The accounting for proprietary funds is on the accrual basis, the
same in the fund statenents as it is in the government-wide statements.

EQUITY CLASSIFICATIONS
Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Net Assets
Equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components:

1. Invested in capital assets, net of refated debt — Consists of capital assets including restricted capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds or other
borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

2. Restricted net assets — Consists of net assets with constraints piaced on the use either by 1) external
groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments, OF 2) law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legistation.

3. Unrestricted net assets — All other net assets that do not meet the definition of wrestricted” or “invested in

capital assets, net of refated debt”.

Government fund equity is classified as fund balance, and may distinguish between “Nonspendable”,
“Restricted”, “Committed”, “Assigned” and “Unassigned” components. Proprietary fund equity is classified
the same as in the government-wide financial statements, Agency Funds have no fund equity. The new
assets are reported as net assets held in agency capacity.

It is the City’s policy to first use restricted net assets, prior to the use of unrestricted net assets, when an
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

Governmental Fund Balances
In accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 54, Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions, the City classifies governmental fund balances as foliows:

1. Nonspendable — includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because it is not in spendable
form or because of legal or contractual constraints,

5. Restricted ~ includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes which are
externally imposed by providers, such as creditors or amounts constrained due to constitutional
provisions ot enabling legislation.

3. Committed - includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes that are internally
imposed by the government through formal action of the highest level of decision making authority and
does not lapse at year end. To be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose
unless the City takes the same, or higher, level action to remove or change the consiraint. The City
council establishes {(and modifies or rescinds) fund balance commitments by passage of an ordinance.

4. Assigned — inciudes fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific purposes that are
peither considered restricted or committed. Fund Balance may be assigned by the City Council or by an
official or body to which the City Council delegates the authority. Assigned fund balance is established
by the City Council through adoption or amendment of the budget as intended for specific purpose.

5. Unassigned — includes positive fund balance within the General Fund which has not been classified
within the above mentioned categories and negative fund balances in other governmental funds.

The City uses restricted/committed amounts first when both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is
available uniess there are legal documents/contracts that prohibit doing this, such as a grant agreement
requiring dotlar for dollar spending. Additionally, the City would first use committed, then assigned, and
lastly unassigned amounts of unrestricted fund balances when expenditures are made.

The City does not have a forma) minimum fund balance policy.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)
C. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY, (Continued)
PROGRAM REVENUE

Program revenues derive directly from the program itself or from parties other than the City’s taxpayers
or citizenry, as a whole. Program revenues are classified into three categories as foilows:

a. Charges for services — These arise from charges to customers, applicants or others who purchase,
use or directly benefit from the goods, services or privileges provided or are otherwise directly
affected by the services.

b. Program-specific operating grants and contributions - These arise from mandatory and voluntary
non-exchange transactions with other governments, organizations, or individuals that are
restricted for use in a particular program.

c. Program-specific capital grants and contributions — These arise from mandatory and voluntary
non-exchange transactions with other governments, organizations or individuals that are
restricted for the acquisition of capital assets for use in a particular program.

DEFERRED REVENUE

The governmental fund financial statements are presented under the modified accrual basis of
accounting; therefore, receivables may be measurable but not available. Available means collectable
within the current period or soon enough thereafter (or 60 days) to be used to pay liabilities of the
current period. Reported deferred revenues, which include property tax and special assessment
revenue, are those where asset recognition criteria have been met but for which revenue recognition
criteria have not been met.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS REVENUE AND EXPENSE CLASSIFICATION

In the proprietary funds Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets, revenues
and expenses are classified in a manner consistent with how they are classified in the Statement of Cash
Fiows. That is, transactions for which related cash flows are reported as capital and related financing
activities, noncapital financing activities, or investing activities are not reported as components of
operating revenues or expenses.
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NOTE 2. CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended Decermber 31, 201

Governmental activities:
Capital Assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in Progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated

Gapltal Assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and Bquipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

1ess accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
improvements
Machinery and Equipment

Totat accumiiated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Beginning
Balance

4%,883,812.38
10,551,134.60

1 was as follows!

Increases

23,128,850.71

Decreases

pEi-izihn o

3 (7.250.00)

{19,653,151.84)

“

Ending
Balance

41,976,662.28
14,026,933.47

52,534,946.98

66,516,415.48
244,061,766.95
26,108,308.56

23,128,950.71

18,612,007.53
584,233.28

(19,660,401.84)

(98,520.29)
(28,069.05)
(120,976.47)

55,003,495.85

65,417,495.19
262,644,785.43
28,571,566.37

336,686,491,99

(12,360,568.37}
{402,296,660.68)
(17,246,815.18)

19,196,240.81

(4,217,335.35)
{14.536,142.67)
{1,862,309.33)

(248,885.81)

48,100.96
24,528.22
83,771.43

355,633,846.99

(13,529,802.7%)
{113,808,276.13)
(19,039,353.09)

{131,904,044.18}

204,782,447.80

(54,635,787.35)

4,5580,453.46

162,397.61

(86,488.20)

(146,377,433.93)

209,256,413.06

257,317,384.78_ $ 27,689,404.17

3 {19,746,890.04) § 265,269,808.91

Depreciation expense was charged to functions within governmental funds as follows:

Tota! General Government

Total Public Safety

Total Health and Welfare

Total Public Works

Total Cutture and Recreation

Total Communtty /Economic Development

Total Governmental depreciation expense
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714,737.55
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11,503,011.05
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14,0567.37
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CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2. CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Capital asset activity in pusiness-type funds for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 was as follows:

Business-type activities:
Capital Assets not being depreciated:

Beginning
Balance

Increases

PRl ouhl

Ending

Degreases Balance

l.and $ 1581180666 % - $ {31,700.00) $ 16,780,106.66

Construction in Progress 29,143,9230.07 45,157,435.06 (26,714,898.45) 47 586,456.68
Tolal capital assets not being depreciated 44,055,736.73 45,157,435.08 (26,746,598.45) 63,366,5673.34
Capital Assets being depreciated:

Buildings 136,014,304.88 5,907,814.08 {1,581 8,843.71) 141,303,275.23

tmprovements 241,126,812.07 21,639,600.23 (265,355.22) 262,404,057.08

Maehinery and Equipment 24,607,325.14 1,207,210.06 (1,085,114.34 24,729,420.86
Totai capital assels heing depreciated 402,651,442.08 28,654,624.35 (2,869,31&27) 428,436,753.17
Less accumulaied depreciation for:

Buildings {40,747,662.79) (2,681,760.59} 047 ,843.75 (42,451,479.63)

Improvemants (89,847,389.90} {5,656,916.94) 131,044.56 (95,373,262.28}

Machinery and Equipment (13,800,070.33) (1,684,803.27) 942,329.26 (14,242,344.35)
Total accumulated depreciation (144,165,023.02) {9,923,280.80) 2,021,217.56 (152,087,086.26)
Totat capital assets being depreciated, net 258,486,419.07 18,731,343.65 (848,005.71) 276,369,666.81

Business-type activities capital assets, nat

Depreciation expense was charged to business-type funds as follows:

Total Water Enterprise

$ 303,442,156.80 § 63,888,778.61

$ {27,504,694.16) § 339,736,240.25

$ 2,525,346.50

Total Wastewater Enterprise 4,778,189.59
Total Alrport Enterprisa 1,049,852.48
Total Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise 371,137,168
Total Solid Waste/MRF Enterprise 525,494.33
Total Civic Center Enterprise 1,910,263.94
Total Solid Waste Coliection Enterprise 351,425.18
Total Executive Goif Enterprise 18,604.80
Total Cemetery Enterprise 27,914.91
Total Golf Cowrse Enterprise 72,788.32
Tota! Parking Lot Avea Enterprise 88,349.57
Tolal Ambulance Enterprise 217,271.20
Total Energy Plant Enterprise 19,953.42

56,688.90

Tota! Transportation Terminal £nterptise

Total Enterprise depreciation expense

40

$ 9,923,280.80
S



CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3. CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS

Construction commitments in the amount of approximately $32.6 million as of December 31, 2011
were as follows:

Tetal Costs
Governmental Activities Project Number  Project Description As.of 12/31/2011  Total Conlract Remaining
¥ outh and Family Services Kitchen 488,734.18 490,0600,00 1,265,682
Skyline Wilderness Tralls 20,000.00 38,000.00 18,000.00
FO11-1953 Firp Station #4 Addition 78,302.25 223,775.00 14647276
TRAKIT Software 84,000.00 158,000.00 94,600.00
WTP1G-878 Canyon {.ake Drive Reconstruction 1,819,008.69 3,161,116.06 1,342,17.37
$T04-1387 East Anamosa Street Extension 174,742.43 542,700,867 367,858.24
SBWO7-1472  Anemosa Water & Sewer 3,121,863 6,870.00 3,748.37
STOT-1473 Anamosa Street Ulilties 8,777.02 20,255.00 11,477.98
DRO5-1483 Good Samaritan Detention Facility 25,986.25 34,000.00 8.003,75
S8W08-1509% Jacksoh Blvd Ulititles 124,033.68 126,008.33 974.65
ST08-1514 £ Bivd/E North Recanstruction 1,273,113.12 1.526,247.00 262,133.88
SSWO7-1656  Silver Strest 894,641.80 §33,802.51 39,260.71
DROT-1678 Frontier Place Reconstruction 220,157.00 223,697.47 3,440.47
PWOCB-1743 Canyon Lake Reconstruction 317,363,52 3094,772.00 77,418.47
STH0-1777 Eim Ave Reconstruction 17,635.08 124,790.00 107,154.92
STO9/MG-1817  Downtown Street Improvement 2,675,323.16 2,828773.76 151,450.60
SEWI0-1837 Jackson Bivd Ulilities &,666,67 47,084.00 40,418.33
DR11-183G Raret Road Drainage Channel 18,513,656 19,024.95 511.40
OR10-1870 Gounty Heights Drainage Basin 48,702,353 85,350.00 16,647.67
SiG11-1%922 St Patrick/S Valley Traffic Signal 30,192,458 36,901.06 6,798.61
SSW11-1826 Mt Rushmore Utilities 34,005,62 116,958.50 82,653.98
5710-1808 Campbell St Box Culvent 1,868,388,28 1,812,881.32 44,193.04
Total Governmental Activities 10,211,497.62  13,026,798.63 2,815,301.01
Byl T -
Rushmore Crossing 1,703,687 .90 1,806,000.00 102,332.10
WTP10.-878 Canyon lake Drive Reconstruction 4,884,912.07 6,638,225.31 1,754,313.24
ST04-1397 East Anamosa Street Extension 860,573.74 1,798,370.37 §37,796,63
SSW07-1472  Anamosa Waler & Sewer £62,838.98 B47,056.50 84,217.52
STO7-1473 Anamosa Streel Utilities 23,163.48 53,455.00 30,291.62
DR05-1483 Good Samaritan Detention Facllity 42.817.37 56,000.00 13,182.83
SSW09-1500  Jackson Blwd Utllities 414,374.61 42645067 12,071.08
$7T08-1611 £ Bivd/E North Reconstruction 858,710,156 1,404,796.07 546,068.92
SSWO7-1656  Silver §t 1,843,876.32 1,947,734.30 134,158.98
DRO7-1679 Froptier Place Reconstruction 119,264.45 127,063.65 7,798.20
W0B-1702 Kepps Watermain Extension 912,889.07 928,236.56 15,337.48
ST08-1763 Malt Drive Uthity Reconstruction 173,086.00 416,2683.00 243,177.60
STHO-1777 Fim Ave Reconstruction 4,429.08 32,000.00 27,570.84
ST10-1782 Norihridge Water Storage 4,808,534.04 2,491,000.00 681,465.96
STOO/40-1817  Downtown Streel improvement 263,849.5% 313,363.08 49,513.48
SSW00-1819  Catron Reconstruction Utiities 1,004,086,74 1,597,191.32 593,124.58
S508-1841 Heights Drive Sanitary Sewer 1,918,167.01 1,121,525.24 2,328.23
W08-1836 Jatkson Springs Faciity 3,582,198,90 4,057,533.41 475,334.42
SSW10-1837  Jackson Bivd Utilities 26,075.83 177,127.00 152,081.17
W10-1845 Kepps Reserveir Control Vaive Station 197,129.88 507 811.060 310.781.14
8510-1852 Rapid Creak Trunk Sewer 268,823.55 304,687.00 35,757.45
WTP40-1858  Jackson Springs Water Treatment 4,280,928.12  21,708,127.00 17.427,197.88
W10-1879 Water Rosevok 138,883.17 156,214.00 17,230.83
WRF10-1883  WRF Piimary Digesler Cover 850,836.88 87921800 28,381.12
W10-1890 North Pingdale Reservair St Martin 1,686,207.85 1,667,263,12 91,058.17
W10-1894 Dakota Drive Water Main Reclamation #8,737.63 85,867 00 19,128.07
wWi0-1898 Northridge Waler Boos! Stallen 652,286.98 738,435,78 46,148.80
11-1808 £ St Joe Overlay and Watermain 25,830.72 $4,$62.00 69,03%.28
SEW11.1828 Mt Rushmorg Utilities 17,444.78 80,000.00 42,58522
$510-1038 Enchantod Plnes Drive 11.510.00 45,110.00 3,600.00
55W11-1048  Seger Drive & Dyess Sanltary Sewer 336,6561.03 1,039,313.70 70266267
Taxiway A Relocation 6,148,367.31 5,163,024,39 34,667.08
Cargo Apron 27,180.38 1156,478.28 88,287 8¢
Main Terminal Expansion 12,654,325.1%  17,284,661.006 4,630,225.087
Flight Information Data System 143,646.14 255,110.00 111,463.66
Energy Plant Retrofit 134,850.00 465,000.00 330,150.00
Total Business.Type Actlvities 46,743,190.40 76,593,660.81 29,850,470.4%
Grand Total 56,954,688.02 89,520,459.44 32,666,771.42

Funding for these projects is provided from dedicated sales tax funds (2012 Fund and Consolidated
Construction funds), grants and charges for services. There are many projects that are included in
Construction in Process line item in Note 2 but are not included in this note because they have either
been substantially completed but not put into service or they are only in the design stage with no
commitment for further construction,
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The reporting entity’s long-term debt is segregated between the amounts to be repaid from

governmental activities and amounts to be repaid from business-type activities.

Governmental Activities:

As of December 31, 2011, the governmental long-term debt of the financial reporting entity consisted of

the following:

Revenue Bonds:

Portion of Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2008
serviced by the Consolidated Construction Special Revenue
Fund (22 percent). Interest paid in 2011 was $20,945.10.
See long-term debt schedule for husiness-type activities for a
fuil description of this bond issue.

$16,270,000 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2005, Due in
semi-annual installments of $290,000 to $915,000 through
June 2016. Interest at 2.65 to 4,75 percent. (This issue is
being serviced by the Utility Facilities Fund.) Interest paid in
2011 was $343,773.75.

$29,190,000 Sales Tax Revenue Ronds, Series 2005b. Due in
eleven semi-annual instaliments of $1,235,000 to $3,090,000
through December 2032, Interest at 4.0 1o 5.0 percent. (This
issue is being serviced by the Vision 2012 Fund Special
Revenue Fund.) Interest paid in 2011 was $510,000.00.

$8,055,000 Sales Tax Revenue Ronds, Series 2007. Interest
only payments are due in years 2007-2012. Semi-annual
principal installments of $1,945,000 to $2,085,000 due June
2013 through December 2014, Interest at 4.5 to 5.0 percent,
(This issue is being serviced by the Vision 2012 Fund
Special Revenue Fund.) Interest paid in 2011 was $3 83,075,

Unamortized deferred premium
Compensated Absences:

Accrued Leave Payable General Fund
Accrued Leave Payable Other Government Funds
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580,800.00

7,610,000.00

6,105,000.00

8,055,000.00

22,350,800.00
598,634.00

$22,949,434.00

1,817,562.33
18,817.02

$1,836,379.37



CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES {Continued)

Financing (Capital Acquisition) Leases
727,295.01 under an agreement with Wells Fargo Brokerage
Services, LLC, dated June 10, 2008 for the purchase of an
aerial fire truck, which is security for the Lease. Due in
semi-annual instaliments of $60,775.84, including interest of
4.33 percent. The final payment is due June 10, 2015, The
tease is serviced by the Consolidated Construction Special
Revenue Fund. Interest paid in 2011 was $20,226.43. $390,857.89

§721,380.00 under an agreement Wwith Welis Fargo
Securities, LLC, dated September 15, 2010. for the purchase
of a fire engine, which is security for the Lease. Due in
annual installments of $197,937.41, including interest of 3.83
percent. The final payment is due September 15, 2014, The

Jease is serviced by the Consolidated Construction Special 551,071.44
Revenue Fund (Fire Department Interest paid in 2011 was

$27,628.85.

Total Leases $941,929.33

The principal amount, above, was included in the appropriate classification of capital assets, and is
being depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset, or the lease term (where title
never transfers), as appropriate.

Tax Increment Financing District (TID) Liabilities

Tax increment financing is a method of financing jimprovements and development in an area which has
been determined to be blighted according to the criteria set forth in SDCL 11-9. In some instances the
City pledges future tax revenues generated by the tax increment district to acquire public improvements

within the established Tax Increment District which were constructed by a private developer.

The City follows GASB 48, Sales and Pledges of Receivables and Future Revenues and Intra-Entity
Transfer of Assets and Future Revenues, in accounting for tax increment financing districts in which the
City has pledged all or some portion of future tax revenues to acquire public improvements within the
established Tax Increment District which were constructed by a private developer. Under GASB 48
these transactions are accounted for as a collateralized borrowing, whereby the City recognizes a
liability and capital assets equal to the amount of the public improvements being acquired. The City
also uses some tax increment districts to fund improvements in which the City has obtained financing or
has used reserves to fund all or some of the improvements, in which case the City follows its general
policies outlined in Note 1.

In cases where the City purchases public improvements from private developers, the City agrees to
deposit all positive tax increments received for that district in a special fund. Once the developer has
completed the agreed upon improvements and has certified to the City the total costs of the
improvements, as well as providing reasonable documentation regarding those costs, the City accepts
and records the public improvement along with the related liability for the acquired assets. The City
then begins making payment to the developer based on the amount of positive tax increments received.

It is a specific condition of the developer’s agreement and a condition of the City’s obligation that all
sums payable shail be limited to the proceeds of the positive tax increment. It is also specifically agreed
that the City has made no representation that the proceeds from such funds shall be sufficient to retire
the indebtedness incurred by the developer to construct the public improvements.

At December 31, 2011, there were 17 active tax increment financing districts in which costs had been
certified in part or in whole. The current principal balances shown below plus interest at the stated
applicable rate over the life of the note represent the amount of future property taxes pledged to fund
improvements related to these tax increment districts that have been cestified as of December 31, 2011,
The maximum payoff amounts represent the amount of future tax revenues that were pledged at the
time of certification. Increment property iaxes are projected to produce 100 % of the maximum debt
service requirements presented below.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

Tax Increment Financing District (TID) Liabilities (Continued)

During the year ended December 31, 2011, principal and interest expenditures and property tax
revenues were $8,719,491.79 and $8,712,800.37, respectively. These amounts include property tax
revenues and principal and interest expenditures related to improvements within tax increment districts
funded with City debt or reserves. Each of the individual debt issues listed below have their own debt

service fund from which the debt is serviced.

TID 29 — Fiberswitch Technology — Created in 1998, maximum

payoff $90,480 including interest at 9.0 percent, expires 10/5/2018. $76,223.32
TID 35 ~ Estes/Elk Creek — Created in 2002, maximum payoff
$514,103 including interest at 7.5 percent, expires 3/18/2022. 23,778.44
TID 38 — Heartland Business — Created in 2003, maximum payoff
$6,360,879 including interest at 6.6 percent, expires 2/13/2023. 1,824,456.25
TID 39 — E Rapid Plaza — Created in 2003, maximun payoff
$1,276,274 including interest at 6.0 percent, expires 4/21/2023. 385,897.30
TID 40 — SoCreek Village — Created in 2003, maximum payoff
$1,140,164 including interest at 7.0 percent, expires 5/19/2023. 511,501.21
TID 41 - 5% Street — Created in 2005, maximum payoff
$4,391,907.25 including interest at 7.5 percent, expires 6/22/2025. 1,634,353.61
TID 44 - Mall Drive — Created in 2004, maximum payoff
§7,822,706.77 including interest at 6.0 percent, expires 4/19/2024. 2,097,692.70
TID 47 - Tower Road — Created in 2004, maximum payoff
$5,027,671.00 including interest at 6.5 percent, expires 10/4/2024. 3,935,452.70
TID 50 — Federal Beef — Created in 2004, maximum payoif
$17,545,368.55 including interest at 6,0 percent, expires 12/20/2024. 4,375,384.10

TID 52 — E. St Charles — Created in 2005, maximum payoff
$1,250,106.68 including interest at 5.85 percent, expires 5/2/2025.

TID 53 — Stony Creek Plaza — Created in 2005, maximum payoff
$3,199,074 including interest at 8.0 to 9.75 percent, expires 7/5/2023,

TID 56 — Rushmore Crossing — Created in 2005, maximum payoff
$24,471,390.38 including interest at 6.75 percent, expires 11/21/2025.

TID 61 — Villagio — Created in 2006, maximum payoff $2,978,711.65

381,769.11

345,575.99

10,255,861.91

including interest at 6.75 percent, expires 10/2/2026. 211,692.20
TID 63 — Copperfield Vistas — Created in 2007, maximum payoff
$8.078,019.27 including interest at 7.5 percent, expires 6/4/2027. 669,141.87
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TID 65 — Minnesota Street — Created in 2007, maximum payoff

$33,956,176.65 including interest at 6.5 percent, expires 9/4/2027. 5,342,194.99
TID 68 - Homestead — Created in 2008, maximum payoff

$2,257,786.04 including interest at 9.0 percent, expires 4/21/2028. 460,201.74
Total Tax Increment District Liabilities 32,531,177.44
Other Post Employment Benefit Liabilities {Note 11} 1,667,251,97
Total Liabilities Payable $59,926,172.11

Total cost and accumulated depreciation for all capital leases utilized in the governmental activities is as
follows:

Gross amount of assets recorded under capital leases $1,648,176.00

Accumulated depreciation — Public Safety (351,359.26)
Net assets recorded under capital leases $1,296.816.74

The annual requirements for maturity for governmental activities long-term debt (excluding
compensated absences and other post empioyment benefits) outstanding as of December 31, 2011, are

as follows:
Year Ending General Debt Obligations Capitat Lease Oblipations TiD Obligations
December 31 Principai Interest Principal [nterest Principal [erest
2012 £,101,399.00 915,807.80 282,591.51 36,897.59 3,711,412.53 2,296,789.11
2013 6,001,900.00 573,565.60 293,993,14 25,495.96 4,733,664.68 2,001,468.31
2014 6,033,671.00 317,949.20 305,856.75 13,632.33 4,798,113.77 1,460,472.36
2015 1,888,907.00 89,406.50 59,487.93 1,287.94 4,567,687.76 1,181,162.12
2016 923,557.00 17,156.28 - - 2,432,997.20 939,998.37
2017-2021 - . - - 9,132,956.70 1,828,442,90
2022-2026 - - - - 3,154,344.8C 78.167.34
TOTALS $2294943400 § 191388535 $ 94192033 § 7731379 $32.531,17744 § 9.786,500 51

The above noted annual requirements for maturity for the tax increment financing debt are based on
actual tax increment revenues received in 2011; estimated tax increment revenues projected by
Pennington County to receive in 2012; and estimated tax increment revenues as per the approved

project plans,
Business-Type Activities:

As indicated below within the description for each debt issue, the City has pledged future revenues
associated with various debt agreements. All debt secured by pledged revenues funded capital projects
and improvements, or was used to refinance the debt that originally funded the capital projects and
improvements, within the specific Funds that pledged the future revenues. The current principal
balance plus interest at the stated applicable rate over the life of the debt represents the amount of future
debt requirements over the maturity dates listed below for each debt issue. The City has pledged the
amount of the future debt service requirements on the issues or 100% of the revenues generated by the
Water Fund, Wastewater Fund, Parking Lot Fund and Airport Fund whichever is greater, or specific
revenues based on debt documents for the retirement of the debt issues agsociated with those funds as
indicated below. Below is a comparison, by Fund, of principal and interest payments and total pledged
revenues for the current year.

Water Wastewater Parking Lot Airport
Fund Fund Fund Fund
CY Principal and Interest $2,319,712.50 $840,536.44  $200,122.50  $1,002,650.83
Pledged Revenue $2,761,820.29 $10,430,834.24  $685,134.60 $1,585,456.10
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As of December 31, 2011, the long-term debt payable from proprietary fund resources consisted of the

following:

$2,465,000 Parking Revenue Bond of 2008, Due in annual
instaliments of $30,000 to $345,000 through 2028. Interest at 3.5 to
5.7 percent. (This issue is being financed by pledged Parking Facility
revenue). Interest expense in 2011 was $120,122.50.

$4,645,000 Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds of 2008. Due in
annual installments of $640,000 to $755,000 through 2015. Interest at
2.3 to 3.5 percent. (This issue is being financed by the Consolidated
Construction Sales Tax Fund (22%) and the MRF Fund (78%).
Interest expense in 2011 was $95,205.00

$5,540,000 Gross Receipt Revenue Bond of 2008, Due in annual
installments of $200,000 to $395,000 through 2028, Interest at
2.15 to 4.55 percent. (This issue is being financed by the Civic
Center Fund.) Interest expense in 2011 was $213,037.50,

$1,330,000 Certificate of Participation (AMT), Series 2004. Due
in annual instaliments of $115,000 to $155,000 through 2014,
Tnterest at 2.75 to 5.40 percent. (This issue is being serviced by
the Afrport Enterprise Fund). Interest expense in 2011 was
$27,297.50.

$45,100,000 Water Revenue Bonds of 2009. Interest only
payments are due in years 2012-2016. Due in annual instaliments
of $120,000 to $3,360,000 through 2039, Interest at 4,0 t0 5.25
percent.  (This issue is being serviced by pledged Water
Enterprise Fund revenues)  Interest expense in 201! was
$2,319,712.50.

$5,000,000 Loan No. 6 from State Revolving Fund of 2011. Due
in quarterly instaliments through 2031. Interest at 3.0 percent.
(This issue is to be serviced by pledged Wastewater Fund
revenues). Interest expense in201% was $0.

$4,210,000 Airport CFC Bonds of 2010. Due in annual
installments through 2030. Interest at 6.00 to 7.00 percent. (This
issue is to be serviced by pledged Airport Customer Facility
Charge revenue). Interest expense in 2011 was $256,285.36.

$10,605,000 Wastewater Refunding Bonds of 2011. Due in
annual instailments through 2022, Interest at 1.00 to 3.70 percent.
(This issue is to be serviced by pledged Wastewater Fund
revenue). Interest expense in 2011 was $141,326.25.

$11,675,000 Airport PFC Bonds of 2011. Due in annual
installments through 2035, Interest at 2.00 to 5.50 percent. {This
issue is to be serviced by pledged Airport Passenger Facility
Charge revenue), Interest expense in 2011 was $522,841.88.

$6,000,000 Drinking Water Loan SRF 2 of 2009. Due in
quarterly installments through 2031, Interest at 3.0 percent. (This
issue is to being serviced by pledged Water Enterprise Fund
revenues). Interest expense in 2011 was $84,194.44.
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NOTE 4. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

Less portion of 2008 Sales Tax Refunding Bonds
Serviced by Consolidated Construction Sales Tax Fund (22%).
Less unamortized deferred costs on refunding

Compensated Absences:
Accrued Leave payable from Water Fund
Accrued Leave payable from Wastewater Fund
Accrued Leave payable from Airport Fund
Accrued Leave payable from Solid Waste Fund
Accrued Leave payable from Civic Center Fund
Accrued Leave payable from Non-major Enterprise Funds

Financing (Capital Acguisition) Leases

$538,886.00 under an agreement with Welis Fargo Brokerage
Services, LLC, dated April 2, 2009 for the purchase of 4 new
ambulances, which are security for the Lease. Due in annual
instaliments of $150,808.97, including interest of 4.67 percent. The
final payment is due April 2, 2013. The lease is serviced by the
Ambulance Fund. Interest expense in 2011 was $19,298.45.

$2,079,960.00 under an agreement with Wells Fargo Brokerage
Services, LLC, dated December 14, 2009 for the purchase of 10 new
Solid Waste Collection trucks, which are security for the Lease. Due
in annual installments of $343,091.71, including interest at 3.73
percent. The final payment is due December 14, 2016, The lease is
serviced by the Solid Waste Coliection Fund. Interest expense in
2011 was $67,679.01.

$113,521.68 under an agreement with Pioneer Bank, dated August 19,
2010 for a cart barn at Meadowbrook Golf Course which are security
for the Lease. Due in monthly installments of $1,593.67, including
interest at 4.75 percent with a balloon payment after 5 years. The
final payment is due Qctober, 1, 2015. The lease is serviced by the
Golf Course Fund. Interest expense in 2011 was $4,793.93.

$297,584.97 under an agreement with Pioneer Bank dated December
3, 2010 for the refinancing of the POS system, which is security for
the Lease. Due in 48 installments of $6,785.97, including interest of
4.50 percent, The final payment is due December 3, 2014, The lease
is serviced by the Civic Center Fund. Inerest expense in 2011 was
$11,785.22,

$36,300.00 under an agreement with US Bank, dated September 17,
2010 for the purchase of equipment at the Civic Center, which is
security for the Lease. Due in monthly instaliments of $1,075.76
including interest at 4.25 percent. The final payment is due
September 17, 2013. The lease is serviced by the Civic Center Fund.
Interest expense in 2011 was §1,211.57.

(580,800.00)
(705,531.18)

$85,625,916.82
165,549.02
85,442 54
140,334.11
17,617.77
127,762.35

268.937.51
$803,643.30

$281,732.48

1,539,038.09

$96,054.40

212,373.42

21,740.41

2,150,938.80

The principal amount, above, was included in the appropriate classification of capital assets, and is being
depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset, or the lease term (where title never

transfers), as appropriate.
Accrued Landfill Closure
Other Post Employment Benefit Liabilities

Total Liabilities Payable
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NOTE 4. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

Total cost and accumulated depreciation for all capital leases utilized by business-type activities is as

follows:

Gross amount of assets recorded under capital leases — buildings
Gross amount of assets recorded under capital leases — equipment

Accumulated depreciation — Solid Waste
Accumulated depreciation — Golf
Accumulated depreciation - Civic Center
Accumulated depreciation — Ambulance

Net assets recorded under capital leases

The annual requirements for maturity for
compensated absences, other post employment

December 31, 2011, are as follows:

$1590,265.32

3,455,186.11

(391,468.00)
(20,285.92)
(93,399.83)

(360,017.86)
$2,740,279.82

Year Ending General Debt Obligations Capital Lease Obligations
December 31 Principal interest Principal Interest
2012 2,320,025.04 4122,622.36 524,582.18 83,752.87
2013 2,399,006.30 4,062,118.34 551,372 61,636.41
2044 2,456,032.63 3,988,785.92 374,767.30 39,281.51
2015 2,106,950.50 3,918,735.40 369,462.04 25,981.39
2016 1,829,894.03 3,856,196.66 330,754.57 12,337.15
2017-2021 13,944,623.75 18,029,717.38 - -
2022-2026 17,178,364.63 14,216,432.65 - -
20272031 17,690,257.59 9,899,038.12 -
2032-2036 16,191,334.06 5,235,125.00 -
2037-20413 9.509,425.29 1,024,012.50 -
TOTALS $ 8562551682 §68352,784.33 §$2,150,938.80 3% 222.989.33

business-type activities long-term debt {excluding
benefits and accrued landfill closure) outstanding as of

State Revolving Fund loans paid in full during 2011 incurred interest expense of $221,058.81. Airport
PFC Bonds paid in full during 2011 incurred interest expense of §17.,741.04,

The following is a summary of changes in long-term Labilities for the year ended December 31, 2011:

Primary Government;

Government Liabilities

Activities: Liabilities Payable Due Within
Payable 1/1/2011 Issued Retired 12/31/2011 One Year

Leases $1,213,563.15 $0 ($271,633.82) $941,929.33 $282,591.51

Revenue Bonds 33,930,287.00 0 (10,980,853.00) 22,949.,434.00 $,101,399.00

Compensated Absence 1,900,906.73 126,519.82 (191,047.18) 1,836,379.37 80.000.00

TiD 34,380,529.27 2,054,563.57 (3,903,915.40) 32,531,177.44 3,792,974.39

Qther Post

Employment Benefits 1,442,369.19 224.882.78 {0) 1,667,251.97 697,760.15

Total $72,867,655.34  $2,405,966.17  ($15,347,449.40) $59,926,172.11  $12,954,725.05
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Liabilities

Liabilities Payable Due Within
Business Activities: Payable 1/1/2011 Issued Retired 12/31/2011 One Year
Leases $2,668,978.30 $0 (§518,039.50) $2,150,938.80 $524,582.18
Accrued Landfill
Closure (Note 14) 1,334,353.73 46,702.38 -0- 1,381,056.11 -0-
Revenue Bonds 86,366,915.11 24,344,395.00  (25,085,393.29) 85,625,916.82 2,311,651.28
Other Post
Employment Benefits 543,927.66 111,376.19 o) 655,303.85 274,145.18
Compensated Absence 785,072.70 136,165.89 (115,595.29) 805,643.30 38,500.00
Total $91,699,247.50  $24,638,639.46 ($25,719,028.08)  $90,618,858 88 $3,148,878.64

Advanced and current refundings
On August 29, 2008, the City of Rapid City provided cash resources in the amount of $1,304,933.19 to

purchase U.S. Government securities that were placed in an irrevocable trust for the purpose of
generating resources for all future payments on $1,255,000 of Parking Revenue Bonds, Series 2003,
New bonds were not issued as part of this transaction. As a result, the refunded bonds are considered to
be defeased and the liability has been removed from the business-type activities column of the
staternent of net assets. The bonds were repaid in full during 2011 The outstanding principal of the
defeased bonds is $0 at December 31, 2011,

On November 19, 2010, the City of Rapid City provided cash resources in the amount of $500,923.18
to purchase U.S. Treasury bills that were placed in an irrevocable trust for the purpose of generating
resources for all future payments on $522,281.15 of Airport Parking Bonds, Series 2010. New bonds
were not issued as part of this transaction. As a result, the refunded debt is considered to be defeased
and the liability has been removed from the business-type activities column of the statement of net
assets. The outstanding principal of the defeased bonds is $0 at December 31, 2011. The debt for both
refundings was previously recorded in the business-type activities.

In 2011, the City issued $11,655,000 in airport revenue refunding bonds with an average rate of 6.37

ercent to refund the following:
AVERAGE UNPAID PRINCIPAL
DATE INTEREST AT TIME OF
ISSUED PROJECT RATE REFUNDING
12/1/2010 Aldrpost improvements 6.5% $10,500,000.00

The City refunded the debt to reduce its total debt service payments over the next 24 years by
$2,020,328.54 and to obtain an economic gain of $2,020,328.54.

Also in 2011, the City issued $10,605,000 in wastewater revenue refunding bonds with an average rate
of 3.0729 percent to refund the following:

AVERAGE UNPAID PRINCIPAL
DATE INTEREST AT TIME OF
ISSUED PROJECT RATE REFUNDING
7/18/2001 Wastewater improvements 4.5% 9,587,975.65

The City refunded the debt to reduce its total debt service payments over the next Il years by
$931,146.32 and to obtain an economic gain of $820,303.77.

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. The City is
in compliance with all significant fimitations and restrictions.
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NOTE 5. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Interfund receivabie and payable balances at December 31, 2011 were:

Interfund Receivable Interfund Payable
General Fund: $1,191,488.81
Special Revenue Funds:
Consolidated Construction 382,379.72
Vision 2012 Fund 54,801.85
Utility Facilities Fund 4,217,755.31
TID 38 Fund $100,000.00
TiD 39 Fund 998,710.55
TID 41 Fund 47.360.78
TID 42 Fund 3,341,403.26
TID 55 Fund 859.16
TID 56 Fund 1,378,563.40

Total Governmental Funds

$5,846,425.69

$5,866,897.15

Enterprise Funds:

Water Fund $805,211.35 $270,000.00
Wastewater Fund $59.16 303,000.00
Golf Course Fund 55,750.33 104,801.85
Executive Golf Fund 55,750.33
Civic Center Fund 188,709.10

Ambulance Fund 107,797.20
Energy Plant Fund 188,709.10

Total Enterprise Funds

$1,050,529.94

$1,030,058.48

The General Fund loaned monies to the Ambulance Fund for start-up operation costs. The current

portion expected to be repaid to the General Fund is $53,634.68.

The General Fund loaned monies to Tax Increment District 41 and 39 Fund for infrastructure
improvements. The current portion expected to be repaid to the General Fund is $36,879.77.

The Consolidated Construction Fund loaned monies to Tax Increment District 41 for infrastructure
improvements. The current portion expected to be repaid to the Consolidated Construction Fund is
$42.624.70,

The Vision 2012 fund loaned monies to the Golf Course Fund to construct a pro shop. The current
portion expected to be repaid to the Vision 2012 fund is $26,602.34.
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The Consolidated Construction Fund loaned monies to Tax Increment District 38 and 39 Funds to
construct water mains. The current portion expected to be repaid to the Consolidated Construction
Fund is $107,539.88.

The Utility Facilities Fund loaned monies to Tax Increment District $6 and 42 funds for the
construction of water and sewer infrastructure. The current portion expected 1o be repaid to the Utility
Facilities Fund is $321,874.04,

The Utility Facilities fund tozned monies to the Wastewater Fund for the construction of sewer
infrastructure. The current portion expected to be repaid to the Utility Facilities Fund is $60,000.00.

The Civic Center Fund loaned monies to the Energy Plant Fund for short-term cash flow needs whiie
waiting for reimbursement from the Civic Center and the Rapid City Area School District. The current
portion expected to be repaid is $188,709.10.

The Consolidated Construction Fund loaned monies to the Golf Fund for infrastructure improvement.
The current portion expected to be repaid is $18,761.08.

The Wastewater Fund loaned monies to Tax Increment District 55 Fund for the construction of sewer
infrastructure. The current portion expected to be repaid to the Wastewater Fund is $859.16.

The Water Fund loaned monies to Tax Increment District 42 Fund for the construction of water
infrastructure. The current portion expected to be paid to the Water Fund is $142,006.89.

The Golf Course Fund loaned monies to the Executive Golf Fund for improvements. The current
portion expected to be repaid to the Golf Course Fund is $55,750.33.

Interfund transfers during the year ended December 3 1, 2011 were as follows:

Transfers Transfers
In Qui
GENERAL FUND
Enterprise-Major
Water $247,335.00
Wastewater 154,259.60
Solid Waste MRF/Compost 52,070.00
Civic Center 149,866.00
Airport
Eaterprise-Nonmajor 59,273.00 134,530.00
Nonmajor Governmental 208,856.00
Total General Fund $662,803.00 $343,386.00
OTHER GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS:
2012 Sales Tax Fund
Alrport $3,500,000.00
Nonmajor Enterprise $134,850.00
Total 2012 Sales Tax Fund $3,634,850.00
Consolidated Construction
Utility Facilities 1,500,000.00
Nonmajor Enterprise $825,847.49
Total Consolidated Construction $1,500,000.00 $825,847.49
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Utility Facilities Fund
Consolidated Construction

$1,500,000.00

Water 1,296,360.71
Wastewater 1,250,409.29
Total Utility Facilities Fund $4.046,770.00
Nonmajor Governmental
Generat Fund $208,856.00
Total Nonmajor Governmental $208,856.00
Total Governmental Funds $2,371,659.00 $8,850,853.49

Transfers In

Transfers Qut

ENTERPRISE FUNDS:
Water
General $247.335.00
Utility Facilities $1,296,360.71
Total Water $1,296,360.71 $247,335.00
Wastewater
General $154,259.00
Utility Facilities $1,250,409.29
Total Wastewater $1,250,409.2% $154,259.00
Airport Fund
2012 Sales Tax Fund $3,500,000.00
Total Airport Fund $3,500,000.00
Solid Waste MRF/Compost
General Fund $52,070.00
Nonmajor Enterprise 2,027.95
Total Solid Waste MRF/Compost $54,097.95
Civic Center
General $149,866.00
Total Civic Center $149,866.00
Nonmajor Enterprise
General $134,330.00 $59,273.00
Consotidated Construction 825,847.49
2012 Sales Tax Fund 134,850.00
Solid Waste MRE/Compost 2,027.95
Noninajor Enterprise 11,027.95 11,027.95
Total Nonmajor Enterprise $1,108,283.39 $70,300.95
Total Enterprise $7,155,053.39 £675,858.90
Total Transfers $9,526,712.39 $9,526,712.39

Transfers are used when surplus resources are available in one fund, and are needed in another fund to
support essential functions of government, when the governing body so authorizes.
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NOTE 6. DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:
General Fund

Local Government Highway/Bridge $125,775.98
Motor Vehicle 21,678.17
Liguor Tax Reversion 106,900.19
Air Quality Grant 11,082.90
Historic Preservation 1,285.67
Police Grant 43,092.50
Blood Testing 7,490.00
School Liaison 6,025.80
Re-entry Program 12,150.37
Shared software costs 8,000.00
Police Reimb from other Agencies 0,413.22
Urban Mass Transit Grant 136,469.00
Transportation Planning 80,327.57
Total $569,691.97
Consolidated Construction Fund
Reimbursement from SD DOT $98,088.97
Total $98,088.97
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
RSVP Grant $4,247.00
Communi{y Development Grant 9,221.29
Total $13,468.29
Total Governmental Funds $681,249.23

Airport Fund
Alrport Improvement Project

$3,900,453.22

Total $3,900,453.22
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds
Energy Plant — Due from RCAS $26,776.40
Solid Waste Disposal — Energy Grant 47.20
Parking Lot — Parking Fees 10.00
Total $26,833.60
Total Proprietary Funds $3,927,286.82
Grand Total $4,608,536.05

NOTE 7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The City issued separate revenue vonds to finance the Parking Lot and Area Fund. Summary financial
information for the non-major enterprise fund is presented below. The Parking Lot and Area
administers the downtown parking lots, parking meters, parking ramp and fines.
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BALANCE SHEET
Assets
Current Assets $928,144.21
Capital Assets 6,558,519.42

Total Assets

$7,486,663.63

Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities $119,807.20
Noncurrent Liabilities 2,184,925.23

Total Liabilities

$2,304,732.43

Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of $4,288,594.19
Related Debt
Restricted - Revenue Bond Retirement 278,734.82
Unrestricted 614,602.19

Total Net Assets

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

$5,181,931.20

Operating Revenue $685,134.60
Depreciation Expense (88,349.97)
Other Operating Expenses (455,340.40)
Operating Income 141,444.23
Investment Income 20,195.09
Interest Expense (136,887.76)
Net Income 24,751.56
Transfers {19,890.00)
Changes in Net Assets 4,861.56
Beginning Net Assets 5,177,069.64
Ending Net Assets $5,181,931.20
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Net Cash Provided (used) by:
Operating Activities $217,019.67
Noncapital Finance Activities (19,890.00)
Capital and Related Financing Activities (216,318.66)
Investing Activities 7,076,535
Net Decrease (12,112.44)
Beginning Cash and Equivalents 383,935.73
Ending Cash and Equivalents $371,823.29

NOTE 8. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS AND RESTATEMENTS

The previously issued financial statements have been restated to reflect the following prior period
adjustments due to correction of errors and restatements:

. Record correction of 2010 inter-fund transfers of $200,000.00 between TID 39 and Consolidated
Construction Fund based on actual certified costs for the TID eligible project which results in no
net change in net assets in the Government Activities for 2010.

5. Record correction of 2010 Due from Other Governments for $396,141.60 in Consolidated
Construction Fund due from South Dakota Department of Transportation.

3 Record correction of 2008, 2009 and 2010 Highway Safety Program Grant receivable of
$4,906,444.13 in Consolidated Construction Fund. The correction resulted in an increase in grant
revenue of $3,351,514.60, $1,304,929.53 and $250,000.00 for 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively.
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NOTE & PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS AND RESTATEMENTS (Continued)

4. The City combined the Repair & Demolition, Drainage, and Education Loan special revenue funds
into the General Fund due to the new definition of a special revenue fund under GASB 54. The
beginning fund balance has been restated for these additional funds.

NOTE 9.CONDUIT DEBT

In the past, the City has issued revenue bonds to provide financial assistance to certain private-sector
entities for the acquisition and/or construction of facilities deemed to be in the public interest. These
bonds are secured by the property being financed and are payable solely from payments received on the
underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired facility is retained
by the private-sector entity served by the bond issuance.

Neither the City, the State of South Dakota, nor any other political subdivision of the state is obligated
in any manner for the repayment of these conduit debt issues. Accordingly, these bonds are not
reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.

As of December 31, 2011, there were 5 series of conduit bonds outstanding that had been issued prior to
August 1995, The aggregate principal amount payable for these bonds could not be determined;
however, their original issue amounts totaled $36,995,000.

NOTE 10, RETIREMENT PLAN

All employees working more than 20 hours per week after the first six months of service participate in
the South Dakota Retirement System (SDRS), a cost-sharing, multiple employer public employee
retirement system established to provide retirement benefits for employees of the State of South Dakota
and its political subdivisions. The SDRS provides retirement, disability and survivor’s benefits. The
right to receive retirement benefits vests after three years of credited service, Authority for establishing,
administering and amending plan provisions are found in South Dakota Codified Law 3-12. The SDRS
issues a publicly avaifable financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information, That report may be obtained by writing to the SDRS, P.O. Box 1098,
Pierre, SD 57501-1098 or by calling (605) 773-3731.

General employees are required by state statute to contribute 6 percent of their salary to the plan, while
public safety and judicial employces contribute at 8 percent and 9 percent, respectively. State statute
also requires the employer to contribute an amount equal to the employee’s contribution, State statute
also requires the employer to make additional confributions in the amount of 6.2 percent for any
compensation exceeding the maximum taxable amount for the social security for general employees.
The City’s share of contributions to the SDRS for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and
2009 are $2,286,131, $2,266,781 and $2,296,544 respectively, equal to the required contributions each
year.
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CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 11. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLAN

An employee hired after 1982 who retires from the City after having met the rule of 75 (Public Safety
employees) or 85 (all other municipal employees) may be eligible for health insurance for the retiree
and his/her spouse and eligible children through the City of Rapid City Healthcare Benefit Plan, which
is a single-employer plan established under SDCL 9-14-35 and 6-1-16. Coverage ceases when the
retiree attains the age of 65. The retiree is responsibie for 100% of the full active premium rates for
either single or family coverage.

An employee hired prior to 1982 who retires from the City after having met the rule of 75 (Public
Safety employee) or 85 (all other municipal employees) may be eligible for health insurance with the
City paying 100% of the full active premium rates for the retiree only, until the retiree attains the age of

65. The retiree is responsible for 100% of the fuil active premium rates for his/her spouse and eligible
children.

The health plan is a self-insured PPO providing benefits to eligible participants. Currently, there are

675 active participants and 149 retirees who are participating in the plan. The health plan does not issue
separately stated stand-alone finrancial statements.

For fiscal year 2011, the City’s annual OPEB cost for the retiree health insurance was $1,307,896. The
City’s annual OPEB cost, the perceniage of annual OPEB costs contributed, and the net QOPEB
obligation for the year ended December 31, 2011, were as follows:

ARC $ 1,304,345
interest on Net OPEB 79,452
Adjustment to ARC (75,901)
Annual OFPEB Cost 1,307,896
Contributions Made (971 837)
Change in net OPEB obligation 336,259

Net OPEB obligation-beg of year 1,886,297
Net OPEB obiigation-end of year _$ 2,322,656

Net Ending
Year Annual OPEB  Actual Employer Percentage OPEB
Ended Cost Contributions Contributed Obligation
12/31/2009  $1,173,282.00 $444,317.15 37.87% $1,598,370.85
12/31/2010  $1,265,479.00 $877,553.00 69.35% $1,986,296.85
12/31/2011  $1,307,896 $971,637 74.29% $2,322,556

The funded status of the benefit based on an actuarial update using age-adjusted premiums as of
January 1, 2011, was as foliows!

Actuarial Present Value of Future Benefits.................. $23.345,434.00
Actuarial Accrued Liability....ocoviiinniiiea $15,184,543.00
Actuarial Value of Benefit ASSets....ooooviiiinnn -
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability.....ooooniiinnn $15,184,543.00
Funded RALO. .. ovverrererne e irrreen s 0.0%
Covered Payroll....oooooivv $32.354,565.48

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability as a percentage
Of Covered Payroll......ooooo s 46.9%

56



CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 11. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLAN (Continued)

Actuarial valuations for an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Actuarialty determined
amounts are subject to continuous revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new
estimates about the future are formulated. Although the valuation results are based on values which the
City’s actuarial consultant believes are reasonable assumptions, the vaiuation results reflect a long-term
prospective and, as such, are merely an estimate of what future costs may actually be. Deviations in
any of several factors, such as future interest rates, medical cost inflation, Medicare coverage, and
changes in marital status, could result in actuai costs being less or greater than estimated.

The schedule of funding progress presented as required supplementary information following the notes
to the financial statements, will present multiyear trend information that shows whether the actuarial
value of benefit assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities
for benefits.

The City’s agreement with retired employees is for single or family health insurance coverage and the
retiree is responsible for 100% of the active premium rates unless the retiree was employed with the
City prior to 1982. If the retiree was employed with the City prior to 1982, the City pays 100% of the
active premium rates for the retiree only. For fiscal year 2011, the monthly rates were $404 for single
coverage; $808 for two-party; $1,236 for family (up to 4); $1,360 for family (5+); and $358 Medicare
single. The contribution requirements of the covered retirees are established and may be amended by
the City Council.

Because the State prohibits local governments from separately rating active employees and retirees, the
City charges both groups an equal, blended premium rate for single or family coverage. Although both
groups are charged the same rate, GAAP requires the actuarial amounts to be calculated using age
adjusted premiums that approximate costs for retirees separately from those for active employees. The
use of age adjusted premiums results in the inclusion of an implicit rate subsidy in the actuarial accrued
liability.

The City’s contributions were financed on a pay as you go basis and the City does not contribute

towards these benefits based on a percentage of payroll.

The entry age normal actuarial cost method was used to determine the annual required contribution.
The actuarial value of assets is equal to the fair value of the assets. The actuarial assumptions included
a 4.0% investment rate of return. Both the rate of return and the healthcare cost trend rate include an
assumed inflation rate of 4%. The health care cost trend rates are as follows:

Fiscal Year  Expense

Rate
2011 8.9%
2012 8.5%
2013 8.i1%
2014 7.7%
20135 7.3%
2016 6.9%
2017 6.6%
2018 6.3%
2019 6.1%
2020 6.0%

After 2020  4.7-5.8%

The unfunded accrued liability is being amortized as a level dollar amount on an open basis over a
period of 30 years.
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CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 12. DEFICIT FUND BALANCE

As of December 31, 2011, there are deficit fund balances in the foliowing funds: TID 56
($1,092,850.98), TID 39 ($998,710.27), TID 41 ($19,523.66), and TID 42 ($3,331,486.08), all of which
will be funded through property fax revenues received on the respective tax increment district. In
addition, there was a deficit fund balance in the Workers Compensation Fund ($405,285.76), which will
be funded through charges to the various departments.

NOTE 13. VIOLATIONS OF FINANCE-RELATED LEGAL AND CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS:

The City is prohibited by statute from spending in excess of appropriated amounts at the department
level. The following represents the overdrafts of the expenditures compared to appropriations as of
December 31, 2011:

General — Transfers Ouf $188,856.00
Vision 2012 Fund — Culture and Recreation 32,652.50
Vision 2012 Fund — Transfers Out 134,850.00
Consolidated Construction — General Government 110,300.72
Consolidated Construction — Public Works Administration 608,931.99
Consolidated Construction — Culture and Recreation 05,488.83
Consolidated Construction —~ Debt Service 1,480,120.57
Consolidated Construction — Transfers Qut 825,847.49
Occupancy Tax Fund — Other Expenditures 15,682.51
TID 65 — Debt Service 297,033.41
TID 50 — Debt Service $9,643.50
TID 47 — Debt Service : 144,6538.44
Rehabilitation — Community Development 16,138.77

"To prevent overdrafts of future expenditures compared to appropriations, the City will evaluate its
budget compliance prior to year-end and make amendments as necessary.

NOTE 14. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The City has been named as defendant in several lawsuits that have been referred to the City’s
insurance carriers. The City and its aitorneys believe that any liability to the City would not be material,
and that loss, if any, could be covered by insurance or would be substantially covered by the City’s
reserve for uninsured claims. The deductible is $100,000 for general and auto {iability and professional
lability, and $50,000 for building and property damage.

NOTE 15. RISK MANAGEMENT
General:

The City is exposed to varjous risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City carries commercial
insurance for insurable risks of loss except for worker’s compensation, liability insurance, employee
nealth insurance, employee dental insurance, and unemployment benefits. Settled claims resulting from
these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in the past fiscal year. The City has
established self-insurance internal service funds to pay for medical, workers’ compensation,
unemployment compensation and dental claims of City employees and their covered dependents as well
as the deductible portion of liability claims.

Payments to the self-insurance funds are actuarially determined and are to cover individual claims up to
$100,000 for health insurance, $325,000 for workers® compensation, and any administrative costs relative to
the processing of the claims. Maximum payments for dental insurance are $1,500 per employee, and liability
claims up to $100,000. The claims exceeding this amount are covered through private insurance carriers (up
to $5,000,000 per claim for iability claims). An estimated liability for claims incurred but not paid is accrued
based upon confirmation from the City’s third party administrators for claims received within 60 days of
year-end, and are reported as accounts payable. The City is a reimbursable employer for purposes of
unemployment insurance.
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CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 15, RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
The City has reserved equity in the workers compensation fund of $(405,285.76) in the medical insurance
fund of $8,176,256.40, in the unemployment insurance fund of $244,007.83, in the liability insurance fund of
$436,644.63, and in the dental insurance fund of $100,444.82 for the payment of such future claims.

Changes in the aggregate liabilities of the self-insurance funds during 2011 were as follows:

Workers

Liability Dental Comp. Medical Unempi.

Insurance Insurance Insurance Insurance Insurance
Benefit Claims Payable at
Beginning of Year $460,629.87 $7,334.40 $1,603,202.60 $603,791.62 $11,073.84
Claims Incurred:
Attributable to Insured
Events of the Current Year 427,146,771 169,912.83 1,158,307.57 5,531,722.11 30,984.66
Claims Paid:
Attributable to Insured
Events of the Current and
Prior Years {549,257.89) (404.63) (959,377.60)  (5,610,717.95) (42,058.50)
Benefit Claims Payable
At End of Year $338,518.69 $6,842.60 $1,802,132.57 $524,795,78 $0.00

NOTE 16, LANDFILL

State and Federal laws and regulations require the City to place a final cover on its landfill site when it stops
accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after
closure. Although closure and postclosure care costs will be paid only near or after the date that the landfill
stops accepting waste, the City reports a portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an operating
expense in each period based on landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date. The $1,381,056.11
reporied as landfill closure and postclosure care liability at December 31, 2011 represents the cumulative
amount reported to date based on the issue of 30.9 percent of the estimated capacity of the landfill. This
liability includes an accrual for remedial action costs. The City will recognize the remaining estimated cost of
closure and postclosure care of $3.450 million as the remaining estimated capacity is filled. These amounts
are based on what it would cost to perform ali closure and postcfosure care in 2011, The City expects to close
the landfill in the year 2053,

However, the recycling plant, in addition to our yard waste and proposed composting facility, could extend
the life an additional 35 years. Actual costs may be higher or lower due to inflation, changes in technology,
or changes in regulations.

The City is required by state and federal laws and regulations to make annual contributions to finance closure
and postclosure care. The City is in compliance with these requirements, and, at December 31, 2011, cash of
$1,381,056.11 are held for these purposes. These contributions for the future closure and post-closure care of
the landfill will be used to retire the non-current Hability for closure and post-closure care reported on the
enterprise balance sheet. The City expects that future inflation costs will be paid from interest earnings on
these annual contributions. However, if interest earnings are inadequate or additional postclosure care
requirements are determined (due to changes in technology or applicable laws or regulations, for example),
these costs may need to be covered by charges to future landfill users.
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Revenues:
310 Taxes:
311 General Property Taxes
313 General Sales and Use Taxes
314 Gross Receipts Business Taxes
320 Licenses and Permits
330 Intergovernmental Revenue:
331 Federal Grants
334 State Grants
335 State Shared Revenue:
335.01 Bank Franchise Tax
335.03 Liquor Tax Reversion
335.04 Motor Vehicle Licenses (3%)
335.06 Fire Insurance Reversion
335.08 Local Government Highway
and Bridge Fund
338 County Shared Revenue:
338.01 County Road Tax (25%)
340 Charges for Goods and Services:
341 General Government
342 Public Safety
343 Public Works
343 Health & Welfare
346 Culture and Recreation
349 Conservation & Development
350 Fines and Forfeits:
351 Court Fines and Costs
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Interest Barnings
362 Rentals
363 Special Assessments
167 Contributions and Donations
369 Other
Total Revenue

Expendifures:
410 General Government:
411 Comtingency
Transferred

412 Executive-Mayor & Council

414 Financial - Community Resources

414 Financial - Finance

414 Financial - Attorney

419 Other - Government Bidgs
420 Public Safety:

421 Police

422 Fire

429 Other Protection-Corrections

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

$12,958,890.00

FINAL
BUDGET

$ 12,958,890.00

ACTUAL

{Budgetary Basis)

$13,344,483.21

429 Other Protection-Code Enforcement

429 Other Protection-Comm Dev - Nongrant

430 Other Protection-Re-entry Program

19,383,880.00 19,383,880.00 21,155,428.00
705,880.00 705,880.00 646,703.97
1,421,500.00 1,686,630.08 2,891,641.15
1,887,461.00 2,013,732.86 1,701,580.98
52,425.00 449,867.00 28,425.00
110,000.00 110,000.00 100,138.73
265,000.00 265,000.00 376,901.49
38,750.00 38,750.00 51,549.24
180,000.00 180,000.00 183,060.20
475,000.00 475,000.00 548,525.91
261,250.00 261,250.00 295,849.05
412,702.00 412,702.00 356,402.68
§12,206.00 512,206.00 1,039,130.49
20,000.00 20,000.00 253,302.27
400,000.00 400,000.00 382,797.55
1,274,105.00 1,274,105.00 1,569,496.10
337,000.00 337,000.00 -
50,000.00 50,000.00 18,107.81
288,431.00 288.431.00 613,119.99
75,000.00 75,000.00 128,023.98
- - 50,671.94
- - 3,784.01
275,000.00 285,250.00 27,207.16
41,384,480.00 42,183,573.94 45,766,330.97
200,000.00 200,000.00 -
(125,300.00) -
549,271.00 560,384.26 440,602.22
347,264.00 371,833.10 340,058.94
676,892.00 742,291.42 729,640.25
46,989.00 48,965.09 11,019.96
826,339.00 826,339.00 792,218.57

11,878,235.00
7,681,721.00
48,000.00
197,630.00
20,685.00
177,719.00

60

12,102,667.47
7,985,902.55
48,000.00
203,243.99
21,885.00
177,888.92

11,793,617.42
7,923,108.89
47,797.13
198,186.69
21,197.45
42,130.49



429 Other Protection-Emergency Mgt
430 Public Works:
431 Highways and Streets
43x Administration
449 Health and Welfare:
441 Health
444 Humane Society
449 Other - Public Transit
449 Other - Air Quality
450 Culture and Recreation:
451 Recreation
451 Swimming Pools
451 Ice Arena
452 Parks
455 Libraries
457 Historic Preservation
459 Other - Parks & Recreation Admin
459 Other - Subsidies
460 Conservation and Development:
465 Economic Development
465 Community Development
465 Transportation Plaaning
465 GIS Information System
470 Debt Service
485 Capital Outlay
490 Miscellaneous:
492 Other Expenditures
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

391.01 Transfers In

51%  Transfers Out

391.03 Sale of Municipal Property
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - Beginning

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integra

ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL
BUDGET BUDGET (Budgetary Basis)
86,451.00 86,451.00 86,451.00
5,140,005.00 5,701,353.05 5,016,095.11
537,270.00 551,347.52 271,847.55
438,000.00 438,000.00 420,773.85
242,018.00 278,318.00 278,318.00
1,688,570.00 1,871,274.79 1,772,009.12
75,587.00 77,901.24 64,327.84
390,610.00 383,983.06 358,995.26
1,565,910.00 1,567,999.47 1,528,208.44
603,944.00 628,764.31 624,057.30
2,078,896.00 2,132,648.41 2,051,649.80
2,617,494.00 3,090,982.02 2,960,966.24
10,000.00 23,618.33 8,128.11
205,435.00 190,593.44 182,151.52
200,000.00 200,000.00 200,000.00
458,000,00 458,000.00 458,000.00
1,627,676.00 1675,912.49 1,479,597.93
464,131.00 694,880.17 324,842.62
70,618.00 89,427.46 85,583.86
123,552.00 123,552.00 121,551.68
1,033,509.00 1,033,509.00 1,033,507.43
31,862.74 - 7.773.24
42,340,283.74 44,462,616.56 41,674,413.91
(955,803.74) (2,279,042.62) 4,091,917.06
662,803.00 662,803.00 662,803.00
(134,530.00) (154,530.00) (343,386.00)
50,000,00 50,000.00 4,323.00
578.273.00 558,273.00 323,740.00
(377,530.74) (1,720,769.62) 4,415,657.06
13,449,458.09 13,449,458.09 13,449,458.09

$13,071,927.33

$11,728,688.47

$17,865,115.15
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

2012 SALES TAX FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Revenues:
310 Taxes:
313 General Sales and Use Taxes
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Interest Earnings
Total Revenue

Expenditures:
410 General Government
419 Other - Government Buiidings
430 Public Works:
431 Highways and Streets
43x Administration
450 Culture and Recreation
451 Recreation
459 Other - Parks & Rec Administration
460 Conservation & Development
465 Economic Development
470 Debt Service
485 Capital Outlay
490 Miscellaneous
492 Other Expenditures
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
511 Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - Beginning

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

The notes to the required suppiementary information are an integral part of this statement.

ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL
BUDGET BUDGET (Budgetary Basis)
$  7,009985.00 $ 7,009985.00 § 10,577,713.96
- - 611,365.64
7,009,985.00 7,009,985.00 11,189,079,60
- 1,680.00 -
- 1,797.93 (220,492.58)
276,910.00 276,910.00 -
- - 13,383.35
- - 19,269.15
- 855,489.00 329,126.16
6,723,075.00 6,723,075.00 6,723,075.00
- 15,101,552.78 9,170,473.35
10,000.00 10,000,00 §,895.77
7,009,985.00 22,970,504.71 16,043,730.20

(15,960,519.71)

(4,854,650.60)

(3,500,000.00)

(3,634,850.00)

(3,500,000.00)

(3,634,850.00)

22.406,530.14

(19,460,519.71)

22,406,530.14

(8,489,500.60)

22,406,530.14

$ 22,406,530.14

$ 2,946,010.43

$

13,917,029.54
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
CONSOLIDATED CONSTRUCTION FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Revenues:
310 Taxes:
313 General Sales and Use Taxes
330 Intergovernmental Revenue:
331 Federal Grants
334 State Grants
340 Charges for Goods and Services:
341 General Government
343 Public Works
360 Miscellanecus Revenue!
361 Interest Earnings
367 Contributions and Donations
369 Other
Total Revenue

ORIGINAL

BUDGET

$  9.,809,235.00

FINAL ACTUAL
BUDGET (Budgetary Basis)

$  9,809,235.00 $ 10,577.713.96

Expenditures:
410 General Government:
414 Financial - Community Resources
419 Other - Government Bldgs
430 Public Works:,
43x Administration
450 Cultuse & Recreations
452 Parks
459 Other - Parks & Rec Administratior
470 Debt Service
485 Capital Qutiay
490 Miscellaneous
492 Other Expenditures

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue Over {Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
391.01 Transfers In
S$1t  Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

- 995,635.41 194,372.83

- - 398,483.53

- - 14,598.01

737,206.00 737,206.00 38,206.76

. ; 455,598.74

- . 20,000.00

13,321.14
10,546,441.00 11,542,076.41 11.712,294.97

. . 88,628.84

- 16,796.20 38,468.08
1.259,417.00 1,259,417.00 1,868,348.99

- 4,236.00 ;

- - 99,724.83
2,006,308.00 2,006,308.00 3,486,428.57
8,258,315.00 19,769,869.45 9,295,283.92

355,000.00 393,696.11 4,499.53
11,879,040.00 73,450,322.76 14,881,382.76
(1,332,599.00) (11,908,246,35) (3,169,087.79)

- 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00

- - (825,847.49)

- 1,500,000.00 674,152.51

Net Change in Fund Balarces
Fund Balance - Beginning

Prior Period Adjustment (Note 8)

(1,332,599.00)

11,798,260.67

(16,408,246.35) (2,494,935 .28)

11,798,260.67 11,798,260.67

; 4,710,302.53

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

$ 10,465,661.67

$  1,390,014.32 $ 14,013,627.92

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
UTILITY FACILITIES FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED PECEMBER 31, 2011

ORIGINAL FINAIL ACTUAL
BUDGET BUDGET (Budgetary Basis)
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

113 General Sales and Use Taxes $  1,869,774.00 $  1,869,774.00 $  3,679,204.85
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:

361 Interest Earnings - - 505,462.42
Total Revenue 1,869,774,00 1,869,774.00 4,184,667.27
Expenditures:

470 Debt Service 1,869,774.00 1,869,774.00 1,637,937.89
490 Other Expenditures - 5,000.00 3,063.38
Total Expenditures 1,869,774.00 1,874,774.00 1,641,008.27
Excess of Revenue Over (Under)

Expenditures - (5,000.00) 2,543,606.00
Other Financing Sources (Uses):

511 Transfers Out - (4,046,770.00) {4,046,770.00)
Total Other Financing Sources (Jses) - (4,046,770.00) (4,046,770.00)
Net Change in Fund Balances - (4,051,770.00} (1,503,104.00)
Fund Balance - Beginning 16,225,120.43 16,225,120.43 16,225,120.43
FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ 16,225,120.43 $ 12,173,350.43 $ 14,722,016.43

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Note 1. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting:

The municipality follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial

statements:

1. At the first regular board meeting in September of each year or within ten days

thereafter, the

governing board introduces the annual appropriation ordinance for the ensuing fiscal year.

2. After adoption by the governing board, the operation budget is legally binding and actual

expenditures for each purpose ¢

Number 4.

3. A line item for contingencies may be included in

exceed five percent of the total municipal budget

annot exceed the amounts budgeted, except as indicated in

the annual budget. Such a line item may not
and may be transferred by resolution of the

governing board to any other budget category that is deemed insufficient during the year.

4 1fit is determined during the year that sufficient amounts have not been budgeted, state statute
allows the adoption of supplemental budgets.

5. Unexpended appropriations lapse at year end.

6. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the
General Fund and special revenue funds.

7. Budgets for the General Fund and special revenue funds are adopted on a basis consistent with

accounting principles general

The following represents the overdraft
funds., These overdrafts are primarily

ly accepted in the United States of America.

s of the expenditures compared to appropriations for governmental
due to the transfer of assets to other funds and year-end arbitrage

accrual.
Fund: Final Budget Actual Expenditure Overdraft
General Fund:
Transfers OQut $154,530.00 $343,386.00 $188,856.00
Vision 2012 Fund:
Culture and Recreation $0 $32,652,50 $32,652.50
Transfers Qut $3,500,000.00 $3,634,850.00 $134,850.00
Consolidated Construction Fund:
General Government $16,796.20 $127,096.92 $110,300.72
Public Works Administration $1,259,417.00 $1,868,348.99 $608,931.99
Culture and Recreation $4,236.00 $99,724.83 $95,488.83
Debt Service $2,006,308.00 $3,486,428.57 $1,480,120.57
Transfers Out $0 $825,847.49 $825,847.49
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ASSLETS:
101 Cash and Cash Equivalents
102 Restricted Cash
151 Investments
110 Property Tax Receivable
11% Accounts Receivable, Net
121 Special Assessments Receivable--Current
122 Special Assessments Receivable--Delinquent
123 Special Assessments Receivable--Deferred
132 Due from Other Government
135 Interest Receivabie
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:

201 Claéms Payable

208 Due to Other Funds

209 Advance from Other Funds

2xx Wages Payable

224 Deferred Revenue
Totat Ligbilities

Fund Balances:
263 Nonspendable
263.51 Perpetuat Care Cemetery
264 Restricted for:
264,91 Debt Service
264.03 Cemetery Perpetual Care
264,05 Library
26409 Business Improvement District
264.97 Grant
265 Committed fo:
265.99 Erosion/Sediment Control
266 Assigned to:
267 Unassigned
Total Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

CITY OF RAPID CITY

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBIR 31, 2011
Occupancy Bowntown Erosion/
TID 33 Tax BID Tax Sediment Control TID 66 TID 67
Fund Fund Fund Tund Fund Fund
$ 527 § 7626172 % 16274510 % 69714759 % 186.19 § 22,59282
65,812.00 - - -
- 1,344.00 -

- . 15,501.00 - -

- 51.50 735.94 - 0.12 15.02
$ 537 & 14212522 § 18032604 § 69,747.59 § 18631 §  22,607.84
$ $ 12751607 § 159,546.58 % 62166 § . $

881.71 - 1,954.6% - -
- 19,206.00 - - “
- 128,397.78 178,752.58 2,576.35 - -
5.27 - - 18631 22,607.84
13,727.44 1,573.46 -
- - 67,171.24 -
5.27 13,727.44 1,57346 67,171.24 186.31 22.607.84
$ 527 § 14212522 $ 18032604 6974759 % 18631 § 2260784
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2011

T 70 TID 68 TID 65 TID 62 TID 61 TID 63
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

ASSETS:
101 Cash and Cash Equivalents § 17201078 §  62,999.77 §23,086.92 § 37315663 § 20417 % 46.97
102 Restricted Cash - . - - Y -
151 investments - - - -
119 Property Tax Receivable 6,286.61 - - - 14,890.17 6,886.11
115 Accounts Receivable, Net - - - . . -
121 Special Assessments Receivable--Current - - . - - -
122 Special Assessments Receivable--Delinquent - - - - - .
123 Special Assessments Receivable--Deferred . - - - - .
132 Due from Other Government - - - - . .
135 Interest Receivable 117.06 41.89 15,33 248.12 .14 0.03

TOTAL ASSETS § 17931445 § 6304166 $23.002.27 § 37340475 § 1509448 § 693311

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:

[iabiiities:
201 Claims Payable $ - $ - $ . $ - $ - $ -
208 Due to (ther Funds - - . - - -
209 Advance from Other Funds - - - - - .
2xx Wages Payable - - - - -
224 Deferred Revenue - . - - . -

Total Liabilities " w - - .

Fund Balances:

263 Nonspendable
263.51 Perpetual Care Cemetery - - . -

264 Restricted for:
264.01 Debt Service 179,314.45 63,041.66  23,102.27 373,404,715 15,094.48 6,933.11
26403 Cemetery Perpetual Care - - .
264,05 Library - - . -
264.09 Business Improvement District - " - - .
264.97 Grant . - - . . R

265 Comnmitted to:
265.99 Erosion/Sediment Control - - . -

266 Assigned to:

267 Unassigned - - - R .
Total Fund Balances 179,314.45 63.041.66 2310227 373,404 .73 15,004.48 6,933.13

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 17931445 5 6304160 $23,i0227 § 37340475 § 1509448 § 693311
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ASSETS:
101 Cash ang Cash Equivalents
102 Restricted Cash
151 Investments
110 Property Tax Receivable
115 Accounis Receivable, Net
121 Special Assessments Receivable--Current
122 Special Assessments Receivable—Delinquent
123 Special Agsessments Receivable--Deferred
132 Due from Other Government
135 Interest Receivable
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabikities

201 Claims Payable

208 Due to Cther Funds

209 Advance from Other Funds

2xx Wages Payable

224 Deferred Revenue
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
263 Nonspendable
263.51 Perpetual Care Cemetery
264 Restricted for:
264.01 Debt Service
264.03 Cemetery Perpetual Care
264,05 Library
264.09 Business Improvement District
264.97 Grant
265 Committed to:
265.99 Erosion/Sediment Contral
266 Assigned o
267 Unassigned
Total Fund Baiances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

. CITY OF RAPID CITY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2011
TID 59 TID 28 TID 58 TID 56 TID 54 TID 44
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
$ 040 § 2,16988 § 316824 % 75,017.10 § 5709618 $ 386.22
14,4237 7,834,060 14,385.94 17,905.51
- .44 2.65 49.88 38.16 0.26
3 040§ 217132 % 1479460 ¥ 8250098 $ 7152028 % 18 291.99
3 - $ - $ - $ - 3 - § -
- - §549.16 134,941.96 -
- - - 1,243,621.44 .
- - 5.175.18 - 802854 -
- - 6,034.34 1,378,563.40 §,928.54 -
0.40 2,171.32 8,76G.26 - 62,591.74 18,291.99
- - - (1,295,662.42) - -
(.40 2,171.32 8,760.26 (1,295,662.42) 62,591.74 18,291.99
$ 640 $ 217132 8§ 14,794 60 % 8200098 § 7152028 % 18,291.89
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ASSETS:
101 Cash and Cash Equivalents
102 Restricted Cash
151 Investments
110 Property Tax Receivabie
115 Accounts Receivable, Net
121 Special Assessments Receivable--Current
122 Special Assessments Receivable--Delinquent
123 Special Assessments Receivable-Deferred
132 Due from Other Government
1335 Interest Receivable
TOTAIL ASSETS

EIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:

201 Claims Payable

208 Due to Other Funds

209 Advance from Other Funds

2xx Wages Payable

224 Deferred Revenue
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
263 Nonspersdable
263,51 Perpetual Care Cemetery
264 Restricted for,
26461 Debt Service
264.03 Cemetery Perpetuai Care
264.05 Library
264.09 Business Improvement District
264 .97 Grant
265 Committed to:
265.99 Erosion/Sediment Control
266 Assigned to:
267 Unassigned
Total Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

CITY OF RAPID CITY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2011
TID 8¢ TID 52 TID 51 TID 53 TiD 47 TID 38 TID 39
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
$ 80.18 § 1777 § 17301444 3§ 2198 $ 724 § 18544365 028
10,911.50 - 77,401.52 - - 43.522.02
0.04 .01 139.97 0,02 (.05 124.84 -
$ 1097172 § 1778 § 25055593 & 2200 § 7429 § 229059051 (.28
$ $ $ - $ $ - - -
- - - 36,683.57
- - - - 160,000.00 959,026.98
- - 2,440.14 - - 1,441.39 -
- - 2.440.14 - - 101,441,39 998,710.55
10,971.72 17.78 248,115.79 22.00 14.29 127,649.12 -
. . . . . - (998,710.27)
10,971,72 17.78 248,115.79 22.00 74,29 127,649.12 (998,710.27)
g 1097172 % 1778 § 25055593 § 2200 § 7429 § 229,090.51 0.28
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ASSETS:
101 Cash and Cash Equivalents
102 Restricted Cash
151 Investmens
110 Property Tax Receivable
115 Accounts Recsivable, Net
121 Special Assessments Receivable--Current
122 Specinl Assessments Receivable—-Delinquent
123 Special Assessments Receivable--Deferred
132 Due from Other Government
135 Interest Receivable
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:

201 Claims Payable

208 Due to Other Funds

209 Advance from Other Funds

2xx Wages Payable

224 Deferred Revenue
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
263 Nonspendable
263.51 Perpetual Care Cemetery
264 Restricted for
264.01 Debt Service
264.03 Cemetery Perpetual Care
264.05 Library
264.09 Business Improvement District
264 97 Grant
265 Committed 1o
265.99 Brosion/Sediment Control
266 Assigned to.
267 Unassigned
Total Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

CITY OF RAPID CITY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2011
Community Rehabilitation  Cemetery
TID 40 Tib 41 TiD 42 Development  Loan/Grant Perpetual
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fand Care Fund
$ 2746 % 944024 § 25867 § - $ - % 919482
- - . 1,656.39 72,872.25 -
- . - - - 48,229.16
18,390.60 22,i81.10 - - -
. - - - - 318.35
- - - 9,221.29 - -
002 6.28 0.17 - - -
3 748 § 2783712 § 2243094 % 1087768 & 7287225 § 5774233
$ $ - § - % 581203 § - % -
47,360.78 328,938.97 - -
- - 3,012,464 29 - -
- - - 5,065.65 - -
- - 12,522,716 - . -
- 47,360.78 3,353,926.02 10,877.68 - -
- - 50,000.00
2748 . - . .
. . - - B 7,742.33
- - 72,872.25
- (19,323.66)  (3,331,486.08) - - -
27.48 (19,523.66)  (3,331486.08) - 72,872.25 57,742.33
3 7748 § 2783702 5 2243994 § 10,877.68 § 7287225 § 57 742.33
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2011
TFotal
Retired Senior Library Nonmajor
Volanteer TID 35 TiD 69 Board Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS:
101 Cash and Cash Bquivalents § 2506 % 2551 § 132,998.73 8§ 800,00 % 1,610,384 92
102 Restricted Cash 443170 - - 76,200.16 155,160.50
153 Investments - - - - 48,229.16
110 Property Tax Receivable - 50,969.96 - . 305,988.75
115 Accounts Receivable, Met - - - - 66,130.35
121 Special Assessments Receivable--Current - - - - 1,344.00
122 Special Assessments Receivable--Delinquent - - - - -
123 Special Assessments Receivable--Deferred " - - - 15,501.0G
132 Due from Other Government 4,247.00 - - - 13,468.29
135 Interest Receivable - 8.97 §8.44 - £,686.37
TOTAL ASSETS $ 870370 § 5100444 § 133,087 17 § 71000168 2.217,893.34
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:
201 Claims Payable g 32928 § - $ - $ 1058937 § 304,414.99
208 Due to Other Funds - - - - 551,784 44
209 Advance from Other Funds - - - - 5,315,112.71
2xx Wages Payable 4,511.01 - - 993 .41 13,406.47
224 Deferred Revenue - - - - 45,714.01
Total Liabilities 4,840.29 - - 11,582.78 6,234,432.62
Fund Balances:
263 Nonspendable
263.51 Perpetuat Care Cemetery - - - - 50,000.00
264 Restricted for:
264.01 Debt Service - 51,004 .44 133,087.17 - 1,346,475.64
26403 Cemetery Perpetual Care - - - - 7,742.33
264.05 Library - - - 6541738 65,417.38
264.09 Business Improvement District - - - - 15,306.90
264.97 Grant 3,863.41 “ - - 76,735.66
265 Committed to!
265,99 Erosion/Sediment Control - - - . &1,171.24
266 Assigned to:
267 Unassigned - - B - (5,645,382 43)
Total Fund Balances 3,863.41 51,004.44 133,087.17 65,417.38 {4,016,539.28}
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 870370 $ 51,004.44 § 133.087.17 $ 7700006 % 2,217,803.34
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CITY OF RAFID CITY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Revenaes:
310G Taxes:
311 General Property Taxes
314 Oecupancy Tax
331 Federat Grants
340 Charges for Goods and Services:
34§ General Government
342 Pubdic Safety
348 Cemetery
349 Other-Conservation & Development
350 Fines and Forfeitures
354 Library
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Investment Barnings
363 Special Assessments
367 Contributions and Donations
Total Revenue

Expenditures:
420 Public Safety:
421 Police
450 Culture and Recreation:
455 Libraries
Retired Senior Volunteers
Cemetery
460 Conservation and Development:
453 Community Development
470 Debt Service
485 Capital Outlay
450 Miscellaneous
4972 Other Expenditures
Total Bxpenditures

Excess of Revenue Over {Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources {Uses}.
391.01 Transfers In
391.02 Long-term debt issued
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - Beginning
Prior Period Adjustment

FLIND BALANCE- ENDING

T 33
Fund

Qccapancy

Tax
Fund

Downtown

Erosion/
Sediment Contrel
Fund

B8ID
Fand

TID 66

Fund

TID 68
Fund

TID 67
TFund

T 70
Fund

TID 65
Fund

§ 44,762.09

8.14

1,669.51

$

- B
1,283,355.15

2,577.09

- $ -8

- 39,850.00

2,346.03 -
160,064.00 -

18500 3

131

1452746 § 6646665 & G6385.62 3

260.80 2,569.74 27165

36,589,02

271.40

46,440.14

1,285.932.24

162,410.03 39.850.00

186,31

14,788.26 05,036.39 66,657 27

36,860.42

46,437.64

1.288,585.61

- 51,149027

170,246.82 -

26,394.90
443,932.40

333,881,114

4643764

1.288,585.6]

170,246.82 51,745.27

470,327.30

333888 11

2.50

(2,653.37)

(7,836.79) (41,899.27)

i86.31

14,788.26 69,036.39 (403 ,670.03)

460,201.74

(297,020.6%)

313,869,206

460.201.74

313,869.26

2.50

277

(2553237}

16,380.81

(7,836.79) (11,899.27)

941025 79,0151

186.31

14,788.26 69,036.39 56,531.7%

781958 110,278.06 6,509.95

16,848.57

£,253.70

1372744 %

157346 § 67,171.24 3

186,31

T 2260784 § 17931445 § 6304186 3

23,102.27
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Revenues:
314 Taxes:
311 General Property Taxes
314 Ceeupancy Tax
331 Federal Grants
340 Charges for Goods and Seyvices:
341 General Government
342 Public Safety
348 Cometery
349 Other-Conservation & Development
350 Fines and Forfeitures
354 Library
360 Miscellansous Revenue:
154 Investment Earnings
363 Special Assessments
367 Contributions and Donations
Total Revenue

Expenditares:
420 Public Safety:
421 Police
450 Culture and Recreation:
455 Libraries
Resived Senior Yolunteers
Cemetery
460 Conservation and Development:
443 Community Development
470 Debt Service
485 Capital Cutlay
490 Miscellaneous
492 Other Expenditures
Total Expenditures

Exeess of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
391.01 Transfers in
391.02 Long-term debt issued
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses)

Met Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - Beginning
Prior Pericd Adjustment

FLUIND BALANCE- ENDING

CITY OF RAPID CITY

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

TIiB 62 TH 61 TiD 63 TID 59 TID 29 TID 55 TID 56 TID 54 TID 44
Fund Fund Fungd Fund Fund Fangd Fund Funil Fund
$ 16652925 § 342,24030 § 11517791 - 3 - § 71254530 § 190863735 § 27052752 § 1,131,984.13
4,984.11 200.60 58.86 6.08 3086 372.20 2,571.1¢ 221.5% 386.63
171,513.36 34244050 115,236,717 6.06 39.86 71291758 1,911,214 45 270,749.03 1,132,370.76
- 327,359.13 115,581.42 1,234.76 - 34,143.31 §,685,390.89 234,066.14 1,174,175.26
- 327,359.13 115,581.12 1,236,706 - 34,14331 1,685,390.89 234,066.14 1,174,475.26
171,513 36 15,090.77 (34435 (1,230.70) 39.86 678,774.19 235,823.56 36,682.89 (41,804.50)
174,513.36 15,000.77 (344.35) {1,230.70) 39.86 G78,774.19 225,823.56 36,682.89 (41,804.50%
201,891.3% 3 7,277.46 1,231.10 2,131.46 (670,013.93) (1,521,48598) 25,908 85 60,096.49
$ 373.404.75 & 1309448 § 693311 040 § 217132 § 576026 8 {1,29566242) 3 62,591.74 3 18,291,99
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Revenues:
310 Taxes:
311 General Property Taxes
314 Qocupanty Tax
33} Federal Grants
340 Charges for Goods and Services:
341 General Government
342 Public Safety
348 Cemetery
349 Other-Censervation & Development
350 Fines and Forfeitures
354 Libravy
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Investment Bamnings
363 Special Assessments
367 Contributions and Donations
Total Revenue

Expenditures:
420 Public Safety:
421 Police
450 Culture and Recreation:
455 Libraries
Retired Senior Volunteers
Cemetery
460 Conservation and Development:
463 Community Development
470 Debt Service
485 Capital Outlay
450 Miscsllaneous
492 Other Expenditures
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue Over (Under)
BExpenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses}
391.01 Transfers In
391.02 Longerm debt issued
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - Beginning
Prior Peried Adjustment

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

CITY OF RAPID CITY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENULES, EXPERDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TIB 46 TID 48 THY 1% TID 50 TiD 49 Tib 52 IR 51 TiD 33 i 47
Fund Frnd Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fungd
$ 203104t % - b - § 24692355 § 1933642 § 2760026 § 93906843 §1 1479356 & 120,161 67
- - - 562.98 6,290.85 363.35 1,162.72 147.59 7382
20,310.11 - - 247,486.53 2562727 28,062.61 940,231,153 114,941,135 120,235.49
75,552.86 317.26 5.63 411,531.08 838,827.70 91,005.93 346,572.60 116,279.45 26522739
- - . - 456,833.83 " - -
75,552.86 317,26 5.63 411,531.08 838827.9¢  547.839.76 346,572.60 116,279.45 265,227.19
{55,242.75) {317.26) (5.63) (164,044,55)  {813,20043) (51977115 593,658,535 (1,338.30} (144,991.70)
. - - - 188,856.00 - - - -
- - - 90,639.83 - 454,783 83 - - 144,731.12
- - - 90.635,83 188,856.00  454.743.83 - - 144,731,412
(55,242.75) {317.26} (5.63) {73,404.72)  (624,344.43}  {64,993.32) 593,658.55 {1,338.30) (260.58)
55,242.75 31726 563 84,376 .44 624,344.43 65,011.10 (345,542.76) 1,360.30 334.87
$ - 3 000 § 000§ 1097172 8 - 3 1778 § 24811579 8 2200 % 74,29
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Revenues:
310 Faxes!
311 General Property Taxes
314 Ocoupancy Tax
331 Federal Grants
340 Charges for Goods and Services:
341 General Government
342 Public Safety
348 Cemetery
349 Other-Conservation & Development
350 Fines and Forfeitures
354 Library
3560 Miscelianeous Revenue:
36{ Tnvestment Earnings
363 Special Assessments
167 Contributions and Donations
Total Revenue

Expenditures:
420 Public Safety:
421 Police
450 Culture and Recreation:
455 Libraries
Retired Senior Yolunteers
Cemetery
460 Conservation and Development:
463 Cominunity Development
470 Debt Service
485 Capital Outlay
490 Miscellaneous
452 Other Expenditures
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue Over {(Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
391,01 Transfers in
391,02 Long-term debt issucd
“Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Batance - Beginning
Prier Peried Adjustment

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

CITY OF RAPID CITY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Comentnity ARBA Comm
TED 36 TID 38 TID 39 TID 40 TID 4t FIB 42 FID 43 Development  Development
Fand Fund Fung Fund Pand Fuad Fund Fund Fand

. % 566,752.03 % 13698421 § 80999.56 & 82365638 § 52184580 § - $ - 8 -

- - - . - - - 722,832.36 18,675.55
. - . - . . - $1,152.40 -
- 3,29%.12 14279 27.50 1,803.69 330.3% . - -

- 570,051.15 137,127.00 81,027.06 825,460,017 522,176.15 - 733,984.76 18,675.55

. - - . - - . 733,984.76 18,673.55
360,546.43 432,286.62 117,761 88 81,001.62 1,136,198 41 213,300,55 357,467.09 . -

3560,546.43 432,296.62 117,761.88 81,001.62 1,136,198.41 213,300.55 357467.09 733,684.76 18,675.53
{360,546,43) 137,754.52 19,365.12 25.44 (310,738.34) 308,875.60 (357,467.0%) . .
v - - - 590,337.79 - - - -
- - - - 590,337.79 - - - -
(360,546.43) 137,754.53 19,365.12 25.44 279,599 45 308,875.60 (357,467.09) - -
360,546.43 (10,105.4%}) (818,075.39) 2.04 (299,123.11) (3,640,361 .68) 357,467.09 - -
- - {200,000.60) - - - . B .
000 5 12764902 8 (998,71027) § 2748 § (19,523 66) § {(3,331,48608) % 000 § - $ -
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

CITY OF RAPID CITY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

Fotal
Rehab Cemetery Retired Senior Library Noamajor
Lean/Grant FPerpetuai Volunteer FID 35 FID 6% Beard Governmental
Fund Care Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes s - $ - H - % B5547.54 E13175525 - § 871280037

314 Oceupancy Tax - . - 1,283,355.15
331 Federal Grants - - 40,590.12 - - - T82,098.03
340 Charges for Goods and Services:

341 Goneral Govemnment - - - “ -

3472 Public Safety - - - - - - -

348 Cemetery - 3,127.88 - - - - 3,127.88

349 Other-Conservation & Development 31,124.49 - - - - - 82,126.89
350 Fines and Forfeitures

354 Library - - - - - 115,229.65 115,229.65
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:

361 Invesunent Barnings 2.16 - - 33.64 1,331.92 g0.68 32,806.25

363 Special Assessments - - - - - - 160,064.00

367 Contributions and Donations - . 37.177.56 - - - 38,847.47
Total Revenue 31,126.65 3,127.88 77,767.68 $5,981.18 13308717 11531033 11,210,455 6%
Expenditures:

420 Public Safety:

421 Police - - - - - - -
450 Cubture and Recreation;

455 Libraries - - - - - 120,253 83 120,253.83
Retired Senior Volunteers - ~ 98,618.46 - - - 98,618.46
Cemetery - 236.00 - - - - 236.00

460 Conservation and Development:

463 Community Development 16,138.77 - - " - - 820,548 35
470 Debt Service - - - 60,925.56 - - 8,883,484.,12
485 Capital Outlay - - - - - SO, 766,23
490 Miscellaneous

492 Other Expenditures - - - - - - 1,458.832.43
Total Expenditures 16,138.77 23600 68,618.46 60,925.50 - 120,253 .83 12,282,738.42
Excess of Revenue Over (Under)

Expenditres 14,987 88 2,891.88 (20,850.78) 25055.62 133,08717 (4,943.50) {1,072,283.73)
Other Financing Sources (Uses}
391,01 Transfers In - - 20,000.00 - - - 208,856.00
391,02 Long-term debt issued - - - - - - 2,054 .563.57
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - - 20,000.00 - - B 2,263,419.57
Net Change in Fund Balances 14,987.88 2,851 88 (850.78) 25,055.62 133,087.17 {4,943.50) 1,191,13584
Fund Balance - Beginning 57,884.37 54,850.45 414.19 2594882 - 70,360.88 {5,007,675.12)
Prior Period Adjustment - - B - - - {200,000,00)
FUND BALANCE- BNDING $ 7287225 % 3774233 § 386341 51,004.44 $i33,087.17 3 6541738 § {4,016,539.28}
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ASSETS:
Current Assets:
101 Cash and Cash Equivalents
106 Cash with Fiscal Agent
107 Restricted Cash
151 Investments
115 Accounis Receivable
116 Estimated Uncollectable Accounts Receivable
131 Due from Other Funds
132 Due from Other Governments
135 Interest Receivabie
155 Prepaid Expenses
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
1690 Land
162 Buiidings
164 Improvements Other than Bidg
164 Furniture & Equipment
166 Machinery and Equipment
168 Construction Work in Progress
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
202 Accounts Payable
208 Due to Other Funds
215 Accrued Interest Payable
2xx Wages Payable
226 OPEB Current Obligations
226 Bonds Payable Current:
226 Capital Lease Payable Current
230 Compensated Absences Payable -- Current
Total Current Liabilities

Neoncutrent Liabilities:

209 Advance from Other Funds

231 OPEB Long-Term Obligations

231 Bonds Payable:

231 Capital Lease Payable

233 Accrued Leave Payable

235 Accrued Landfill Closure and Postclosure
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

NET ASSETS:
253,10 Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related
Debt
253.20 Restricted Net Assels, Restricted for:
253.22 Revenue Bond Retirement
253.90 Unrestricted Net Assets
Total Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CITY OF RAPID CITY

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUND

DECEMBER 31, 2011

Solid Waste Solid Waste Executive Cemetery
Collection Bisposal Golf Course Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Fund
$ 1,998.38655 § §55,99037 & - $  56,266.45

- 1,381,056.11 - -

- 4,025,181.72 « 25,444.54
289,525.24 328,268.55 - 16,637.59
(12,000.00) (38,000.00} - -

- 47.20 - -

1,312.93 4,147.80 11.83 95.95
2,277,224.72 6,556,691.75 11.83 98,444.53
138,430.38 1,956,982.84 596,356.14 24,151.00

- 393,011.33 180,240.34 22,954.01
712,088.86 2,465,414.35 1,128,679.93 657,413.70

- 1,099,528.35 77,409.00 115,966.12

3,415,162.73 2,281,438.00 6,449.00 118,775.82
(1,706,866.93) (2,630,299.48) {796,768.47) (513,354.56)
2,558,815.04 5,566,075.39 1,192.365.94 425,906.09
$ 483603076 § 12,122767.14 % 1,192,377.77  § 524,350.62
$ 185,155.86 101,376.01  § 123545 $ 3,443.85

- - 55,750.33 -

- 2,673.71 - -
34,872.51 22,133.08 3,408.35 6,989.19
15,362.20 9,592.21 1,967.84 3,043.13
285,685.59 - - -

3,500.00 - - -
524,576.16 135,775.01 62,361.97 13,476.17
21,358.89 13,336.56 2,735.99 4,231.03

1,253,352.50 - - -

42,384.23 17,617.77 3,633.98 9,602.98

- 1,381,056.11 - -

1,317,095,62 1,412,016.44 6,369.97 13,834.01
1,019,776.95 5,566,075.39 1,192,365.94 425,906.09
1,974,591.03 5,008,906.30 (68,720.11) 71,134.35
2,694,367.98 10,574,981.69 1,123,645.83 497,040.44
$ 4836,039.76 § 12,122767.14 $ 1,192377.77 $ 524,350.62
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Golf Course Parking Lot Energy Plant Ambutance Transportation
Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise Terminal
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals
$ 6,573.92  § 93,088.47 & - 3 81507596 & 141,161.27 3,966,542.99
- 278,734.82 - - - 278,734.82
- - - - - 1,381,056.11
363,111.39 4,413,737.63
150.59 308,067.14 23,546.35 4,916,661,11 230.98 5,883,087.55
- (154,482.21) - (2,957,493.67) - (3,161,975.88)
55,750.33 - - . - 55,750.33
- 10.60 26,776.40 - - 26,833.60
39.10 296,46 - 589.39 99.19 6,592.63
- 39.318.14 - - - 39.318.14
62,513.94 928,144.2% 50,322.75 2,774,832.79 141,491.44 12,889,677.96
1,424,241.50 2,212,498.99 - - 267,567.00 6,620,227.85
1,505,898.57 4,908,331.31 776,570.53 30,659.04 916,934.11 8.734,599.24
2,360,301.79 487.832.95 - - 1,679,939.23 9,491,670.81
499.604.44 - 96,499.06 267,187.30 - 2,156,194.27
188,189.0C 16,025.00 20,537.00 1,201,550.35 - 7,248,146.90
- - 134,850.00 - - 134,850.00
{1,685,739.77) (1,066,168 83) (521,743.43} (817,584.47) {524,828.16) {10,263,354.10)
4,202,495 .53 6,558,519.42 506,733.16 681,812.22 2,339,612.18 24,122,334.97
$ 435500047 $ 7,486,663.63 § 55705591 & 3,456,645.01 § 2.481,103.62 $ 37,012,012.93
§ 14,188.80 % 3413632 % 1053634 % 42,630.87 8 6,928.98 399,632.68
45,363.92 - 188,709.10 53,634.68 - 343,458.03
- 670.88 - 9,840.65 - 13,185.24
15,044.39 - 17,894.72 8,854.73 - 109,196.97
5,729.83 - 7,823.48 39,591.58 - 83,110.27
- 85,000.00 - - - 85,000.00
13,610.78 - - 137,652.06 - 436,948.43
- - 3,500.00 - - 7,000.00
93,937.72 119,807.20 228,461.84 292,204.57 6,928.98 1,477,531.62
59,437.93 - - 54,162.52 - 113,600.45
7,966.49 . 10,877.40 55,046.29 - 115,552.65
- 2,184,92523 - - - 2,184,925.23
82,443.62 - - 144,080.42 - 1,479,876.54
22,573.51 - 63,056.15 £9,238.46 - 248,107.08
- - - - - 1,381.056.11
172,421,535 2,184,925.23 73,933.55 342,527.69 - 5,523,118.06
4,196,441.13 4,288,594.19 506,733.16 400,079.74 2,339,612.18 16,935,584.77
- 278,734.82 - - - 278,734.82
{107,750.93) 614,602.19 {232,074.64) 2,421,833.01 134,562.46 9,797,043.66
4,088,650.20 5,181,931.20 254,658.52 2,821,912.73 2,474,174.64 30,011,363.25
$ 435500047 § 7.486,663.63 8 55705591  § 345664501 § 2481,103.62 $ 37,012,012.93
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CITY OF RAFPID CITY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Solid Waste Solid Waste Executive Cemetery
Collection Disposal Golf Course Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Fund

Operating Revenue:

380 Charges for Goods and Services $ 2,330,246.30 $  2,826,063.16 $ 13472947  § 15504110

381 Revenues used as Security for Revenue Bonds - - - -
Total Operating Revenue 2.330,246.30 2,826,063.16 134,729.47 155,041.10
Operating Expenses:

410 Personal Services 801,108.57 459,457.31 108,369.06 167,082.91

420 Other Current Expense 709,289.34 1,806,827.50 §7,273.00 60,830.08

426.2 Materials (Cost of Goods Sold) - - - -

457 Depreciation 351,425.18 371,137.16 18,604.80 27,914.91
Total Operating Expenses 1,861,823.09 2,637,421.97 214,246.86 255,827.90
Operating Income (1L.0ss) 468,423.21 188,641.19 (79,517.39) (100,786.80)
Noneperating Revenue (Expense):

361 Investment Earnings 36,024.10 240,013.09 356,71 5,547.60

470 Interest Expense and Fiscal Charges (67,679.01) - - -

(4923366 Gain (Loss) on Disposition of Capital Assets (17,068.81) (19,685.12) - -

369.01 Other - 73,449.92 - -
Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expense) {48,723.72) 293.777.89 356.71 5,547.60
Income (Loss) Before Transfers 419,699.49 482,419.08 (79,160.68) {95,239.20)

391.1 Transfers In - 10,139.74 9,000.60 117,120.54

511 Transfers Out (2,128.95) {9,515.00) (9,000.00) (8§43.00)
Net Contributions and Transfers (2,128.95) 624.74 - 116,277.54
Change in Net Assets 417,570.54 483.,043.82 (79,160.68) 21,038.34
Net Assets - Beginning 2,576,797.44 10,091,937.87 1,202,806.51 476,002.10
NET ASSETS - ENDING $ 2,994,367.98 $ 10,574,981.69 $ 1,123,645.83 $ 497,040.44
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Enterprise Funds

Golf Course Parking Lot Energy Plant Ambulance Transportation
Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise Terminal
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals
$ 1,212,13337 §$ - $ 24820675 $ 3,301,029.57 % 29,257.41 § 10,236,707.13
- 685,134.60 - - - 685,134.60
1,212,133.37 685,134.60 248,206.75 3,301,029.57 29,257.41 10,921,841.73
495,290.26 - 389,048.45 2,011,912.04 - 4,432,268.60
602,602.01 455,340.40 (112,823.61) 484,768.28 80,197.52 4,174,304.52
140,905.34 - - - - 140,905.34
72,788.32 §8,349.97 19,953.42 217,271.20 66,688.90 1,234,133.86
1,311,585.93 543,690.37 296,178.26 2,713,951.52 146,886.42 9,981,612.32
{99,452.56) 141,444.23 {47,971.51) 587,078.03 (117,629.01) 940,229.41
2,394.47 20,195.09 - 25,670.27 3,083.68 333,285.01
(9,722.43) {136,887.76) - (22,353.36) - (236,642.50)
(6,607.58) - - (14,204.13) - (57,565.66)
- - - - - 73,449.92
{13,935.54) (116,692.67) - (10,887.24) 3,083.68 112,526.71
{113,388.10) 24,751.56 (47.971.51) 576,190.81 (114,545.33) 1,052,756.12
741,678.11 - 134,850.00 - 95,495.00 1,108,283.39
(20,645.00) (19,890.00) {3,339.00) - (4,940.00) (70,300.95)
721,033.11 (19,890.00) 131,511.00 - 90,555.00 1,037,982.44
607,645.01 4,861.56 83,539.49 576,190.81 (23,990.33) 2,090,738.56
3,481,005.19 5,177,069.64 171,119.03 2,245,721.94 2,498,164.97 27,920,624.69
§ 4,088,650.20 & 5,181,931.20 § 25465852 $ 2,821,912.75 § 2,474,174.64 $ 30,011,363.25
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 20611

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipt from Customers 3
Reeeipt from Interfund Services Provided
Payments to Suppiiers
Payments to Employees
Internal Activity - Payment to Other Funds

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activitics

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfers In
Transfers Gut

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Subsidies and Transfers

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of Capital Assets
Principal Paid on Capital Debt
Interest Paid on Capital Debt
Other Receipts (Payments)

Net Cash (Used) by capital and related financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest Earnings

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net Increase {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Bafances - Beginning

Balances- Ending 3

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating Income (Loss) $
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income fo
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation Expense
Landfili Closure and Postelosure Costs
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Receivables
Due from Other Funds
Prepaid Expenses
Due to Other Funds
Accounts and Other Payables
Accrued Wages Payable
Accrued Leave Payabie
Accrued Other Post Employment Benefits

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $

Noncash Investing, Capitaj and Financing Activities:
Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets Not Affecting
Operating Income $

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
101 Cash and Cash Equivalents $
196 Cash with Fiscai Agent, Restricted
107 Restricted Cash (Note 16)

Solid Waste Solid Waste Executive Cemetery
Collection Disposal Golf Course Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Fund
2,282,74430 §  2,758,561.02 § 134,729.47 § 154,455.73
- 55,750.33 -
(557,363.69) {1,757,218.81) (87,546.35) {60,480.42)
(794,690.01) (451,650.24) (i08,287.15) (163,677.82)
930,690.60 549,691.97 (5,353.70) (69,702.51)
- 10,139.74 9,000.00 117,120.54
(2,128.95) 9,515.00) (9,000.00) (843.00)
(2,128.95) 624,74 - 116,277.34
{152,222.50% (139,255.32) - (48,227.54)
(275,412.70) - - .
(67.679.01) {478.46) - -
- 73,449.92 - -
{495.314.21) (66,283 .86) - (48,227.54)
36,613.62 72.963.13 359.69 3,112.51
36,613.62 72,963.13 359.69 3,112.51
469,861.06 556,995.98 (4,994.01) 1,460.00
1,528.525.49 1.680.050.50 4,994.01 54,806.45
1,998,386.55 % 223704648 % (0.00} $ 56,2606.45
468,423.21 § 188,641.19 § (79,517.39) % (100,786.80)
351,425.18 371,137.16 18,604.80 27,914.9%
46,702.38
{47,502.00) (67,502.14) - (585.37)
151,925.65 2,906.31 35,476.98 349.66
230.97 1,581.85% (1,222.36) 1,103.08
509.62 1,096.44 1,006.20 1,045.50
5,677.97 5,128.78 298.07 1,256.51
930,690.60 § 54969197 % (5,353.70) % {69,702.51)
{17,068.81) $ (19.685.12) % - % -
1,998,386.55 § 855,990.37 § $ 56,266.45
- 1,381,056.11 -
$  1,998,38655 $§ 223704648 § - 3 56,266.45
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Enterprise Funds

Golf Course Parking Lot Energy Plant Ambulance ‘Transpertation
Enterprise Enterprisc Enterprise Enterprise Terminal

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals
$ 1,214,7069.40 § 669,915.6% § 273,884.74 §  2,857,783.90 $ 30,45741 §  10,377,241.66
(55,750.33) - 21,199.01 - - 21,199.01
(751,331.18) (452,896.07) 95,033.82 (629,175.12) (77,587.27) {4,278,565.04)
(479,994.39) - (386,778.57) (1,990,575.33) - {4,375,653.51)
{25,097.02} - - (51,202.56) - (76,299.58)
(97,463.52) 217,019.67 3,335.00 186,830.89 (47,129.863 1,667,922.54
741,678.11 - 134,850.00 - 95,495.00 1,108,283.39
£20,645.00) {19,896.00) (3.339.00) - (4,940.00) (70,300.953
721,033.11 (19,890.00% 131,511.00 - 90,5535 .00 1,037,982 44
(741,678.11) - (134,850.00) (190,172.00) (29.858.00) {1,436,263.47)
(14,195.54) {79,407.36) - (131,510.52) “ (500,526.12)
(9,722.43} (136,911.30) - (26,946.89) - (241,738.09}
- - - - 73,449.92
{765,596.08) (216,318.66) {134,850.00) (348,629.41) {29,858.00) (2,105,0771.76)
2,499.435 7,076.55 - 26,103,235 3,251.29 151,979.4%
2,499.45 7,076.53 - 26,103.25 3,251.29 151,979.49
{139,527.04) {12,112.44) 0.00) (135,695.27) 16,818.43 752,806.71
146,100.96 383,935.73 - 950,771.23 124,342 84 4,873,527.21
b 6,573.92 § 371,823.29 § 00 ¥ 815,075.96 % 141,161.27 $  5,626333.92
5 £99,452.56) § 141,44423 % (4797151} § 587,078.05 § (117,629.01) § 940,229.41
72,788.32 88,349.97 19,953.42 217,271.20 66,688.90 1,234,133.86
- “ - - - 46,702.38
2,576.03 (15,218.91) 25,677.99 (443,245.67) 1,200.00 (544,600.07)
- 2,069.38 - - - 2,069.38
(80,847.3%) - 21,199.01 (51,202.56} - (110,850.90}
(7,823.83) 375.00 (¥7,785.79) {144,406.84) 2,610.25 43.623.39
564851 - (780.29) (151.21) - 6,410.55
4,802.10 - (500.99) 5,362.14 - 13,321.01
4,845.26 - 3,551.16 16,125.78 - 36,883.53
b {97,463.52) § 217,019.67 § 3,339.00 % 186,830.89 § {47,129.86) § 1,667,922.54
$ (6,607.58) § - 3 - $ (14,20415) $ - $ (57,565.66)
) 6,573.92 % 93,08847 % - 3 81507596 § 141,161.27 §  3,966,542.99
- 278,734.82 - . - 278.734.82
- - - - - 1,381,056.11
3 6,573.92 % 371,823.29 § - 5 §150759¢ § 14116127 §  5,626,333.92
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ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:

Accounts Payable

Due to Other Organizations
Total Liabilities

CITY OF RAPID CITY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2011
Deposits Held Payroll Section
For Others Withholding 125
Fund Fund Fund Total
$ 31112543 $ 289,165.18 $ 46,939.30 647,229.91
313,251.53 313,251.53
$  624,376.96 $ 289,165.18 $ 46,939.30 960,481.44
$ - $ 96,586.34 $ - 96,586.34
624,376.96 192,578.84 46,939.30 863,895.10
$  624,376.9¢ $ 289,165.18 $ 46,939.30 960,481.44
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 33 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL

Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes $  46,440.14 §  44,762.09
360 Miscellaneous Revenue;

161 Investment Earnings - 8.14

367 Contributions and Donations - 1,669.91
Total Revenue 46,440,14 46,440.14
Expenditures:
470 Debt Service 46,440.14 46,437.64
Total Expenditures 46,440.14 46,437.64
Excess of Revenue Over (Under)

Expenditures - 2.50
Net Change in Fund Balances - 2.50
Fund Balance - Beginning 2.77 2.77

FUND BALANCE- ENDING 3 2.77 $ 527
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
OCCUPANCY TAX FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Revenues:
310 Taxes:
314 Occupancy Tax
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Interest Earnings
Total Revenue

Expenditures:

499 Other Expenditures
492 Other Expenditures

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance - Beginning

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

FINAL
BUDGET

$ 1,272,843.00

ACTUAL

$ 1,283,355.15

2,571.09

1,272,843.00

1,285,932.24

$ 1,272,903.10

$ 1,288.585.61

1,272,903.10 1,288,585.61
{60.10) (2,653.37)
(60,10} {2,653.37)
16,380.81 16,380.81

3 16,320.71 $ 13,727.44
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
DOWNTOWN BID

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Revenues:

360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Interest Earnings
363 Special Assessments

Total Revenue

Expenditures:

490 Other Expenditures
492 Other Expenditures

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance - Beginning

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL

- 2,346.03

350,000.00 160,064.00
350,000.00 162,410.03

$  350,000.00 § 170,246.82
350,000.00 170,246.82
- (7,836.79)

- (7,836.79)

9,410.25

$ - $ 1,573.46
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
EROSION/SEDIMENT CONTROL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Revenues:
340 Charges for Goods and Services:

349 Other-Conservation & Development
Total Revenue

Expenditures:

460 Conservation and Development:
463 Community Development

Total Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Ralance - Beginning

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
55,362.00 36,850.00
55,362.00 39,850.00
54,462.00 51,749.27
54,462.00 51,749.27
%00.00 (11,899.27)
79,070.51 79,070.51
$ 7997051 67,171.24

91



CITY OF RAPID CITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 66 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Revenues:
310 Taxes:
311 General Property Taxes
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Investment Earnings
Total Revenue

Expenditures:

470 Debt Service
485 Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
391.02 Long-term debt issued
511 Transfers out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - Beginning

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

FINAL
BUDGET

$

ACTUAL

185.00

1.31

186.31

186.31

186.31

186.31
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 67 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes $  14,778.17 $  14,52746
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:

361 Investment Earnings - 260.80
Total Revenue 14,778.17 14,788.26
Expenditures:

470 Debt Service 14,778.17 -
485 Capital Outlay 2,501,176.38 -
Total Expenditures 2,515,954.55 -
Excess of Revenue Over (Under)

Expenditures (2,501,176.38) 14,788.26
Other Financing Sources (Uses):

391.02 Long-term debt issued 2,501,176.38 -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 2,501,176.38 -
Net Change in Fund Balances - 14,788.26
Fund Balance - Beginning 6,253.70 7.819.58

FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ 6,253.70 $§ 22,607.84
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 70 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes $  72,851.05 $  66,466.65
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:

361 Investment Earnings - 2,569.74
Total Revenue 72,851,053 69,036.39
Expenditures:

470 Debt Service 72,851.05 -
Total Expenditures 72,851.05 -
Net Change in Fund Balances - 69,036.39
Fund Balance - Beginning 110,278.06 110,278.06
FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ 110,278.06 $ 179,314.45
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 68 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes $  70,340.32 66,385.62
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:

361 Investment Earnings - 271.65
Total Revenue 70,340.32 66,657.27
Expenditures;

470 Debt Service 70,340.32 26,394.90
485 Capital Outlay 2,257,786.04 443,932.40
Total Expenditures 2,328,126.36 470,327.30
Excess of Revenue Over (Under)

Expenditures (2,257,786.04) (403,670.03)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):

391.02 Long-term debt issued 2,257,786.04 460,201.74
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 2,257,786.04 460,201.74
Net Change in Fund Balances - 56,531.71
Fund Balance - Begianing 6,253.70 6,509.95

FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ 6,253.70 63,041.66
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Revenues:
310 Taxes:
311 General Property Taxes
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Investment Earnings
Total Revenue

Expenditures:

470 Debt Service
485 Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

391.02 Long-term debt issued
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - Beginning

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

TID 65 FUND

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
§ 3684770 % 36589.02
- 271 40
36,847.70 36,860.42
36,847.70 333,881.11
29,054,020.25 -
729,090,867.95 333.881.11
(59.054,020.25) (297,020.69)
29,054,020.25 313,869.26
29,054,020.25 313,869.26
- 16,848.57
6,253.70 6,253.70
$ 625370 & 23,102.27
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 62 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes § 17144761 $ 166,529.25
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:

361 Investment Earnings - 4,984.11
Total Revenue 171,447.61 171,513.36
Expenditures:

470 Debt Service 171,447.61 -
485 Capital Outlay 23,085,086.14 -
Total Expenditures 23,256,533.75 -
Excess of Revenue Over (Under)

Expenditures (23,085,086.14) 171,513.36
Other Financing Sources (Uses):

391.02 Long-term debt issued 23,085,086.14 -
Total Other Financing Sources {(Uses) 23,085,086.14 -
Net Change in Fund Balances - 171,513.36
Fund Balance - Beginning 201,891.39 201,891.39

FUND BALANCE- ENDING § 201,891.39 $ 373,404.75
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 61 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 Genera} Property Taxes $ 327,559.55 $  342,249.30
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:

361 Investment Earnings - 200.60
Total Revenue 327,559.55 342,449.90
Expenditures:

470 Debt Service 327,559.55 327,359.13
485 Capital Outlay 704,148.94 -
Total Expenditures 1,031,708.49 327,359.13
Excess of Revenue Over (Under)

Expenditures (704,148.94) 15,090.77
Other Financing Sources (Uses):

391.02 Long-term debt issued 704,148.94 -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 704,148.94 -
Net Change in Fund Balances - 15,090.77
Fund Balance - Beginning 3.71 3.71

FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ 3.71 $  15,09448
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

TID 63 FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Revenues:
310 Taxes:
311 General Property Taxes
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Investment Earnings
Total Revenue

Expenditures:
470 Debt Service
485 Capitai Qutlay
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

391.02 Long-term debt issued
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - Beginning

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
$ 115,628.08 $ 11517791
- 58.86
115,628.08 115,236.77
115,628.08 115,581.12
5,061,882.53 -
5,177,510.61 115,581.12
{5,061,882.53) (344.35)
5,061,882.53 -
5,061,882.53 -
- (344.35)
7,271.46 7,277.46
$ 7,277.46 $ 6,933.11
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Revenues:
310 Taxes:
311 General Property Taxes
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Investment Earnings
Total Revenue

Expenditures:
470 Debt Service

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance - Beginaing

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

TID 59 FUND

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
$ 123851 .
- 6.06
123851 6.06
1,238.51 1,236.76
1,238.51 1,236.76
- (1,230.70)
- {1,230.70)
1,231.10 1,231.10
§ 123110 0.40
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 29 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes $ 40.81 § .
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:

361 Investment Earnings - 39.86
Total Revenue 40.8] 39.86
Expenditures:

470 Debt Service 40.81 -
Total Expenditures 40.81 -
Net Change in Fund Balances - 39.86
Fund Balance - Beginning 2,131.46 2,131.46
FUND BALANCE- ENDING 3 2,131.46 3 2,171.32

101



CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TiD 35 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes $  709,524.30 $  712,545.30
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:

361 Investment Earnings - 372.20
Total Revenue 709,524.30 712,917.50
Expenditures:

470 Debt Service 709,524.30 34,143 31
Total Expenditures 709,524.30 34,143.31
Excess of Revenue Over (Under)

Expenditures - 678,774.19
Net Change in Fund Balances - 678,774.19
Fund Balance - Beginning (670,013.93) (670,013.93)

FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ (670,013.93) § 8,760.26
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

BUDGETARY

COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 56 FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Revenues:
310 Taxes:
311 General Property Taxes
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Investment Earnings
Total Revenue

Txpenditures:

470 Debt Service
485 Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources/(Uses)
391.02 Long-term Debt Issued
Total Other Financing Sources/(Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - Beginning

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL

§  2,110,832.34 § 1,908,637.35
- 2,577.10
2,110,832.34 1,911,214.45
2,110,832.34 1,685,390.89

5,926,322.4] -
$,037,154.73 1,685,390.89
(5,926,322.41) 225,823.56

5,926,322.41 -

5,926,322.41 -
- 225,823.56

(1,521,485.98)

(1,521,485.98)

$ (1,521,485.98) $

(1,295,662.42)
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Revenues:
310 Taxes:
311 General Property Taxes
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Investment Earnings
Total Revenue

Expenditures:
470 Debt Service

485 Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources/{(Uses)
391.02 Long-term Debt Issued
Total Other Financing Sources/{Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - Beginning

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

TID 54 FUND

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
§ 291,732.40 270,527.52
- 221.51
291,732.40 270,749.03
291,732.40 234,066.14
843,784 87 -
1,135,517.27 234,066.14
(843,784 87) 36,682.89
843,784.87 -
843,784.87 -
- 36,682.89
25,908.85 25,908.85
3 25,908.85 § 62,591.74
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 44 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

FINAL
BUDRGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes $ 1,406,887.8¢ § 1,131,984.13
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:

361 Investment Earnings - 386.63
Total Revenue 1,406,887.89 1,132,370.76
Expenditures;

470 Debt Service 1,406,887.89 1,174,175.26
485 Capital Outlay 2,844,986.77 -
Total Expenditures 4,251,874.66 1,174,175.26
Excess of Revenue Over (Under)

Expenditures (2,844,986.77) (41,804.50)
Other Financing Sources/(Uses)

391.02 Long-term Debt Issued 2,844 986,77 -
Total Other Financing Sources/(Uses) 2,844,986.77 -
Net Change in Fund Balances - (41,804.50)
Fund Balance - Beginning 60,096.49 60,096.49

FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ 60,096.49 3§ 18,291.99
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 46 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes $ 26,142.96 $ 20,310.11
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:

361 Investment Earnings - -
Total Revenue 26,142.96 20,310.11
Expenditures:

470 Debt Service 76,142.96 75,552.86
485 Capital Outlay - -
Total Expenditures 76,142.96 75,552.86
Net Change in Fund Balances (50,000.00) (55,242.75)
Fund Balance - Beginning 55,242,775 55,242.75
FUND BALANCE- ENDING 3 5,242,775 $ -
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 48 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes $ 317.26 $ -
Total Revenue 317.26 -
Expenditures:

470 Debt Service 317.26 317.26
Total Expenditures 317.26 317.26
Net Change in Fund Balances - {317.26)
Fund Balance - Beginning 317.26 317.26
FUND BALANCE- ENDING 5 317.26 $ 0.00
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 19 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes $ - 8 -
Total Revenue - -
Expenditures:

470 Debt Service 6.00 5,63
Total Expenditures 6.00 5.63
Net Change in Fund Balances {6.00) (5.63)
Fund Balance - Beginning 5.63 5.63
FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ (037 § 0.00
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

TID 50 FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Revenues:
310 Taxes:
311 General Property Taxes
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Investment Earnings
Total Revenue

Expenditures:
470 Debt Service
485 Capital Cutlay
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)::

391.02 Long-term debt issued
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Baiance - Beginning

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL

$ 321,887.58 $ 246,923.55
- 562,98
321,887.58 247,486.53
321,887.58 411,531.08

7,970,713.31 -
$,292,600.89 411,531.08

(7,970,713.31D) (164,044.55)

7,970,713.31 90,639.83
7,970,713 31 90,639.83
- (73,404.72)

84,376.44 84,376.44

$ 8437644 S 1097172
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 49 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes 5 839,141,115 § 19,336.42
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:

361 Investment Earnings - 6,290.85
Total Revenue 839,141,153 25,627.27
Expenditures:

470 Debt Service $39,141.15 838,827.70
Total Expenditures 839,141.15 §38,827.70
Other Financing Sources/(Uses)
391.01 Transfers In - 188,856.00
391.02 Long-term Debt Issued - -
Total Other Financing Sources/(Uses) - 188.856.00
Excess of Revenue Over (Under)

Expenditures - (624,344.43)
Net Change in Fund Balances - {624,344 .43)
Fund Balance - Beginning 624,344 43 624,344.43

FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ 624,344.43 $ -
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 52 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes $ 93,073.69 kS 27,699.26
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:

361 Investment Earnings - 363.35
Total Revenue 03,073.69 28,062.61
Expenditures:

470 Debt Service $3,073.69 91,005.93
485 Capital Outlay 1,250,106.68 456,833,833
Total Expenditures 1,343,180.37 347,839.76
Excess of Revenue Over (Under)

Expenditures (1,250,106.68) (519,777.15)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):

391.02 Long-term debt issued 1,250,106.68 454,783.83
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,250,106.68 454,783.83
Net Change in Fund Balances - {64,993.32)
Fund Balance - Beginning 65,011.10 65,011.10

FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ 65,011.10 $ 17.78
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CITY OF RAPID CiTY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TiD 51 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes $ §73,154.41 8 939,068.43
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:

361 Investment Barnings - 1,162.72
Total Revenue §73,154.41 940,231.15
Expenditures:

470 Debt Service 873,154.41 346,572.60
485 Capital Outlay 1,321,926.38 -
Total Expenditares 2,195,080.79 346,572.60
Excess of Revenue Over {Under)

Expenditures (1,321,926.38) 593,658,55
Other Financing Sources (Uses):

391.02 Long-term debt issued 1,321,926.38 -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,321,926.38 -
Net Change in Fund Balances - 593,658.55
Fund Balance - Beginning 84,376.44 (345,542.76)

FUND BALANCE- ENDING 5 84,376.44 § 248,115.79
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
THD 53 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues;
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes b 116,301.42 $ 114,793.56
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:

361 Investment Earnings - 147.59
Total Revenue 116,301.42 114,941.15
Expenditures:

470 Debt Service 116,301.42 116,279.45
485 Capital Outlay 2,754,348.73 -
Total Expenditures 2,870,650.15 116,279.45
Excess of Revenue Over (Under)

Expenditures {2,754,348.73) {1,338.30)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):

391.02 Long-term debt issued 2,754,348.73 -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 2,754,348.73 -
Net Change in Fund Balances - {1,338.30)
Fund Balance - Beginning 1,360,30 1,360.30

FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ 1,360.30 3 22.00
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Revenues:
310 Taxes:
311 General Property Taxes
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Investment Earnings
Total Revenue

Expenditures:
470 Debt Service
485 Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

391.02 Long-term debt issued
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - Beginning

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

TID 47 FUND

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
$  120,568.75 $  120,161.67
- 73.82
120.568.75 120,235.49
120,568.75 265,227.19
1,314,042.38 .
1,434,611.13 265,227.19
(1,314,042.38) (144,991.70)
1,314,042.38 144.731.12
1,314,042.38 144,731.12
- (260.58)
334.87 334.87
$ 33487 $ 74.29
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TiD 36 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes 5 326,185.77 5 -
Total Revenue 326,185.77 -
Expenditures:

470 Debt Service 361,185.77 360,546.43
Total Expenditures 361,185.77 360,540.43
Net Change in Fund Balances {35,000.00) (360,546.43)
Fund Balance - Beginning 360,546.43 360,546.43
FUND BALANCE- ENDING 3 325,546.43 b -
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Revenues:
310 Taxes:
311 General Property Taxes
260 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Investment Earnings
Total Revenue

Expenditures:
470 Debt Service
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance - Beginning

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

CITY OF RAPID CITY

TID 38 FUND

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL

$ 487,222.68 8 566,752.03
- 3,299.12

487,222 .68 570,051.15
487,222.68 432,296.62
487,222.68 432,296.62

- 137,754.53

- 137,754.53
(10,105.41) (10,105.41)

$ (10,1054 § 127,649.12
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Revenues:
310 Taxes;
311 General Property Taxes
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Investment Earnings
Total Revenue

Expenditures:
470 Debt Service
483 Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue Qver (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Uses
391.02 Long-term Pebt Issued

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance - Beginning
Prior Period Adjustment

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

CITY OF RAPID CITY

TID 3% FUND

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
$ 161,084.82 3 136,984.21
- 14279
161,084.82 137,127.00
161,084.82 117,761.88
3,037,472.85 -
3,198,557.67 117,761.88
(3,037,472 85) 19,365.12
3,037,472.85 -
- 19,365.12
(818,075.39) {818,075.39)
{200,000.00) (200,000.00)
$ (1,018,075.39) §  (998,710.27)

117



CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 40 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes $ 111,706.99 $ $0,999.56
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:

161 Investment Earnings - 27.50
Total Revenue 111,706.99 81,027.06
Expenditures:

470 Debt Service 111,706.99 $1,001.62
Total Expenditures 111,706.99 81,001.62
Excess of Revenue Over (Under)

Expenditures - 25.44
Net Change in Fund Balances - 25.44
Fund Balance - Beginning 2.04 2.04

FUND BALANCE- ENDING 3 2.04 $ 27.48
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Revenues:
310 Taxes:
311 General Property Taxes
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Investment Earnings
Total Revenue

Expenditures:
470 Debt Service
485 Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Uses
391.02 Long-term Debt Issued

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - Beginning

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

CITY OF RAPID CITY

TID 41 FUND

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
$ 1,194,888.11 $ 823,656.38
- 1,803.69
1,194.888.11 §25,460.07
1,194,888.11 1,136,198.41
2,343.377.19 -
3,538,265.30 1,136,198.41
{2,343,377.19) (310,738.34)
2,343,377.19 590,337.79
- 279,599.45
{299,123.11) (299,123.11)
$  (299,12311) § (19,523.66)
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Revenues:
310 Taxes:
311 General Property Taxes
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
161 Investment Earnings
Total Revenue

Expenditures:
470 Debt Service
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance - Beginning
Prior Period Adjustment

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

CITY OF RAPID CiTY

TID 42 FUND

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL

$ 590,959.53 3 521,845.80
- 330.35

590,959.53 522,176.15
590,959.53 213,300.535
590,959.53 213,300.55

- 308,875.60

- 308,875.60

(3,640,361.68)

(3,640,361.68)

5 (3.640,361.68)

$ (3.331,486.08)
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 43 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
3310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes 5 314,553.04 5 -
Total Revenue 314,553.04 -
Expendifures:

470 Debt Service 357,553.04 357.467.09
Total Expenditures 357,553.04 357,467.09
Net Change in Fund Balances (43,000.00) {357,467.09)
Fund Balance - Beginning 357,467.09 357,467.09
FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ 314,467.09 $ -
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
331 Federal Grant $1,145278.22 $ 722,832.36
340 Charges for Goods and Services:

342 General Government - -

349 Conservation and Development - 11,152.40
Total Revenue 1,145,278.22 733,984.76
Expenditures:

469 Community Development:

463 Community Development 1,146,220.64 733,984.76
Total Expenditures 1,146,220.64 733,984.76
Net Change in Fund Balances {042.42) -
Fund Balance - Beginning - -
FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ (942.42) § -
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

ARRA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAIL
Revenues:
331 Federal Grant $ 33,876.79 $ 18,675.55
Total Revenue 33,876.79 18,675.55
Expenditures:
460 Community Development:

463 Community Development 33,975.35 18,675.55
Total Expenditures 33.975.35 18,675.55
Net Change in Fund Balances (98.56) -
Fund Balance - Beginning - -
FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ (98.56) § -
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
REHABILITATION FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
340 Charges for Goods and Services:
349 Conservation and Development $ - $  31,124.49
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:

361 Interest Earnings - 2.16
Total Revenue - 31,126.65
Expenditures:

460 Conservation & Development

463 Community Development - 16,138.77
Total Expenditures - 16,138.77
Net Change in Fund Balances - 14,987.88
Fund Balance - Beginning 57,884.37 57,884.37
FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ 57,884.37 § 7287225
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
CEMETERY PERPETUAL CARE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Revenues:

340 Charges for Goods and Services:

348 Cemetery
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Interest Eamnings
Total Revenue

Expenditures:

437 Cemetery

Total Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - Beginning

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

FINAL

BUDGET ACTUAL

21,000.00 § 3,127.88

21,000.00 3,127.88
21,054.00 236.00
21,054.00 236.00

(54.00) 2,891.88
54,850.45 54,850.45

54,79645 8 57,742.33
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
RETIRED SENIOR VOLUNTEER FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
331 Federal Grants $ 111,684.85 $ 40,590.12
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:

367 Contributions and Donations - 37,177.56
Total Revenue 111,684.85 77,767.68
Expenditures:

450 Culture and Recreation

dxx Retired Senior Volunteers 111,684.85 98,618.46
Total Expenditures 111,684.85 98,618.46
Other Financing Uses

391.01 Transfers In - 20,000.00

- 20,000.00
Excess of Revenue Over (Under)

Expenditures . (850.78)
Net Change in Fund Balances - (850.78)
Fund Balance - Beginning 4,714.19 4,714.19
FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ 4,714.19 3 3,863.41
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
RETIRED SENIOR VOLUNTEER FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
331 Federal Grants $ 111,684.85 $  40,590.12
360 Miscellaneous Revenue!

367 Contributions and Donations - 37,177.56
Total Revenue 111,684.85 77,767.68
Expenditures:

450 Culture and Recreation

4wy Retired Senior Volunteers 111,684.85 98,618.46
Total Expenditures 111,684.85 08,618.46
Other Financing Uses

391.01 Transfers In - 20,000.00

- 20,000.00
Excess of Revenue Over (Under)

Expenditures - (850.78)
Net Change in Fund Balances - (850.78)
Fund Balance - Beginning 4,714.19 4,714.19
FUND BALANCE- ENDING 5 4,714.19 5 3,863.41
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 35 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes $ 60,944.74 $ 85,947.54
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:

361 Investment Earnings - 33.64
Total Revenue 60,944.74 85,081.18
Expenditures:

470 Debt Service 60,944.74 60,925.56
485 Capital Outlay 223,029.73 -
Total Expenditures 283,974.47 60,925.56
Excess of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures {(223,029.73) 25,055.62
Other Financing Uses
391.02 Long-term Debt Issued 223,029.73 -
223,029.73 -
Net Change in Fund Balances - 25,055.62
Fund Balance - Beginning 25,948.82 25,948.82
FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ 25,948.82 5 51,004.44
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes
Total Revenue

Expenditures:
485 Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Uses

391.02 Long-term Debt Issued
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance - Beginning

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

CITY OF RAPID CITY

TID 64 FUND

FINAL
BUDGET

ACTUAL

16,418,131.14

16,418,131.14

(16,418,131.14)

16,418,131.14

16,418,131.14
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes
Total Revenue

Expenditures:
485 Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue Over {(Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Uses

391.02 Long-term Debt Issued
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance - Beginning

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

CITY OF RAPID CITY

TID 71 FUND

FINAL
BUDGET

ACTUAL

3,047,890.73

3,047,890.73

(3,047,890.73)

3,047,890.73

3,047,890.73
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TID 69 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL
Revenues:
310 Taxes:

311 General Property Taxes $ - $ 131,735.25
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:

361 Investment Eatnings - 1,331.92
Total Revenue - 133,087.17
Expenditures:

485 Capital Outlay 8,107,671.94 -
Total Expenditures 8,107,671.94 -
Excess of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures {(8,107,671.94) 133,087.17
Other Financing Uses
391.02 Long-term Debt Issued 8,107,671.94 -
8,107,671.94 -
Net Change in Fund Balances - 133,087.17

Fund Balance - Beginning - -

FUND BALANCE- ENDING $ - 3 133,087.17
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULK
LIBRARY BOARD FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2611

Revenues:
350 Fine and Forfeitures
354 Library
360 Miscellaneous Revenue:
361 Investment Earnings
Total Revenue

Expenditures:

450 Culture and Recreation
455 Library

Total Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - Beginning

FUND BALANCE- ENDING

FINAL
BUDGET

ACTUAL

$ 579,041.00 $ 115,229.65
- 80.68
579,041.00 115,310.33
232,739.01 120,253.83
232.739.01 120,253.83
346,301.99 {(4,943.50)
70,360.88 70,360.88

$ 416,66287 § 65417.38
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Rapid City's comprehensive annual financial report presents
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial
statements, note disclosures and required supplementary information says about the
City's overall financial health.

Contents:
Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to assist the reader to understand
how the City's financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City’s most
significant local revenue sources, property and sales tax.

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the City's current levels of outstanding debt and its ability to issue additional
debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to assist the reader
to understand the environment within which the City’s financial activities take
place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service data to assist the reader to understand how the
information in the City's financial report relates to services the City provides and

the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relevant years. The City of Rapid City implemented GASB 34 in 2001 and
schedules presenting government-wide data inciude information beginning in that year.
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED)

ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

TABLE &

Real Property Personat Property Totals
Ratio of Total
Assessed to
Fiscal Assessed Estimated Assessed Estimated Assessed Estimated Total Estimated
Year Value Actuat Value Vaiue  Actual Value Value Actual Value Actual Value {2}
2002 2628305467 3,082,124,079 {1 m 2,628,305,467 3,092,124,078 0.85
2003 2,014,381,622 3,428,684,261 {n (1 2.914,381,822 3,428,684,261 0.85
2004 3,220,316,408 3,788,807,639 (1} {1 3,220,316,408 3,788,807,639 0.85
2005 3,438,668538 4,045,374,751 () (1) 3,438,568,538 4,045,374,751 0.85
2008 3,727,410,934 4,385,189,334 {1 (N 3,727,410,834 4,385,189,334 0.85
2007 4,018,878,206 4,727,8566,713 {1} (H 4,018,6782068 4,727,856,713 0.85
2008 4,324,369,253 5,087,483,239 () (N 4,324,360,253  5,087,403,230 0.85
2009 4,682,575400 5,005,202,636 {1 (N 4.682,675409 5,0852092636 0.92
2010 4,676,521,855 5,000,023,368 (1 {1 4,676,521,855  5,000,023,366 0.92
2011 4,548,347,320 4,921,621,341 (N (1) 4,548,347,320  4,921,921,341 0.92

SOURCE: Penningion Gounty Auditor, Director of Equalization and Scuth Dakota Department of Revenue

(1) No personai property assessed in state.

(2} Ratio percentage indicates full and true assessed value of real property only versus estimated actual value.

The City has no General Obligation Bonded Debt: therefore, no statistics are provided G.0. bonded debt to assessed value.

139



CITY OF RAPID CITY

PROPERTY VALUE AND CONSTRUCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED)

TABLE 6

Commerciat Construction Residential Construction Agsessed

Fiscal No. of No. of Property Value

Year Permits Value Permits Value Commercial Residential  Nontaxable (1)
2002 48 42,644,786 312 55,656,291 1,079,998,360  1,548,307,107 N/A
2003 47 22,754,813 376 55,749,878 1,216,2058,021  1,698,176,601 N/A
2004 79 33,144,799 456 77,101,976 1,376,632,288  1,843,784,120 N/A
2005 59 34,755,729 475 70,648,172 1,422,673,534  2,015,895,004 N/A
2006 83 55,259,062 355 66,530,424 1,504,053,522 2,222,457 412 NA
2007 83 60,676,861 282 61,623,991 1,580,826,204 2,437,851,912 N/A
2008 58 44,798,267 204 30,225,075 1,756,482,768  2,567,886,485 N/A
2009 39 37,383,580 145 28,917,468 1,905,733,014  2,776,842,395 NIA
2010 33 29,401,549 182 33,430,324 1,897,935604 2,778,586,251 N/A
2011 42 46,768,678 219 33,809,421 1,811,751,821  2,736,505,499 N/A

(1} Source: Pennington County Auditor and Director of Equalization. Values are not assigned to exempt

(nontaxable) properties.
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
PROPERTY TAX RATES - ALL OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
(PER $1000 OF ASSESSED VALUATION)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED)

City
Special Debt
Fiscal General Revenue  Service School
Year Fund Funds Funds Total District County Total
2002 3.30 - - 3.30 17.71 518 26.19
2003 3.15 - - 3.15 16.92 4.94 25.01
2004 3.06 - - 3.08 16.40 4.73 24.19
2005 3.03 - - 3.03 16.01 4.70 23.74
2006 297 - - 2.97 15.18 458 22.71
2007 2.96 - - 2.96 14.15 4.57 21.68
2008 2.99 - - 2.99 13.91 475 2165
2009 3.03 - - 3.03 13.69 4.90 21.61
2010 3.00 - - 3.00 13.94 4.84 21.79
2011 3.00 - - 3.00 13.84 4.84 21.68
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS (UNAUDITED)

DECEMBER 31, 2011

Percent of

2014 Assessed Total Assessed

Taxpayer Type of Business Valuation Valuation

SM Rushmore Mall Shopping Mall $ 34,759,056 0.76%
Miditand Rushmore LLC Rushmore Crossing $ 17,003,510 0.37%
Stoney Creek Associates Stoney Creek South $ 13,395,456 0.29%
Walmart Real Estate Discount Retail $ 13,192,171 0.28%
Black Hills Surgery Center Medical Center $ 12,810,911 0.28%
Rushmore Plaza Holiday inn Motel $ 12,476,890 0.27%
Regency Rapid City Ramada Inn Convention Center  § 10,638,207 0.23%
Perkins Delaware Shopping Center $ 10,114,080 0.22%
Harmony Heights Muiti Residential Low Rise $ 10,046,582 0.22%
Hetherington Flormann Medical Center $ 9638475 0.21%

$ 144,176,348 3.17%
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
DECEMBER 31, 2011 (UNAUDITED}

ASSESSED VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

DEBT LIMITS - General Purposes
Debt Limitation - 5% of Assessed Value
Utilities (Water & Sewer) - 10% of Assessed Value
Streets, Railways or Electric - 8% of Assessed Value

Total Debt Limit

DEBT APPLICABLE TO LIMITATION *
General Purposes (5%)
Sales Tax Bonds
Gross Receipts Bonds
Parking Revenue Bonds
Airport Revenue Bonds
Airport Certificate of Participation
Waste Water Refunding Bonds
Tax Increment Financing
SRF Loans
Capitat Leases

Utilities (10%) ~
Qutstanding Debt

Streets, Raiiways or Electric (8%)
Qutstanding Debt

Total Applicable Debt
LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS NOT SUBJECT TO LIMITATION

TOTAL DEBT AND LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS

*  The following debt is not included in the schedule:
Water Revenue Bonds serviced by Water Enterprise Fund Debt
Unamortized deferred premiums on debt

Source: Pennington County Auditor {includes Railroads & Utilities)
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TABLE 11

$ 4,548,347 320

227,417,366
454,834,732
363,867,786

1,046,119,884

24,410,000
4,820,000
2,280,000

15,760,000

455,000

10,225,000

32,531,177
5,532,248
3,092,868

09,206,294

99,208,294

32,531,177

66,675,116

45,100,000
(106,897)

44,993,103
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Fiscal

Year

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

20M

{1) Pennington Co

(2) Rapid City Incependent School District

Population

61,438
62,552
64,021
65,891
67,447
69,242
70,082
70,004
67,866

68,886

{3) Official 2000 Census

(4) Unofficial 2010 Census

(5) Estimate provided by the City Transportation Planner

N/A Not avaitable

(8
&
{5
(8)
(5)
(8)
{8
()
8
(5}

GIiTY OF RAPID CITY

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS {UNAUDITED)

Per Capita
Income (1)

28,580
29,599
31,783
33,165
35,038
38,718
37,621
N/A
33,906

35,360

unty. Slatistics per SD Department of Labor

148

Median
Age

34.8
34.8
348
348
348
348
34.8
34.8
34.8

36.5

]
®
(3
3)
3
&)
3
(3)
(3
)

School
Enreliment {2)

12,832
12,657
12,914
12,932
13,018
12,773
13,116
13,340
13,369

13,671

TABLE 34

Unempioyment

__Rae()
2.9%

3.7%
3.3%
37%
3.1%
2.9%
3.0%
4,7%
5.2%

4.1%



PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS (UNAUDITED)

CITY OF RAPID CITY

DECEMBER 31, 2011

Percentage

of Employed

Employer Employees  Rank Work Force

Ellsworth AFB 4,503 1 7.36%
Rapid City Regional Hospital 3,281 2 5.36%
Federal Governmant 2,805 3 4.75%
City of Rapid City 1,906 4 3.12%
Rapid City Area School District 1,684 5 2.75%
State of South Dakota 1,125 4] 1.84%
SD Army National Guard 1,013 7 1.68%
Waimart/Sam's Club 888 8 1.45%
Pennington County 639 9 1.04%
Black Hills Corporation 555 10 0.81%
18,499 30.24%

Source: Rapid City Economic Development Partnership
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TABLE 18

CITY OF RAPID CITY
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTICN
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS {UNAUDITED)

Function: 2002 2003 2004 2005 2008 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
General Government 28 28 29 29 30 30 40 44 46 46
Public Safety
Potice 123 128 128 129 131 131 130 134 138 142
Fire jeled 111 112 106 106 106 105 106 505 106
Code Enforcement 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 3 3 3
Advocates for Cormunity Enhancement 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 - - -
Public Works
Street 50 50 50 50 50 50 52 582 52 52
Public Works Adminisiration 23 24 24 24 25 28 26 27 27 28
Water Operations 36 36 36 36 36 36 36 37 37 37
Wastewater Operations 25 27 27 27 28 28 28 28 2% 26
Solid Waste Coliection 18 12 12 12 12 12 12 14 14 14
Solig Waste Disposal 7 7 7 7 8 8 8 8 8 8
Waste Municipal Recycling 13 23 23 23 24 24 24 24 24 24
Heaith and Welfare
Ambillance 0 17 17 23 24 30 30 30 30 30
Public Transit 19 19 19 20 23 23 25 27 27 a7
Air Quality 1 1 1 1 1 4 1 1 i 1
Cuiture and Recreation
Recreation 3 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
ice Arena 3 4 4 4 4 4 5 4 4 4
Goif Course [} & G 3] 7 6 <) 6 8 [}
Parks 18 20 20 20 20 20 22 21 21 24
Swimming Pools 2 2 3] <] 6 8 6 7 7 7
GCemetery 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Library 28 33 33 33 33 33 34 39 39 39
Parks and Recreation Administration 0 0 2 Z 2 2 3 3 3 3
Civic Center 33 33 33 33 33 33 36 36 36 36
Energy Piant 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 5 5 5
REVP 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Airport Operations 17 17 17 18 19 20 23 23 23 23
Conservation and Development
GIS Mapping 4 4 4 4 4 4 3 3 3 3
Growth Management 29 20 29 25 30 33 33 32 30 29
Transportation Planning 4 4 4 4 4 4 5 5 4 4
Community Development b4 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 4
Parking Lot and Area 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 - -
813 662 670 672 &85 586 714 732 732 736

Based on Permanent Budgeted Frplovees
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CITY OF RAPID CITY
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS (UNAUDITED)
DECEMBER 31, 2011

Date of Incorporation - February 1883
Eorm of Government - Mayor/Council
Area - Square Miles - 55.015

Miles of Streets - 369.5
Number of Strest Lights - 4657

Fire Protection
Number of Stations -7
Number of Firefighters and Officers (including EMS) - 128
Number of Fire Hydrants - 4,080

Police Protection
Number of Stations - 1
Number of Police Officers - 108

Education {Elementary Only)
Attendance Centers - 16
Number of Students - 6,549

Municipal Water Department
Number of Residential Consumers - 21,780
Average Residential Monthiy Consumption - 5,012 gaiions
Miles of Water Mains - 422.06

Sewers
Mites of Sanitary Sewer - 322.30
Miles of Storm Sewer - 132.80
Building Permits Issued {including remodeling and repair} - 5,263
Culture and Recreation
Number of Parks - 28 {consisting of more than 1,700 acres)
Number of Libraries - 2
Number of Volumes - in excess of 150,000
City Employees - 736.875

Total Salaries - $37,571,170.04
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Finance Officer

Bonding Company:

Bond Number:
Expiration Date:

Coverage

CITY OF RAPID CITY

SURETY BONDS (UNAUDITED)

DECEMBER 31, 2011

Auto-Owners Insurance Company
05701077423651
Continued until cancelled

All employees

Excess Coverage:

Finance QOfficer

Assistant Finance Officer

Data Processing Director

Civic Center Manager

Civic Center Business Manager
Civic Center Administrative Secretary
Civic Center Concessions Manager
Accounting Clerk

Accounting Clerk
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TABLE 18

$ 5,000

$250,000
$120,000
$120,000
$ 95,000
$ 95,000
$ 95,000
$ 45,000
$ 5,000
$ 5,000
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL, STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GO VERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Sam Kooiker, Mayor

and Common Council
City of Rapid City
Rapid City, South Dakota

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental ‘activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component unit, each major fund;a d-the agpregate remaining fund information of CITY OF
RAPID CITY (the City), South Dakota, as of and for the year ended December 31; 2011, which collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements and have ‘issued our téport thereon dated , 2011, We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generaily accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmint Auditing Standards, issued-by the Comptroller
General of the United States. e

Internal Control Over Financial Repm’ting‘

In planning and performing our audit, we considéfédg;he City s-:""tex;;}al con%'r"'q_}_"'t)__\{er financial reporting as a basis for
designing our auditing procedures for the purpose ofexpressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for

the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effective City’

.2 ness of ‘City’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we do not:éxpress an opi ion on the tiveness of the:City’s internat contro! over financial
reporting. e

Our consideration of internal cofitrol over nan_cigl_reg}orting‘"‘ as for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not ‘designed toidentify all deficiencies i internal control over financial reporting that might be
significant deficiencies ‘or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies,
significant deficiencies, or material weakriésses have been'identified. However, as described in the accompanying
Schedule"d_f-:}?:indings, Questioned Costs, a __fii'_Corrective Action Plan we identified certain deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that we consider fo be material weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal control exis when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of:performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect anc correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
conirol such that there is a're.aspna_blia',p'_dssibi%if;y that 2 material misstatement of the City’s financial statements will
not be prevented, of detected -and: corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies deseribed in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings, Questioned Costs, and Corrective Action Plan as Findings 2011-1 and 201 I-2
to be material weaknesses.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was 1ol an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of
noncompliance or other matters that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are
described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings, Questioned Costs, and Corrective Action Plan as Finding

2011-3.
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The Honorable Mayor and Common Council
Page Two

The City’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs. We did not audit the City’s response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City Council, others within the entity, and
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties. As required by South Dakota Codified Law 4-11-11, this report is a maiter of
public record and its distribution is not fimited.

KETEL THORSTENSON, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

, 2011
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND On
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Sam Kooiker, Mayor

and Common Council
City of Rapid City
Rapid City, Seuth Dakota

Compliance

We have audited CITY OF RAPID CITY (the City)'s.col
described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct-and material effect on each
of the City’s major federal programs for the year endedDegember 31, 2011, The City’s niajor federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditor’s resuits section of the:accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts; and grants applicable to each of its major
federal programs is the responsibiiity of City’s_management, Our esponsibility is to expressian opinien on the
City’s compliance based on our audit. A hes "

jaiiance with thc:iy.}“j'__e_s__ of compliance reguirements

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with.auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits containéd.in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have 2 direct arid material effect or a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as

we considered necessary in the circa_ms‘_rfancé_s_. We believe that-our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Our audit does not provide a legal determination ofthe City’s E'Q_mpliance with those requirements.
In our dpxmpxz, City of Rapid Cltycompheé, in all matei‘iéi‘-:‘fespects, with the compliance requirements referred to
above that-could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended
December 31,2011, i

Internal Control over Compliance B

Management of the City ‘is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal coniro} ovet compliance
with the requirements of-laws, regulations, contracts, and grants appticable to federal programs. In planning and
performing our audit, we consideréd the City’s internal control over compliance with the requirements that could
have a direct and material effect on a'major federal program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with
OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal controi over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over
compliance.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in the internal control over compliance that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies,
significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified. However, as discussed below, we identified
certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
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The Honorable Mayor and Common Councit
Page Two

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect and correct noncompliance with a iype of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis,
We consider the deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying Schedule of
Findings, Questioned Costs and Corrective Action Plan as Finding 2011-4 and 2011-5 to be material weaknesses.

The City’s responses to the findings tdentified in our audit are describedji_‘f{'\fthé accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs. We did not audit the City’s responses and, accordingly, we express no opinjon on the
responses.

This report is intended solety for the information and use of mahagement, City. Council, others within the entity,
federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and js-pot intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties. As required by South Dakota Codified Law 4:11:11, this report is a mattet of
public record and its distribution is not fimited. g A

' KETEL THORSTENSON, LLP
. Certified Public Accountants

, 2012




CITY OF RAPID CITY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

CFDA
NUMBERS AMOUNT
.S, Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Direct Federal Funding:
CDRG Entitlement Grants Cluster
Commanity Development Biock Grant/Entitlement (Note 2) 14.218 722,332.36
ARRA - Community Development Block Grant ARRA Entitiement Grants {(Note 2) 14.253 18,675.55
Total CDBG Entitlement Grants Cluster 741,507.51
Total U.8. Department of Housing and Urban Development 741,507.91

U.S. Department of the Interior:
Pass-Through the S Department of Tourism ard State Development
Histeric Preservation Fund Grant-in-Aid 15.904 §.106.44

1.8. Department of Justice:
Divect Federal Punding:

Bullet Proof Vest Parnership Frogram 16.607 9,435.50
Public Safety Partership and Community Policing Grant 16.710 28,497.99
ARRA - Public Safety Parmership and Commanity Policing Grant 16,710 200.077.24
Total Highway Plarning and Construction Cluster 328,373.23
Edward Byme Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 48.116.46
Total U.S. Department of Justice 286,127.19

U.5. Department of Transportation:
Pass-Through the 8.5. Depariment of Transperiation:

Adrport Inprovement Program 20.106 8,641,959.30

Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 351,011.54

Metropolitan Planning Grants 20,503 26,133.65
Pass-Through the $.0. Department of Public Safely:

Alcohol Impaired Driving Countermeasures incentive Grant | #3601 112,253.60
Divect Federal Funding:

Federal Transit - Formula Grants 20.507 $35,933.0¢
Total U.S, Department of Transporiation 9 967.291.09

U.5. Generak Services Administration:
Pass-through the SD Bureau of Admiristration - S Federad Property Agency:
Donation of Federat Surplus Property, 36,003 4,959.94

National Foundation of the Arts and Humanities:
Pass-Through the SD Depariment of Tourism and Staie Development « S Ares Council
Promotion of the Arts and Humanities Grant 45.023 350,00

1.5, Environmenta Protection Agency:
Direct Federal Funding:

Congressionally Mandated Projects 66,202 821,310.00
Pass-through the S Department of Environment and Natural Resources

Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds 66.46% 11,883,00
Direct Federal Funding:

Performance Parmerghip Grant 66,605 49,379.96
Total 1.8, Environmental Protection Agency £82,572.95
Department of Energy
Direct Federal Funding:

ARRA Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grants 81.128 2,051.50

Corporation for National and Community Service:
Direct Federal Funding:
Retired and Senior Volupteer Propram 94,002 43,443,753

(.5, Department of Homeland Security:
Direct Federal Funding:
Assistance to Firefighters Grant 97.044 84,584.00

Total $12,020,994.78

Note | - Basis of Accounting - This schecule is prepased on the accrzal basis of accounting
Note 2 - The City had subrecipients of the CDBG program as follows:

Canyon Lake Senier Citizens 18,060,00
Comerstone Rescue Mission 139,549.45
211 Helpline 5,000.00
Rushmore Consumer Credis Resources 8,171.92
Dakota Plains Legal Services 5,000.60
Weilspring, Inc. 21,945.00
Pennington County Healtl/Human Services 1,247.27
Housing Coatition 74,360.71
Behavior Management Systems 27,718.53
First Methodist Chutch 50,000.50
Habitat for Humanities $1,950.95
Rapid City Community Development $2,211.34
Warking Against Vielence 5,000.00
Salvation Army 4,586.82
Youth & Family Services 5,201.25
Western 5D Community Action 71,834.92
Rura$ Asnerican Initiatives 6,443.00
Bethel Assembly of God 6,094.16

620331527

. .- -2
]

157



-158-

CITY OF RAPID CITY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS, QUESTIONED COSTS, AND CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

I

The auditor’s report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial statements of the City of Rapid
City (the City).

Three deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the financlal statements are reposted in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government
Auditing Standards. Two deficiencies are considered material weaknesses.

No instances of noncompliance material to the .ﬁnaﬁciél state"rhént_s.of the City were disclosed during
the audit. ey

Two deficiencies disclosed during the audit ‘of the major federat award;ﬁrg_gram are reported in the

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance with Requirements that Could Have a Direct and

Materdal Effect on Bach Major Program and o Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with
OMB Circular A-133. These deficiencies are consid ed material weaknesses. i

The auditor’s report on compha_r}:c_e_:fq' -the major fedégé} award program for the City expresses an
ungualified opinion. LR T

Audit findings relative to the major'%edgrai a 1 rogram fozf:-'tﬁ?;_(_lity are reported in Part C of this

schedule.

The prograriléiéiﬁted as a ma}or program"f'(‘j:r__, 2011 were:
a. Community Development Block Grant Cluster (CFDA #14.218 and 14.253}
Federal Transit (CFDA#20.507) i .

b. o
o, Alrport Improvement togram (CFDA #20.106)
5 {
e

““Congressionalty Mandated Projects.(CFDA #66.202)
ship and Conmunity Policing Grant (CFDA #16.710)

Public Safety Partnet

The threshold for dié;ti‘r'lguishiri'gﬁ.ﬁrpg_ A and B programs was $360,630.

Thé(.fzity_:_was not consiéie’fgd 2 low-risk auditee under the criteria established in OMB Circular A-133.
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CITY OF RAPID CITY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS, QUESTIONED COSTS, AND CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
{CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

B. FINDINGS — FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

MATERIAL WEAKNESSES

2011-1 Fipding: Financial Statement Preparation

Condition and Cause: The Chief Accountant and Assistant Finance Officer were responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements, including note disclosures. However, during the audit process we identified several note
disclosures were missing, and the disclosures and presentation regarding Government Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 54 was incomplete. The City does not have a formal process for the financial statements to be
reviewed for completeness Or accuracy. i

Criteria and Effect: Accurate financial reporting is impo?tfj_taﬁt'to the City. ""the City’s financial statements are
provided to numerous granting agencies and curent and future debt providers. “The lack of an adequate review

process over the financiai statements resulted in material misstatements to the City’s. financial statements and
completeness of note disclosures. These items were cotrected during the audit process. -

Questioned Costs: None

Recommendation: The City should develop é'péébés_sfcq timely review ‘the financial statements and note disclosures
for completeness and accuracy. This review could be compteted by the Finance Officer, an externai consultant, or
someone within the City if additional training is'fpljovideé-.to?pbtain the expertise necessary to review the financial
statements. i TEnL L E

Response/Corrective Action Plan: In the past, the City received audit comments because the current Finance Officer
was responsible for the preparation of the financial statements. There was 10 formal process whereby someone else
would examine or analyze the information. While the City took steps to bring additional individuals into the
process, additional training is still. necessary. to. aliow the Einance Officer to review the financial statements for
completeness-and accuracy. BT et

Beginning-with the financial ‘statement - ending Deceimber 31, 2012, the City will use the SD Department of
Legislative: Audit’s sample footnotes and :a note disclosure checklist to ensure that all necessary footnotes are
included in the financial statements.prior to providing them to the audit team. In addition, the Finance Officer will
commit to setting-aside time to review:the finanicial statements prior to providing them to the audit team.

The Finance Officer is responsible forth;s corrective action plan.

2011-2_ Finding: Internal Controls Over Significant Accounts

Condition and Cause: During ouraudit process, we made nineteen audit adjustments to many arcas of the City’s
fnancial statements, Due to a lack of adequate review processes, we identified the following specific situations:
1. We identified capital asset purchases that were not propetty added to the capital asset listings.
2. We determined that the classification between capital asset categories was not consistent or accurate
between the general ledger and the capital asset records.
3. We identified an unrecorded debt draw and removed a receivable for a future drawdown of debt
proceeds,
4. We recorded several adjustments to correct due from other governments for grant funds and accounts
receivable.
5. We noted an entry was incorrectly posted to record interest expense through accounts payable.
6. We posted several entries {0 reclassify revenues to appropriate accounts.

Criteria and Effect: The City’s financial statements are provided to numerous granting agencies and current and
future debt providers. The City does not have adequate internal controis to ensure the identification and proper
recording of revenues al year-end. The lack of review over the year-end process resulted in material audit
adjustments.
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B. FINDINGS — FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY

20112 Finding: Internal Controls Over Significant Accounts {Continyed)

Questioned Costs: None

Recommendation: City finance personnel should prepare additional supporting schedules and anaiyticaily review
year-end balances to assist in determining the financial statements are accurate. City finance personnel should
obtain additional training to gain an understanding of the year-end entries and reconciliation processes. Year-end
entries and supporting scheduies should be reviewed by, the Finance Officer before the financial statements are
prepared.

Response/Corrective Action Plan; Once the 2011 CAFR 4s been finalized, the staff involved with the preparation
process will have an “after-action” meeting to evaluate more completely what can be improved upon. Specifically
to be addressed is to determine which individual(s) is responsibl 7 which part of the financial statement
information. Additional supporting schediles and.analytical review: will be impiemented to assist in determining if
the financial statements are accurate. The Finance Officer wil commit to reviewing the year-end entries and

supporting schedules before the financial statements are p

In addition, the Finance Office will take advantaéé of any train gfo_pportuniﬁé‘éi'fgi_}_‘at become available which would
allow staf¥ to obtain additionalunderstanding of the -'yegy-end r'tt_lfiés_a'r_xd,_ffgpondliaﬁon processes.

The Finance Officer is 1espon31ble for this: OFT

2011-3 Finding: Budgetary Overdrafl

ptoper bﬂ&ggtary éiii_itrols, the City has budget overdrafis in numerous

Condition 'Qﬁcf "tfaﬁse":"-'-."ﬁ.iie-:-i_O a lack of :
:South Dakbtd'(}gdiﬁed Law 9-21-9.

departments of several funds in violatio

Criteria and E}fe_;t: The City déd-é&i;folioﬁ‘ét@tg}:aw.

Questioned Costs:: None

Recommendation. The City in the futu.:"'.g__ ould comptete supplementai appropriations for unbudgeted expenditures,

Response/Corrective Action Plan::The Finance Office continues to develop procedures to ensure suppliemental
appropriation ordinances are approved as budget overdrafis are \dentified. The Finance Office will also continue to
evaluate compliance with the budget prior to year-end and make any amendments considered necessary through the
supplemental appropriation process.

The Finance Officer is responsible for this corrective action plan.
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MATERIAL WEAKNESSES

2011-4 Finding: Federal Grant Monitoring

Condition and Cause: We noted no actual noncompliance or questioned costs ‘with grant tequirements during 2011.
However, we noted that the City does not have an overall review process to ensure that all grant reguirements are
met. We specifically noted the following: i

1. The City faited to accurately or completely repori federal expenditires on the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards (SEFA). See Finding 2011-5. ,_._-::Ih'*ﬁddition,' “we - identified $6,180,594 of federal
expenditures related to 2008, 2009, and 2010 that were not properly .reported on the respective year’s
SEFA.

2. The City failed to complete federal grant drawdowns for appmximately"t\_‘i'_ci_'_'years from South Dakota
Department of Transportation totaling $4,142,233 (part of the error noted in 1 above). When drawdowns
were finally completed, the drawdown requests improperly included expenditures outside of the approved
grant award and the City’s matching-portion. et e T

3. The City does not properly verify:that vendors under seryice contracts are not suspended or debarred. In
addition, it is not the City’s policy. to - follow procurement: processes for service contracts exceeding
$100,000. e e

4. The City does not have adequate review:p1 _
filed timely. The City: was unaware of &-new repo
Block Grant Cluster (CFDA'#14.218 and 14.253). ¢

(0 ensure that grant reports are property completed and

ing.requiremmient for the Community Development

This finding related to all ma;or program
Criteria and Effect:  The Clty . receives: many diffef.enféf};.federai grants that include numerous compliance
requirements, ' Without- proper review. an tracking processes of these compliance requirements, the City coutd fail
to maintain’compliasice with the federal grants. Suchn compliance with federal grants could potentially resuit in
the City-losing federal funding.: ok L

The City’s federal grant monitoring process generally is assigned to one person in the finance office. With most
grants, a depariment head or program:director is also assigned to each grant, and their duties include monitoring
compliance with their grant. In addition, some of the federal grants come through the State of South Dakota, who
also assigns a person o, monitor grant compliance. There is substantial effort expended by these personnel 0
monitor compiiance. For many grants, these efforts are coordinated and reviewed between two or more personnel
noted above. However, for'some granis there is limited or no coordination and review among these personnel.

Accordingly, and as noted above, :c,_éar_téin deficiencies did occur. In addition, based on lack of complete coordination
of grant monitoring procedures; more defictencies may oceur in the future.

Questioned Costs: Nong

Recommendation: The City should change and/or strengthen its grant monitoring procedures as follows:

a) Coordination of grant monitoring should be required for each federal grant by finance office personnel
and at least one grant program person. When each grant is awarded, each person shouid be assigned
duties related to monitoring grant compiance. There should be a cross review of each other’s
monitoring work,

b) Periodic (e.g. at least semi-annual) compliance update reports should be made to the Finance Officer
for review and follow-up.

¢) Year-end accounting closeout procedures shouid include a review of the revenue accrual status for
each federal grant,

dy All federal funds should be drawn down as available to maximize the City’s cash flows,

The City will need to ensure that necessary corrections to the 2008, 2009, and 2010 SEFAs are properly made.
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C. FINDINGS -~ COMPLIANCE AUDIT (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL WEAKNESSES (CONTINUED)

2011-4 Finding: Federal Grant Monitoring (Continued}

Response/Corrective Action Plan: The Finance Office continues to evalyate its processes and procedures to
improve the grant reporting review process and ensure compliance with .gréhf requirements. As part of that process,
the Finance Office will be working with the other departinents to encourage them 1o request grant reimbursements
on a more regular basis. In additios, supporting schedules will bt;fpr'ep'aré'd_ {o.review the revenue accrual status for

cach federal grant and the Assistant Finance Officer will be conducting periodic compliance reviews and foilow-up.

The Finance Officer is responsible for this corrective act_i'Qh .f)lﬁn.

2011-5 Finding: Preparation of the Schedule of Expenditﬁréé}of

Federal Awards (SEFA)

Condition and Cause: The City prepared the:2011 SEFA. However, audit adjustments occurred:for:
1. Federal Transit (CFDA #20.507) was decreased by $52,585 as a drawdown was counted twice.
2. Ajrport Improvement Program (CFDA #20.106) was d creased by $395,298 as State fund portions
were incorrectly included on the SEFA. "1 SR

3. Highway Planning (CFDA # 20.205). was increased by $59,309 as
grant expenditures that were considered federal. =

the City was unaware of certain

This finding related to all:major programs.

Criteria and Effect: The City #5.required to accurately prepare the SEFA in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.
Federal grantor agencies rety on the accuracy.of the City’s SEFA report for tracking their support. Faiiure to report
accurately could -potentially result it the City- being noncompliant, which could jeopardize federal funding. The
current internal ‘controls.for. grant reporting on the SEFA arenot sufficient to ensure 100 percent accuracy. The
controls over the reconciliation'of federal revenues and expenditures to the general ledger for the SEFA at year-end
are incomplete. All cost reimbursement grants were not reviewed for aceurate reporting on the SEFA. Finance
personnel did not complete the formal cash to.accrual reconciliation of federal awards and perform an analytical

review of grant revenues for the SEFA-

Questioned Costs: None

Recommendation: With implementation of the recommendations noted in Finding #4 above, the controls over the
annual SEFA reporting should -;-be'- improved. In addition, at year end the Finance Officer should direct the
preparation of a formal reconcilistion of ali federal grant revenue and expenditures reported in the general ledger to
the annual SEFA report. This report should be reviewed by the Finance Officer upon completion.

Response/Corrective Action Plan: The Finance Office is continuing to develop a system of controls over the
preparation of the SEFA to ensure accurate repotting, to include a reconciliation of federal expenditures and
revenues reported in the general ledger to the annual SEFA report. It is imperative that the various departments
receiving federal funding notify the Finance Office of said funding to ensure those programs are inciuded in the
SEFA report, which is typically accomplished by providing a copy of the grant agreement, including the CFDA
number, to the Finance Office.

In addition, the Finance Office will seek to implement a new financial and accounting software package beginning
in FY2013 in which a grants management appiication will be included.

The Finance Officer is responsible for this corrective action pian.
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Status of Prior Audit Findings and Recommendations:

Finding 2010-1 Capital Asset Records and Adjustments: This finding has been repeated as part of finding 2011-2.
Finding 2010-2 Budgetary Overdrafts: This finding has been repeated as Finding 201 1-3.

Finding 2010-3 Federal Grant Reporting: This finding has been repeated and expanded as Finding 2011-4.

Finding 2010-4 Preparation of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Aw§ ds This finding has been repeated and
expanded as Finding 2011-5. ' :




